Public Document Pack

PENSION POLICY & INVESTMENT
COMMITTEE
Thursday, 29 July 2021 at 9.30 am
Conference Room, Civic Centre, Silver
Street, Enfield, EN1 3XA

Council website: www.enfield.gov.uk

PENSION POLICY & INVESTMENT
COMMITTEE
Thursday, 29th July, 2021 at 9.30 am in the Conference Room, Civic
Centre, Silver Street, Enfield, EN1 3XA
Membership:
Councillors: Tim Leaver,
Terence Neville OBE JP

Claire Stewart,

Doug Taylor,

Edward Smith

and

AGENDA – PART 1
1.

WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS

2.

DECLARATION OF INTEREST

Members of the Council are invited to identify any disclosable
pecuniary, other pecuniary or non-pecuniary interests relevant to the
items on the agenda.
3.

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 8)
To agree the minutes of the previous meeting held on 10 June 2021.

4.

PENSION BOARD FEEDBACK
To receive feedback from the last Pension Board from the Chair and Vice
Chair.

5.

REVIEW OF THE PENSIONS REGULATOR CODE OF PRACTICE
COMPLIANCE CHECKLIST (Pages 9 - 110)
The Pension Policy and Investments Committee are recommended to:
1

a) Note the contents of this report;
b) Note the Code of Compliance Checklist; and
c) Consider the findings and to comment and ask questions.
6.

LAPFF ENGAGEMENT UPDATE (Pages 111 - 118)
The Pension Policy and Investments Committee are recommended to:
a) Note the contents of this report;
b) The issues discussed by LAPFF, set out in the Quarterly
Engagement Report which is available on the LAPFF website:
https://lapfforum.org/publications/category/quarterly-engagement-reports/

7.

DRAFT PENSION FUND STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS (Pages 119 - 154)
The Committee are recommended to:
i)
Note the contents of this report and
ii)
Note and approve for external audit submission the draft Pension
Fund Statement of Accounts for 2020/21, attached as Appendix A to
this report.

8.

INVESTMENTS UPDATE
Verbal update from Bola Tobun.
AGENDA – PART 2

9.

LIQUID CREDIT UPDATE - PART 2 (Pages 155 - 162)
Pension Policy and Investments Committee are recommended to note the
contents of this report.

10.

MARKET AND PORTFOLIO UPDATE - PART 2 (Pages 163 - 178)
Pension Policy and Investments Committee are recommended to note the
contents of the report.

11.

MULTI-ASSET CREDIT UPDATE - PART 2 (Pages 179 - 188)
Pension Policy and Investments Committee are recommended to note the
contents of the report.

12.

ENFIELD PENSION FUND FOSSIL FUEL EXPOSURE REPORT AS AT 31
MARCH 2021 - PART 2 (Pages 189 - 208)
Pension Policy and Investments Committee are recommended to note the
contents of this report and its appendices.

2

13.

DRAFT RESPONSIBLE INVESTMENT UPDATE,
STEWARDSHIP CODE - PART 2 (Pages 209 - 220)

TFCD

AND

THE

The Committee are recommended to:
i) Note the contents of this report and
ii) Note and approve for external audit submission the draft Pension
Fund Statement of Accounts for 2020/21, attached as Appendix A
to this report.
14.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS

3

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 1

Agenda Item 3

PENSION POLICY & INVESTMENT COMMITTEE - 10.6.2021

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE PENSION POLICY & INVESTMENT
COMMITTEE
HELD ON THURSDAY, 10 JUNE 2021
COUNCILLORS
PRESENT

Tim Leaver, Claire Stewart, Doug Taylor, Edward Smith and
Terence Neville OBE JP

ABSENT
OFFICERS:

Matt Bowmer (Interim Director of Finance), Bola Tobun
(Finance Manager (Pensions and Treasury) and Julie Barker
(Head of Exchequer Services) Koulla Panaretou (Secretary)

Also Attending:

Daniel Carpenter (Aon), and Joe Peach (Aon)

1
WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS
The Chair, Cllr Tim Leaver, welcomed everyone to the meeting and all
attendees introduced themselves.
Apologies for absence were received from Carolan Dobson (Independent
Advisor).
2
DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS
There were no declarations of interest in respect of any items on the agenda.
3
MINUTES FROM THE LAST MEETING
The minutes of the last meeting held on the 25th March 2021 were agreed.
4
PENSION BOARD FEEDBACK
Bola Tobun advised that the Chair and Vice Chair of the Local Pension Board
were unable to attend the meeting but provided an update on the work carried
out to date. The Board were working well and following up on the responsible
investment strategy review and the de-carbonising of the fund.
They will meet again before the end of September with a view to arranging the
AGM by the end of the year.

-1-

Page 2
PENSION POLICY & INVESTMENT COMMITTEE - 10.6.2021

Pauline Kettless is the Chair and Cllr Ahmet Oykener is the Vice Chair. It was
pleasing to hear that Cllr Chris Dey attended the meeting and will hopefully be
a regular member in order provide consistency.
5
REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF ADMISSION POLICY
The Committee received a report from Julie Barker, Head of Exchequer
Services on the Enfield Pension Fund Admissions Policy, highlighting
revisions to the current policies with a view to seeking approval for the
changes. The following comments were received:
1. Concern was raised that contractors (e.g. school catering contractors etc)
may leave the pension funds. It was noted that the Pensions team are having
discussions with the schools and academies to make them aware that the
contracts are for three years.
2. Julie explained that the policies provide flexibility and allows contractors to
pay 2% increases in their contributions. The agreement will cover large and
small contracts and give staff some flexibility to protect those involved.
3. It was confirmed that all the organisations who join the scheme are
scheduled and admitted bodies. The number of people in each body was
requested and the timings for smooth transitions from one to another. Julie to
submit updated information on these annually to include joiner and leavers
figures. ACTION: Julie Barker
Following these discussions, the Committee noted and formally approved the
report.

6
QUARTERLY INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE REPORT DATED 31ST
MARCH 2021
The Committee received the Quarterly Investment Performance Report
covering investment information over a three-month period to 31st March 2021
from Bola Tobun - Finance Manager (Pensions and Treasury).
In summary the Fund assets increased by £31m over the quarter to 31 March
2021 the Fund posted a return of 2.3%. All Equity markets delivered positive
returns in both local currency and sterling terms. The Fund outperformed its
benchmark by 1.65%.
Fourteen out of twenty mandates delivered returns, matching or achieving
returns above the set benchmark. The six mandates lagging behind the set
benchmark for the quarter were CFM Stratus, M & G, York Capital, Adam
Street and Brockton Capital.

-2-

Page 3
PENSION POLICY & INVESTMENT COMMITTEE - 10.6.2021

For the 12 months to March 2021, sixteen out of twenty mandates
outperformed their respective benchmarks or targets. The mandates that
delivered
negative
returns
or
underperformed
their
respective
benchmark/target were MFS Global Equity, LCIV Longview, Adam Street and
York Capital.
The three-year return for the Fund was 1.23% per annum above its
benchmark return and for over five years, the Fund posted a strong return of
8.63% outperforming the benchmark return of 7.90% by 0.72% per annum.
As at 31 March 2021, the MSCI All Country World Index had a 13% exposure
to Emerging Markets. the Fund's equity portfolio has £99.7m, an improvement
in value by £15.2m from 31 December 2020 valuation of £84.5m.
At this quarter end c.7.1% of the Fund’s total assets are invested in Emerging
Markets which equates to 16.5% of the Fund’s equity portfolio.
The distribution of the Fund’s assets amongst the different asset classes is
broadly in line with the strategic benchmark weight, albeit there is a need to
rebalance the assets and equities is mildly overweight. The overweight
position in equities has helped the fund’s performance in recent months.

The following comments were received:
1. Cllr Neville asked in respect of the cash fund, what is being earned on this
short-term profit.
2. In response, Bola confirmed that the interest rates at present is ultra low,
albeit Enfield is doing better than other Boroughs that left deposits with DMO
UK Debt Management Office and end receiving negative interest on their
deposits.
3. Matt Bowmer added we were able to make use of the additional Money
Market Funds (MMF) facility as we increased our monetary limit from £15m
and £20m to £25m and the overall counterparty limitation through our treasury
management reporting system for the full council approval in November 2020.
4. The Chair confirmed that the overall strategy was good and a decision on
the cash reserve should be prioritised in the coming months.
The report was noted and agreed.

7
ECONOMIC AND MARKET OUTLOOK
A verbal presentation was received from Daniel Carpenter of AON in respect
of Economic and Market Outlook.
The following information as received:
1. In the first quarter, the UK markets have done relatively well, including the
energy and financial sector.

-3-

Page 4
PENSION POLICY & INVESTMENT COMMITTEE - 10.6.2021

2. Markets such as Equities, Government Bond Yields, VIX, UK Gilt Yield,
Investment Grade Credit Spreads, Crude Oil Spot Price, Real Yields and
Sterling Exchange Rates are recovering and expected to increase as we go
forward.
3. Equity markets have increased as a result of vaccine optimisn, improving
economic data and the US Sentate passing legislation allowing an economic
relief package.
4. Inflation has risen from 4% this time last year and currently 5%. Causes
for this rise in inflation since last year may be driven by supply chain issues
struggling to get back to normal. A short-term effect of spike in inflation has
been seen.
5. Cllr Smith suggested that the change in corporation tax will be likely to
assist with inflation, but it was confirmed that there is no timescale for this to
progress at present.
6. Cllr Taylor commented on the effect of inflation on consumer spending. Will
this be sustained, or concern raised regarding individual employment issues
and a continuation in serial saving, looking to provide more confidence in
residential purchases over the next 3 or 4 years.
7. In response, Daniel Carpenter confirmed that rising production costs could
allow inflation to increase in the long term and will circulate interesting papers
around this separately. ACTION: Daniel Carpenter
8. The Chair advised that healthy returns on pension fund allocations was
unexpected last year. The real impact on Brexit on shortfall of imports is not
currently clear. A second recession cannot be ruled out and it is our
responsibility to monitor the pension fund. A review is required from AON
every three months with a view to an update every 6 months. ACTION: AON
8
KEY DEVELOPMENTS ON INVESTMENTS & ASSET MANAGERS
UPDATE
The Committee received a presentation from Joe Peach of AON on the key
developments on investments and an asset manager’s update.
In response the following comments were received:
1. The Chair requested a monthly meeting to raise any issues with the fund
managers. ACTION: Bola to prepare 4 standard slides for ease of
reference
2. Cllr Smith asked for some insight from AON on performance and
management and their advice on how these vary. In response, Matt Bowmer
agreed that a structured programme is to be devised for the year showing

-4-

Page 5
PENSION POLICY & INVESTMENT COMMITTEE - 10.6.2021

month by month progress to help members to come up with questions they
wish to ask with feedback from AON. ACTION: Bola to liaise with AON to
devise programme.

9
LGPS UPDATE
The Committee received a report from the Finance Manager - Pensions &
Treasury. The following points were noted:
1.
The Chair requested that the report was restructured in future,
summarising details so the content is shorter. Other committee members
agreed that strategies need to be streamlined to aid decision making. The
Chair asked for a shortened precise version of this report to be circulated.
ACTION: Bola

10
REVIEW OF WORK PLAN FOR 2021-2022
The Committee received the work plan covering the Municipal Year 20212022.
The following comments were received:
1. The work programme is to be amended to incorporate the changes agreed
and additional reports to be circulated to Committee Members and request
comments. ACTION: Bola
2. The Chair requested that the AGM to arranged for late October/November.
ACTION: Bola to arrange
3. Cllr Taylor requested that two separate meetings be set up for current
employees (ongoing contributors) and retired members and they both have
different issues. Bola advised that the meeting can be one, have a general
meeting first then two different workshops afterwards where attendees can
then choose a relevant workshop focussing on their scheme members’
category.
In Summary, the work programme for Municipal Year 29021-2022 was noted.
11
BREAK (10 MINS)
The Committee had a five minute comfort break.
12
ANY OTHER BUSINESS

-5-

Page 6
PENSION POLICY & INVESTMENT COMMITTEE - 10.6.2021

The following comments were received:
1. The Chair requested a paper from AON to be circulated together with a
position statement in respect of carbon and divest by the end of June for
agreement by the Committee by email. ACTION: Bola
2. AON to complete analysis on a quarterly basis to respond to press
releases and concerns as Divest have misstated our exposure on fossil fuels.
AON have produced a methodology from information from the fund managers
although Enfield Council are the guardians of the Pension Fund.
3. Cllr Taylor asked which assets are classed as overstated and which ones
were more accurate. In response Daniel from AON advised that the details
are in the papers and can be highlighted in future for ease of reference and
going forward structure each quarter providing information in order to take
positive steps.
4. Cllr Stewart asked what AON have achieved with other Borough Councils.
In response Jo and Daniel from AON advised that there are many ways of
approaching this, working with other schemes and directing to information
available on-line which is readily available.
In conclusion, the Chair requested a summary to be circulated to track what
the members of the Committee have asked and this is to be shared to monitor
progress and help to meet objectives set.

13
STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES FOR THE INVESTMENT CONSULTANT
The Committee received a verbal update from Bola Tobun - Finance Manager
of Pensions & Treasury, Joe Peach and Daniel Carpenter of AON on the
Investments Considerations and LCIV Investment Offerings update.
After discussions were held, it was agreed that a review takes place and
details be brought back to this Committee in September, after meeting with
LCIV. ACTION: Bola

14
INVESTMENT STRATEGY REVIEW UPDATE
The Committee received a restricted report on the Investment Strategy
Review from the Finance Manager of Pensions & Treasury, Joe Peach and
Daniel Carpenter of AON.
After discussions, it was agreed that Option 2 of the report be adopted and
monitored quarterly. ACTION: Bola to implement.
The Committee received a restricted report on Liquid Credit from Daniel
Carpenter of AON. This was an area that had been highlighted by AON for

-6-

Page 7
PENSION POLICY & INVESTMENT COMMITTEE - 10.6.2021

consideration to invest some of the Cash balance which is currently available.
After discussions, it was agreed for Officers and Aon to work together to
evaluate different implementation routes before investing the available
amount. An update was to be provided to the Committee at the July meeting.
15
INVESTMENTS CONSIDERATIONS & LCIV INVESTMENT OFFERINGS
UPDATE
The Committee received a presentation on the Strategic Objectives for the
Investment Consultant.
The Committee agreed to defer this item until the next meeting on the 29 th
July and in the meantime for the relevant information to be circulated to the
Committee members prior to the meeting. ACTION: Bola

-7-

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 9

Agenda Item 5

.

London Borough of Enfield
PENSION POLICY AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE
Meeting Date: 29 July 2021

Subject:

TPR Code of Practice Compliance Checklist Report

Cabinet Member:

Cllr Maguire

Executive Director:

Fay Hammond

Key Decision:

[

]

Purpose of Report
1.

From 1st April 2015 the Pensions Regulator (TPR) assumed responsibility
for public service pension schemes and put in place codes of practice for
public service pension schemes covering a number of areas relating to the
management of schemes.

2.

The Code of Practice for Public Service Pension Schemes came into force
from 1st April 2015 and all schemes must consider whether they comply with
the Code.

3.

This report covers an updated Compliance Checklist for the London Borough
of Enfield Pension Fund up to 30th June 2021.
Proposal(s)

4.

The Pension Policy and Investments Committee are recommended to:
a) Note the contents of this report;
b) Note the Code of Compliance Checklist; and
c) Consider the findings, to comment and ask questions.
Reason for Proposal(s)

5.

There has been much greater focus on whether the governance of LGPS
pension funds is appropriate. The introduction of Local Pension Boards and
focus on increased training are just two areas of the greater focus. The
Pension’s Regulator (TPR) now has greater legal powers of oversight that
extend this further and the Code of Practice is a useful means to understand
what good practice looks like in respect of pension funds.

6.

A good standard of governance is crucial in minimising the key risks involved
in managing the Pension Fund. Although there are clear benefits for many
schemes of the greater oversight powers that have been given to TPR,
ensuring compliance with these areas and the much greater focus on

Page 10

governance results in additional work for officers and advisers of the Fund.
Any costs associated with delivering the requirements of this Code and the
related legal changes are not material in the context of the Pension Fund and
any such costs are recharged to the Pension Fund.
Relevance to the Council’s Corporate Plan
7.

Good homes in well-connected neighbourhoods.

8.

Build our Economy to create a thriving place.

9.

Sustain Strong and healthy Communities.
Background

10.

Although following the code itself is not a regulatory requirement, should TPR
identify a situation where the legal requirements are being breached, the code
will be used as a core reference document when deciding appropriate action.

11.

In recent years there has been much greater focus on whether the
governance of LGPS pension funds is appropriate. The introduction of local
Pension Boards and focus on increased training are just two areas of the
greater focus. TPR’s greater legal powers of oversight extend this further and
the Code of Practice is a useful means to understand what good practice
looks like in these areas.

12.

The Pensions Regulator's Code of Practice No 14 outlines expectations in
relation to the governance and administration of public service pension
schemes. It was issued in April 2015. The Code is split into to the following
categories, and within each of these categories there are a number of specific
requirements:
a) Reporting duties
b) Knowledge and understanding
c) Conflicts of interest
d) Publishing information
e) Risk and internal controls
f) Maintaining accurate member data
g) Maintaining contributions
h) Providing information to Members and Others
i) Internal dispute resolution procedure
j) Reporting breaches.

Page 2 of 6

Page 11

13.

In addition, there is a section in the Fund's compliance check relating to
Scheme Advisory Board requirements which are separate.

14.

Since the Code was issued the Fund has carried out regular reviews to
assess its compliance against the requirements, some of which are legal
requirements. Although compliance is assessed on an ongoing basis,
periodically a more detailed review takes place, and this was carried out in the
latter part of 2020. The findings were considered in detail by the Pension
Board at their last meeting.

15.

The findings of the latest review continue to show a high level of compliance
by the Fund and improvements in a number of areas.

16.

Appendix 1 shows the Fund previous position as at November 2018.

17.

In relation to whether the Fund is compliant or not the breakdown is as
follows:
 Fully compliant – 82 areas
 Partially compliant – 13 areas
 Non-compliant – 2 areas (As at Nov.2018 - need to obtain update from
Admin Team)

18.

The summary dashboard of Appendices 1 and 2 show how the current
compliance compares with the previous review.

19.

Appendix 2 provides the 13 areas that are partially compliant and 2 areas of
non-compliant.

20.

The partially non-compliant relate to the following categories:

21.

Publishing Information – only 1partially non-compliant relating to the need
to add code of practice paragraph 96 about PB and PPIC and members unto
the Council’s website.

22.

Risk and Internal Controls – the outstanding 1 partially non-compliant
relates to AVCs:
 to agree with the Prudential a way of ensuring compliance with regulations
 To ensure robust processes for checking employer cashflows in relation to
benefit payments.

23.

Maintaining accurate member data – there are 2 partially non-compliant
outstanding in this category:
i) To agree with Prudential a way of ensuring annual reconciliation is carried
out and audited as part of annual report and accounts process.
ii) To have a formal documented data improvement plan in place
Page 3 of 6

Page 12

24.

Maintaining contributions – the outstanding 1 partially non-compliant relates
to AVCs to put in place an improved monitoring process for AVCs

25.

Providing information to Members and Others – there are 6 partially noncompliant areas in this category, this is mainly due to the fact that I’m yet to
contact Admin team for latest updates in the yellow highlighted areas as they
are extremely busy currently.

26.

Internal dispute resolution procedure - there are 2 non-compliant areas
and 2 partially non-compliant areas in this category, this is mainly due to the
fact that I’m yet to contact Admin team for latest updates in the yellow
highlighted areas as they are extremely busy currently.

27.

An updated checklist as at June 2021 is attached at Appendix 2 for review
and comment by the Board. The Fund is generally able to demonstrate good
levels of compliance with the Code and these are highlighted in green.
Safeguarding Implications

28.

Poor corporate governance and unsustainable business practices can impact
on share prices and increases the risk that the Fund may experience a loss of
value in its investments in the future
Public Health Implications

29.

The Enfield Pension Fund indirectly contributes to the delivery of Public
Health priorities in the Borough.
Equalities Impact of the Proposal

30.

The Council is committed to Fairness for All to apply throughout all work and
decisions made. The Council serves the whole borough fairly, tackling
inequality through the provision of excellent services for all, targeted to meet
the needs of each area. The Council will listen to and understand the needs of
all its communities.
Environmental and Climate Change Considerations

31.

Environmental and climate change considerations are all over this report.
Risks that may arise if the proposed decision and related work is not
taken

32.

The rigorous robust management of LBE Pension Fund results in better
quicker and more effective decision making which can lead to better Fund
performance and reduction in the contribution required from the Council
towards the Fund.

33.

Ensuring good corporate governance and the adoption of sustainable
business models at the companies in which the Fund invests should over the
longer term ensure that they are able to deliver superior returns to the Fund.

Page 4 of 6

Page 13

Risks that may arise if the proposed decision is taken and actions that
will be taken to manage these risks
34.

A good standard of governance is crucial in minimising the key risks involved
in managing the Pension Fund. Although there are clear benefits for many
schemes of the greater oversight powers that have been given to TPR,
ensuring compliance with these areas and the much greater focus on
governance results in additional work for officers and advisers of the Fund.
Financial Implications

35.

There are no immediate direct financial consequences arising as a result of
this report. However, understanding the risks that exist in respect of the
Pension Fund and the management of those risks is important to the overall
strategic management of the Pension Fund and the governance role of this
Board. Not all risks are quantifiable from a financial perspective however
should they not be appropriately managed they could impact on the reputation
of the Fund and the Council.
Legal Implications

36.

The Pensions Regulator Code of Practice for Public Sector Pensions came
into force on the 1st April 2015. The Code introduces the framework for the
governance and administration of public service pension schemes and
provides an extended regulatory oversight by the regulator. Codes of practice
provide practical guidance in relation to the exercise of functions under
relevant pension’s legislation and set out the standards of conduct and
practice expected of those who exercise the functions. It is essential the
Pensions Committee undertakes regular monitoring of the management and
performance of the fund and use of the compliance checklist will assist with
this.

37.

The regulator is required under section 90(2) of the Pensions Act 2004, to
issue one or more codes of practice covering specific matters relating to
public service pension scheme. The Code is not a statement of the law and
there are no penalties for failure to comply with its provisions. However, the
Authority must ensure that it complies with the underlying legal duties in
respect of those matters specified in section 90(2).

38.

It is possible to adopt an alternative approach to that set out in the Code;
however any such approach must meet any underlying legal duties of the
scheme manager. Failure to do so may result in a penalty being imposed and
the regulator also has the power to issue an improvement notice under
section 13 of the Pensions Act 2004. The notice may be drafted with
reference to the code of practice

39.

When exercising its functions, the Pensions Board, must have due regard to
the need to eliminate unlawful conduct under the Equality Act 2010, the need
to advance equality of opportunity and the need to foster good relations
between persons who share a protected characteristic and those who don’t
(the public sector duty).
Page 5 of 6

Page 14

Workforce Implications
40.

The employer’s contribution is a significant element of the Council’s budget
and consequently any improvement in investment performance will allow the
Council to meet this obligation easily and could also make resources available
for other corporate priorities.
Property Implications

41.

None
Other Implications

42.

None
Options Considered

43.

There are no alternative options.

Report Author:

Bola Tobun
Finance Manager – Pensions & Treasury
Bola.Tobun@enfield.gov.uk
Tel no. 020 8132 1588

Date of report

18th July 2021

Appendices
Appendix 1 – Enfield Pension Fund Compliance Checklist as at November 2018
Appendix 2 – Enfield Pension Fund Compliance Checklist as at 30th June 2021
Background Papers
 The Pensions Act 2004
 The Pensions Regulator’s Code of Practice

Page 6 of 6

The Pension Regulator’s and Scheme Advisory Board Compliance Checklist
Date of Completion:

09/11/2018

Contents
Introduction
Summary Results Dashboard
A - Reporting Duties
B - Knowledge and Understanding
C - Conflicts of interest
D - Publishing information about schemes
E - Managing risk and internal controls
F - Maintaining accurate member data
G - Maintaining contributions
H - Providing information to members and others
I - Internal Dispute Resolution
J - Reporting breaches of the law
K - Scheme Advisory Board - Guidance on the creation and operation of Local Pension Boards in England and Wales

Page 15

Introduction
This document outlines how Northumberland County Council complies with the Pensions Regulator’s (TPR) Code of Practice No 14 Governance and administration of public
service pension schemes ('the TPR Code') in relation to the management of the Northumberland County Council LGPS Pension Fund which is part of the Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS). It will be updated regularly by officers of the Fund and reported annually to the Pension Panel and LGPS Local Pension Board.
This document highlights all the key elements of the TPR Code and then evidences whether Northumberland County Council meets these areas of best practice. As part of this
evidence it shows when the element was last checked and whether, at that point, it was considered fully, partially or not compliant. Where they are partially or not compliant, it
also highlights whether the Council have identified actions to be carried out to improve their current practices. Where an element is not yet active, the commentary will generally
still highlight where advanced progress is being made.
Those reading this document should be mindful that the TPR Code applies equally to all public service pension schemes and therefore it is generic in nature. There may be a
number of elements that are more specifically stipulated within LGPS legislation and it is not the purpose of this compliance checklist to consider that level of detail.

Further, Northumberland County Council may also incorporate key elements of national guidance from the LGPS Scheme Advisory Board into this compliance checklist. This
version contains the checklists included as part of the Shadow Scheme Advisory Boards “Guidance on the creation and operation of Local Pension Boards in England and
Wales”.

Key
Frequency of review and last review date: Where a process, policy or practice is officially reviewed at a set interval, the actual interval will be shown as well as the last
interval date. However, in many circumstances processes and procedures are ongoing and part of the day – to - day operation of the Fund. In these circumstances, an annual
check will be carried out to ensure that the ongoing process meets the TPR Code expectations and therefore the date shown will be the date that annual check was carried out
and the frequency will be shown as “ongoing (annual check)”.

Completed:

Compliant:

Fully compliant

In progress

Partially compliant

Not started

Non-compliant

Not yet relevant

Net yet relevant

Employers - Fully
compliant
Employers - Partially
compliant
Employers - Noncompliant
Not yet relevant

Definitions:
PSPA13
LGPS
TPR
TPR Code

Public Service Pensions Act 2013
Local Government Pension Scheme
The Pensions Regulator
The Pensions Regulator’s Code of Practice No 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes

Scheme Manager

For the London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund, this is Enfield Council

Administering
Authority
IDRP
SAB
Panel
PB
HoPFI

The LGPS specific term for Scheme Manager. For the London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund, this is the London Borough of Enfield, also referred to as
Enfield Council.
Internal Dispute Resolution Procedure
The national LGPS Scheme Advisory Board
Enfield Pensions Policy and Investment Panel
London Borough of Enfield Local Pension Board
Head of Pension Fund Investment

Page 16

Fully completed

Where responsibility
relates to
employers:

Summary Dashboard
A dashboard showing the summary of the results of the latest compliance checklist is shown below:
No.

Completed

Compliant

No.

Reporting Duties

Completed

Compliant

No.

Completed

Compliant

Risk and Internal Controls

A1

Fully completed

Fully compliant

E1

Fully completed

Fully compliant

H7

Fully completed

Fully compliant

A2

Fully completed

Fully compliant

E2

Fully completed

Fully compliant

H8

Fully completed

Non-compliant

A3

Fully completed

Fully compliant

E3

Fully completed

Fully compliant

H9

Fully completed

Partially compliant

A4

Fully completed

Non-compliant

E4

Fully completed

Partially compliant

H10

Fully completed

Fully compliant

Knowledge and Understanding

E5

Fully completed

Fully compliant

H11

Fully completed

Fully compliant

B1

Fully completed

Partially compliant

E6

Fully completed

Fully compliant

H12

Fully completed

Partially compliant

B2

Fully completed

Partially compliant

E7

Fully completed

Partially compliant

H13

Fully completed

Fully compliant

B3

Fully completed

Fully compliant

E8

Fully completed

Partially compliant

B4

Fully completed

Fully compliant

B5

Fully completed

Partially compliant

F1

Fully completed

B6

Fully completed

Fully compliant

F2

B7

Fully completed

Fully compliant

B8

Fully completed

B9

Internal Dispute Resolution
Fully completed

Fully compliant

Fully compliant

I2

Fully completed

Non-compliant

Fully completed

Fully compliant

I3

Fully completed

Partially compliant

F3

Fully completed

Partially compliant

I4

Fully completed

Fully compliant

Fully compliant

F4

Fully completed

Fully compliant

I5

Fully completed

Fully compliant

Fully completed

Fully compliant

F5

Fully completed

Fully compliant

I6

Fully completed

Partially compliant

B10

Fully completed

Partially compliant

F6

Fully completed

Fully compliant

I7

Fully completed

Fully compliant

B11

Fully completed

Partially compliant

F7

Fully completed

Fully compliant

I8

Fully completed

Non-compliant

B12

Fully completed

Partially compliant

F8

Fully completed

Fully compliant

I9

Fully completed

Fully compliant

F9

Fully completed

Partially compliant

Conflicts of Interest

Reporting Breaches

C1

Fully completed

Partially compliant

F10

Fully completed

Fully compliant

J1

Fully completed

Partially compliant

C2

Fully completed

Fully compliant

F11

Fully completed

Partially compliant

J2

Fully completed

Partially compliant

C3

Fully completed

Fully compliant

J3

Fully completed

Partially compliant

C4

Fully completed

Fully compliant

G1

Fully completed

Fully compliant

Scheme Advisory Board Requirements

C5

Fully completed

Partially compliant

G2

Fully completed

Fully compliant

K1

Fully completed

Fully compliant

C6

Fully completed

Non-compliant

G3

Fully completed

Fully compliant

K2

Fully completed

Fully compliant

C7

Fully completed

Partially compliant

G4

Fully completed

Fully compliant

K3

Fully completed

Fully compliant

C8

Fully completed

Fully compliant

G5

Fully completed

Fully compliant

K4

Fully completed

Partially compliant

C9

Fully completed

Fully compliant

G6

Fully completed

Partially compliant

K5

Fully completed

Fully compliant

C10

Fully completed

Fully compliant

G7

Fully completed

Fully compliant

K6

Fully completed

Fully compliant

C11

Fully completed

Fully compliant

G8

Fully completed

Fully compliant

K7

Fully completed

Partially compliant

G9

Fully completed

Partially compliant

K8

Fully completed

Partially compliant

K9

Fully completed

Fully compliant

Publishing Information

Maintaining Contributions

D1

Fully completed

Partially compliant

D2

Fully completed

Partially compliant

H1

Fully completed

Partially compliant

K10

Fully completed

Fully compliant

D3

Fully completed

Fully compliant

H2

Fully completed

Partially compliant

K11

Fully completed

Non-compliant

D4

Fully completed

Fully compliant

H3

Fully completed

Fully compliant

K12

Fully completed

Non-compliant

H4

Fully completed

Partially compliant

K13

Fully completed

Non-compliant

H5

Fully completed

Fully compliant

K14

Fully completed

Non-compliant

H6

In progress

Fully compliant

K15

Fully completed

Partially compliant

Providing Information to Members and Others

Page 17

I1

Maintaining Accurate Member Data

A - Reporting Duties
Note the requirements in this section are not included in the TPR Code but they are a fundamental to the relationship with TPR.
Legal Requirements
All public service pension schemes have to be registered with TPR. In addition, all schemes must provide a regular scheme return to TPR, containing prescribed information. A return is required when the scheme receives a scheme return notice from the
regulator. The scheme manager must also keep the regulator informed of any changes to registrable scheme details.
Note the requirements in this section are not included in the TPR Code but are a requirement for all schemes.

No.

TPR Requirement

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence

A1

Is your scheme registered with the
Pension Regulator?

Aon has checked with the Regulator and the Enfield Fund is registered - further
evidence is that scheme returns and surveys are sent to be completed.

Frequency of
Review
One off - i.e. is
registered

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
n/a
Fully
completed

Compliant

Notes

Fully
compliant

Action
Consider having a
specific individual
rather than the generic
pensions mailbox as
the key contact on the
Regulator's exchange
system.

The contact for such surveys/returns is zpensions@enfield.gov.uk. It may be possible
that important information is not seen or dealt with using a generic mailbox so the fund
could consider having a specific individual as the key contact on the Regulator's
exchange system.
The Head of Exchequer Services, Head of Pension Fund Investment (HoPFI) and the
Principal Exchequer Officer have their own log in to the Exchange site to make
changes.

Is the information held on the Pensions The number of Employers does not change significantly (there are usually a very small
Regulator's website about the scheme number, if any, exiting employers each year) and so it is considered that an annual
up-to-date?
update for the scheme return is a reasonable approach. We therefore consider this to
be fully compliant.

Annual

08/10/2018

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

A3

Have you completed this latest Scheme The 2018 scheme return was sent to Enfield on 25 September and was submitted on
Annual
Return in the required timescale?
1st November. It should be noted that there is a new requirement to test the common
and conditional/scheme-specific and report a score in the 2018 scheme return. There is
no central agreed list of scheme-specific items for the LGPS in this first year so Funds
have to use their own judgement. It is possible to not enter a score, but this may attract
attention from the Regulator as may indicate that annual data testing doesn't take place
which is an expectation. Enfield have submitted data scores based on information
provided by Heywoods supplemented by their own approach.

08/10/2018

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

A4

Have you responded to the latest TPR
public service pension scheme survey
/questionnaire?

08/10/2018

Fully
completed

Noncompliant

The last survey completed was December 2016 so the 2017/18 survey was not
Annual
completed. While this is best practice rather than a requirement, the Regulator is likely
to focus case work on Funds who do not complete the annual surveys.

Page 18

A2

The Regulator is likely to pay
particular attention in their case work
in coming years to those Funds who
do not carry out basic governance
and administration activities,
including the annual survey.

Suggest that the
2018/19 survey is
completed (issued 5
November 2018) - the
results of this TPR
compliance review
should help with the
responses to the
survey

B - Knowledge and Understanding
Legal Requirements
A member of the pension board of a public service pension scheme must be conversant with:
· the rules of the scheme, and
· any document recording policy about the administration of the scheme which is for the time being adopted in relation to the scheme.
A member of a pension board must have knowledge and understanding of:
· the law relating to pensions, and
· any other matters which are prescribed in regulations.
The degree of knowledge and understanding required is that appropriate for the purposes of enabling the individual to properly exercise the functions of a member of the pension board.

No.
B1

Frequency of
Review
Are there policies and arrangements in The Fund has a training policy for Pension Policy and Investment Committee (PPIC) Not specified in
place to support pension board
and Pension Board (PB) members - though this is not on the Fund or the Council
policy. Suggest
members in acquiring and retaining
website. This policy does not include training objectives, details of how training will annually.
knowledge and understanding?
be documented nor how attendance at events will be recorded and monitored. It
does mention self assessments on an annual basis to identify needs.
TPR Requirement

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
01/09/2017
Fully
completed

Compliant
Partially
compliant

Notes

Action
The policy should be reviewed
every three years at least, specify
this in the policy.
The policy should ideally include
the objectives of the policy, and
specify how training will be
recorded and monitored.

There are various processes carried out to ensure members can obtain relevant
knowledge and understanding. This involves offering attendance to induction
training events, attendance of PB members at PPIC meetings (as observers), and
identifying training needs in business planning so that relevant training is provided
before PPIC and PB meetings.

Page 19

The HoPFI and Head of Exchequer Services meet with new Chairs of the PPIC/PB
to help them understand their role and about the Fund before their first meeting.
The Chair of the PPIC attends the PB meetings to give updates on the decisions
made and work in progress.

B2

Has a person been designated to take
responsibility for ensuring the
framework is developed and
implemented?

HoFPI is responsible for training, the Training Policy and its implementation,
including the maintenance of the monitoring - however this responsibility is not set
out in the training policy.

Not specified in
policy. Suggest
annually.

01/09/2017

Fully
completed

Partially
compliant

Include responsibility in policy.

No.

TPR Requirement

B3

Is the Fund providing assistance to
pension board members to determine
the degree of knowledge and
understanding required?

Frequency of
Review
The Training Policy says the members should do the TPR online training toolkit -this Annual
is a requirement in first year - the HoPFI will review if this has been completed by
new members by the end of the year (2018).
Other requirements are set out in the Training Policy which should indicate the level
of knowledge required. The policy specified that an annual training needs
assessment will be carried out which will feed into training plans.
London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
01/09/2017
Fully
completed

Compliant

Notes

Fully
compliant

We haven't seen evidence
of the Business Plan but if
this is in place and
regularly updated it
provides a useful tool for
identifying knowledge
requirements.

Action

The PPIC training is based on what's coming up in meetings, and similar approach
is take for the PB, but focused on governance - training is carried out at every
meeting which helps indicate the level of knowledge required. All future activities
and therefore what knowledge is needed is set out in the 3 year business plan, eg
ABS.
New members attend induction training (e.g. provided by Aon or LGA), which gives
indication of knowledge requirements.

Are the roles and responsibilities of
pension boards and members of
pension board clearly set out in scheme
documentation?

Core functions of the board, terms of office and duties are included in the Board's
Not specified in
Terms of Reference which has been formally agreed. The ToR is based on the SAB policy. Suggest
board draft TOR template, but has been tailored appropriately to Enfield's
annually.
circumstances. The TOR is not available on the Fund website.

01/09/2017

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

Consider adding more detail on
requirements for existing members
into policy e.g. to attend at least a
certain number of training events
each year.

Each time new
01/10/2018
member
appointed, and
TPR Compliance
review carried out

Fully
completed

Partially
compliant

Add legal requirements (for PB)
and consider extending to PC in
formal policy.

Requirements for training and knowledge are also set out in the Training Policy. This
is more focused on new members than existing members (existing members are
encouraged but not required to attend general awareness events).

B5

Are pension board members aware of
their legal responsibility in terms of
Knowledge and Understanding?

Enfield confirmed members are told about this on appointment, it is included in
Aon's induction training, and Unison have done some training for employee
members as well.
However this is not set out in the formal training policy.
These responsibilities are mentioned in Terms of Reference, so PB members are
already aware of their responsibilities - also responsibilities mentioned in initial PB
meeting on 31 July 2015

Page 20

B4

No.

TPR Requirement

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence

B6

Have all pension board members got
access to copies of the scheme rules
and relevant Fund documentation?

New members are given the terms of reference and Fund policies etc, lots of these
are in one place in the annual report.

Frequency of
Review
Each time TPR
Compliance
reviewed

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
01/10/2018
Fully
completed

Compliant

Notes

Action

Fully
compliant

Fund documents such as Funding Strategy Statement and Investment Strategy
Statement are also on the Fund website: https://new.enfield.gov.uk/pensions/forms/
which also has useful links to LGPS member website, LGPS Regulations etc.
However the Terms of Reference for the PB are not on the website.
Each set of meeting minutes from the Pension Policy and Investment Committee is
circulated to PB members, and they are read at PB meetings.
The list of key documents is set out in the training policy.

Page 21

B7

Is there an up-to-date list of the Fund
The training policy drafted sets out the requirements (and this is given to existing PB Not specified in
specific documents with which pension members and new PB members when they join). A formal list of documents is
policy. Suggest
board members need to be conversant included in the training policy.
annually.
in?
The key documents such as annual report and funding and investment strategies
are available on the website (the annual report includes strategies and policy
statements but the annual report on the website is more than a year out of date.
HoFPI mentions the key items when he distributes the annual accounts in the
meeting with new members - and explains which bits of the accounts to focus on.

01/09/2017

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

B8

Are all pension board members
Bite-sized training is currently carried out at each PB meeting according to need and Annual
investing sufficient time in their learning what is to be discussed in the course of the meeting.
and development?
Employee members have gone on Unison training and new members attended Aon
induction course. Chair has had significant training.

01/10/2018

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

Provided members attend the meetings, this is considered sufficient to meet
requirements.

Suggest training plans are agreed
when annual business planning
exercise takes place.
Suggest method of monitoring of
training and documenting the level
of investment of time in training is
included in formal training policy.

No.

TPR Requirement

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence

B9

Does the Fund offer pre-appointment
training for new pension board
members or mentoring by existing
members?

Pre-appointment training is not currently provided, and nor is mentoring as this is
difficult to arrange and the commencement of the role is very soon after
selection/appointment. However newly appointed board members are invited to
attend Committee and Board meetings and training events taking place before their
first meeting to develop their knowledge of the Fund. Board members can now
remain in meeting even if not open to the public.

Frequency of
Review
Each time new
member
appointed

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
01/10/2018
Fully
completed

Compliant

Notes

Action

Fully
compliant

An individual approach is Ensure approach is documented in
taken to new appointments formal training policy
which ensures the
members are as wellinformed as possible which
we believe to be compliant.

When appointed, members have a meeting with the PB Chair as soon as possible in
order to explain the PB member's responsibilities.
In addition, the Chair of the PB did attend the CIPFA / Barnet Waddingham training
before taking the Chair position, and attended induction training provided by Aon
before first PB meeting.
The HoPFI will also visit the new school representative to explain how the PB works
before their first meeting. The PPIC Chair presents information on the last PPIC to
every PB to inform what the PB will look at. The Chair of PB also attends PPIC as
an observer.
B10

Is there a process in place for regularly
assessing the pension board members'
level of knowledge and understanding
is sufficient for their role,
responsibilities and duties?

A Training log is maintained - PPIC and PB members email the HoPFI about training Annual
attended, who keeps these on record and puts it in in annual report. The draft report
on training attended is provided to members before the accounts are produced give
members time to attend training to increase knowledge if required.

Fully
completed

Partially
compliant

Recommend that annual review of
records kept (in PB or PPIC
meetings) will highlight any
individuals with outstanding
requirements (PPIC, PB and
officers). This should be against
CIPFA and other required
competencies.

Consider keeping an ongoing
record of training carried out, for
example in a spreadsheet and
consider this at each PB meeting
or on annual basis.

Formal regular assessment of knowledge and understanding against required
competencies (e.g. CIPFA) does not appear to be taking place.

B11

Are records of learning activities being The HoPFI collects the information about attendance in emails from the PPIC and
maintained?
PB members and collates this into the annual report and accounts on an annual
basis. Members are given the information before the report is published to give
them time to complete further training if felt necessary.

Annual

31/03/2018

Fully
completed

Partially
compliant

B12

Have the pension board members
completed the Pension Regulator's
toolkit for training on the Code of
Practice number 14?

Twice-yearly

08/10/2018

Fully
completed

Partially
compliant

The PB have been advised to carry out these modules and this is included in the
training policy. Members have a year to complete the modules after being
appointed, and will inform HoPFI when completed.
The HoPFI is considering completing modules in group training sessions as a
"bitesize" approach.

Partially compliant as it's
not been confirmed that all
members have completed
this.

Page 22

01/03/2018

C - Conflicts of interest
Legal Requirements
The Public Service Pensions Act 2013 sets out the legal requirements for scheme managers and pension boards for conflicts of interest.
In relation to the pension board, scheme regulations must include provision requiring the scheme manager to be satisfied:
·
that a person to be appointed as a member of the pension board does not have a conflict of interest and
·
from time to time, that none of the members of the pension board has a conflict of interest.
Scheme regulations must require each member or proposed member of a pension board to provide the scheme manager with such information as the scheme manager reasonably requires for the purposes of meeting the requirements referred to above.
Scheme regulations must include provision requiring the pension board to include employer representatives and member representatives in equal numbers.

No.
C1

Frequency of
Review
Does the Fund have a conflict of
There is a CoI policy which is detailed in the Council Code of Conduct which applies to PB TBC
interest policy and procedure, which
and PPIC members - this covers identification/declaration requirements but not all points
include identifying, monitoring and
recommended by TPR guidance. This is not on the Fund website and is not a Fund
managing potential conflicts of interest? document.
TPR Requirement

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
TBC
Fully
completed

Compliant
Partially
compliant

Notes

Action
Ideally the Fund would
have it's own COI
Policy.
Include Code of
Conduct on website
when upgraded, and
recommend reviewing
to include all relevant
areas of TPR guidance

Council sends register of interests to members to complete.
Standing item on PPIC and PB meetings to identify conflicts.

Do pension board members have a
Yes - this was covered in recent training in October.
clear understanding of their role, the
circumstances in which they may have Their role is set out in the TOR which all members have been provided with, and
a conflict of interest and how to
responsibilities also set out in the COI policy.
manage potential conflicts?
Inclusion of conflicts as standing item in meetings ensures members understand the
requirements.

01/10/2018

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

C3

Have all Pension Board members
Standing item on each PPIC and PB meeting.
Quarterly i.e.
01/10/2018
provided appropriate information for the
each PB meeting
Administering Authority to determine
HoPFI checks declarations of interests when member appointed, to make sure can carry
whether a conflict exists (on
out the role without conflict.
appointment and from time to time)?
Declarations are completed annually for Council staff via an annual questionnaire, and any
hospitality or gifts are declared at the time of offer.

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

It would be useful if the
Fund ensured annual
declarations were on
the Fund website for all
members (not just
Council staff)

C4

Does the appointment process for
pension board members require
disclosure of interests and
responsibilities which could become
conflicts of interest?

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

Suggest declarations
are requested at
appointment/interview
phase for future PB
and PPIC members.

No formal pre-appointment declaration of interest takes place currently.
However the HoPFI checks declarations of interests when member appointed, to make
sure can carry out the role without conflict.

Whenever new
members
appointed

Page 23

C2

Each time new
member
appointed

01/10/2018

No.

TPR Requirement

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence

C5

Is the conflicts policy regularly
reviewed?

The gift list in the Code of Conduct is reviewed annually but it is not clear how often the
policy itself is reviewed.

Frequency of
Review
Unknown - not
stated in policy.

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
Unknown
Fully
completed

Compliant
Partially
compliant

Conflicts policy (within Code of Conduct) was agreed before first PB meeting - there is no
comment about how often it is reviewed. This is a Council document so review is outside
Fund control.

Notes

Action
Recommend reviewing
at least every 3 years
(or when changes in
regulations apply to
mean some elements
need updating).
Detail frequency of
review within conflicts
part of Code of
Conduct - may be a
challenge as not a
Fund document.

C6

Does the Fund have a conflicts register The Council website has a space for declarations of interest on the committee meetings
n/a
and it is circulated for ongoing review pages, but there aren't any recorded declarations published.
and published?
Conflicts is discussed at each meeting as a standing item so minutes would provide record
of any identified conflicts. However this is no formal register for the Fund.

n/a

Fully
completed

Noncompliant

Implement conflict
register and consider
reporting on this in
annual report and
accounts.

Fully
completed

Partially
compliant

Implement a fund
register which includes
all the recommended
information.

Conflicts are not reported on in the annual report and accounts.

Is appropriate information included in
the register?

The PPIC and PB declarations in meetings are just shown on each meeting minutes. The At each meeting, 01/10/2018
Council has a register of interests but it won't include non-Council staff.
i.e. quarterly

C8

Is there a standing item on the agenda Yes - for both PPIC and PB.
for declaring conflicts of interest?

At each meeting, 01/10/2018
i.e. quarterly

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

C9

Do those involved know how to report a Members have been told in first meeting and have been given Code of Conduct so are
At each meeting, 01/10/2018
conflict of interest?
aware of responsibilities. Is also standing agenda item for PPIC and PB meetings, so fully i.e. quarterly
covered.

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

Also members will be encouraged to complete Toolkit module as part of Training
requirements which is additional training on how this can be done.

Page 24

C7

No.
C10

C11

Frequency of
Last Review
Review
Date
Is the number of employer and member There are four representatives on each side, so this is compliant, and set out in the Terms Each time
01/10/2018
representatives on the board in line
of Reference. The Chair and Deputy Chair are appointed by PB at the first meeting, and
members leave
with legal requirements?
where the Chair is an employee rep the Deputy is then a employer rep, and vice versa.
or new members
appointed
An Independent adviser is being considered to help the Chair formulate an agenda
independently.

Check
Completed
Fully
completed

Is the board made up of the appropriate Yes - see details above in C10.
mix of representatives in order to
minimise potential conflicts?
There is 1 Academy representative, and 3 council representatives which is in a suitable
proportion for the make-up of the Fund. There is 1 pensioner representative and 3
employee representatives. Unions suggested employee names so that suitable candidates
were selected.

Fully
completed

TPR Requirement

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence

Each time
01/10/2018
members leave
or new members
appointed

Compliant

Notes

Action

Fully
compliant

Fully
compliant

Page 25

D - Publishing information about schemes
Legal Requirements
The scheme manager for a public service scheme must publish information about the pension board for the scheme(s) and keep that information up-to-date.
The information must include:
·
who the members of the pension board are
·
representation on the board of members of the scheme(s), and
·
the matters falling within the pension board’s responsibility

No.

TPR Requirement

D1

Does the Administering Authority
publish information about the pension
board?

Frequency of
Last Review
Review
Date
At the previous review the Fund website had basic details of who the PB members were, Ongoing and at
08/10/2018
but there is no information about the PB or the PPIC on the new fund website.
end of specific
terms (i.e. as LPB
The Council website has a link to the PPIC and the PB:
members
https://governance.enfield.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=707 . However this only change)
shows the names of the members and whether they are an employee/employer
representative, but not the additional information on responsibilities.
London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence

Check
Completed
Fully
completed

Compliant

Does the Administering Authority
The Council website, if you click on links for the Councillor members, will show the job
publish other useful related information information and other positons held. There is no further information on the Council
about the pension board?
website and no information about PPIC or PB members on the fund website.
The HoPFI has noted that he will escalate this with the Head of Democratic Services to
ensure the information is updated.

Action

Partially
compliant

Update/expand Council
website information to
include the full details of the
pension board
representation, and the
Terms of Reference, and
add PB and PPIC
information to Fund website in line with TPR
requirements/best practice.

The data on the Council website is up to date.

D2

Notes

Fully
completed

Partially
compliant

Consider adding additional
information from Code of
Practice paragraph 96 about
the PB and PC members
onto the Fund website. Ask
Head of Democratic
Services to update the
Council website.

D3

Is all the information about the Pension The information on the Council website is up to date, but is not complete and there is no
Board kept up-to-date?
information on the Fund website. Given we marked the above as partially compliant
relating to what is actually published, we are comfortable that this information will be kept
up to date once published, as it currently is up to date on the Council website - therefore
this is marked as compliant.

Ongoing and at
08/10/2018
end of specific
terms (i.e. as LPB
members
change)

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

Consider adding to pension
fund website, even if just a
link back to Council site.

D4

Does the Administering Authority public The Council website shows meeting dates, agendas and meeting minutes, and is up to
information about pension board
date to the last meeting on 4 October 2018. Some meetings in 2016/17 have no details
business?
and papers aren't published.

Quarterly

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

Consider adding to pension
fund website, even if just a
link back to Council site.

08/10/2018

Page 26

Ongoing and at
08/10/2018
end of specific
terms (i.e. as LPB
members
change)

E - Managing risk and internal controls
Legal Requirements
The scheme manager must establish and operate internal controls which adequately ensure the scheme is administered and managed in accordance with the scheme rules and the requirements of the law.
Internal controls are defined in the legislation as:
· arrangements and procedures to be followed in the administration and management of the scheme
· systems and arrangements for monitoring that administration and management
· arrangements and procedures to be followed for the safe custody and security of the assets of the scheme
The legal requirements apply equally where a scheme outsources services connected with the running of the scheme.

No.
E1

Frequency of
Review
Is there an agreed process for
There is a formal risk policy which sets out how risks are identified and recorded, which is Quarterly i.e. at
identifying and recording scheme risks? soon to be approved by the Pension Board, and there is a risk register to help identify and each meeting
record risks, and this has a covering note which is produced for each PPIC meeting. The
PB also see the register every quarter. The risks on the risk register are clearly related to
key fund objectives such as paying member benefits on time and achieving good returns
for limited risk.
TPR Requirement

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
01/10/2018
Fully
completed

Compliant
Fully
compliant

The HoPFI has commented that it is currently being updated for MIFID II etc, ongoing
news from the regulator etc. Register shows who has responsibility for each risk and the
current control in place to manage it as well as new controls required - if new risks were
to arise a new internal control (or development of existing controls) would take place to
mitigate/manage the risk.

Page 27

HoPFI has mentioned this is currently being updated it to use a Red, Amber, Green
approach, the current approach isn't that clear on how they are "scored" or prioritised - it's
currently using a E or D and number "score" format based on high, low or medium. Risks
are currently added as and when the HoFPI is preparing for PPIC meetings. Typically it is
HoPFI's judgement on how to rate the likelihood and impact of each risk.
It's not clear if any other party feeds into the main risk register but the Pensions Manager
also has a risk register for administration items under development, which is much more
detailed.

E2

Does the Fund have an adequate
Register shows who has responsibility for each risk and the current control in place to
Quarterly i.e. at
process to evaluate risks and establish manage it as well as new controls required - if new risks were to arise a new internal
each meeting
internal controls?
control (or development of existing controls) would take place to mitigate/manage the risk.
Risk ratings and controls are considered by PPIC at each meeting where the risk status
has changed, or if new risks are included on the register. The PB has also requested to
see the full register at each PB meeting.
The Pensions Manager is also developing a separate administration risk register which
will be used from April 2019, as the main Fund risk register only includes a few key
administration risks. This will be updated on an ongoing basis and will help inform what
risks should be included on the wider fund register.
The administration risks are identified through ongoing projects such as undecided
members, transfers, GMP reconciliation as well as through ongoing day to day tasks.
Monitoring of progress on these projects is carried out. The register identifies current
controls and additional actions, but it is not yet fully complete in these sections. The
Pensions Manager agrees it would be ideal to document these activities in a formal data
improvement plan and risk policy.

01/10/2018

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

E - Managing risk and internal controls

Legal Requirements
rdance with the
Thescheme
schemerules
manager
and the
must
requirements
establish and
of the
operate
law. internal controls which adequately ensure the scheme is administered and managed in accordance with the scheme rules and the requirements of the law.
Internal controls are defined in the legislation as:
· arrangements and procedures to be followed in the administration and management of the scheme
· systems and arrangements for monitoring that administration and management
· arrangements and procedures to be followed for the safe custody and security of the assets of the scheme
The legal requirements apply equally where a scheme outsources services connected with the running of the scheme.

TPR Requirement

E1

Is there an agreed process for
identifying and recording scheme risks?

E2

Does the Fund have an adequate
process to evaluate risks and establish
internal controls?

Notes

Action

Page 28

No.

Complete the administration
risk register and consider
sharing with PB on, say,
annual basis.
Capture high level process
to establishing controls and
monitoring in the formal risk
policy.

No.
E3

Frequency of
Review
Does the Administering Authority have There is currently a risk register which includes 7 key high-level strategic fund risks. The Each time TPR
a risk register to record all risks
scoring of risks is based on judgement and the risks are categorised as either D or E with compliance
identified and action taken?
a number which rates them in terms of priority - this is based on high/medium or low
reviewed
likelihood and impact. This is reviewed in PPIC meetings quarterly but the HoFPI adds to
it when new risks arise e.g. following from an audit.
TPR Requirement

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
01/10/2018
Fully
completed

Compliant
Fully
compliant

It is noted the risk register does include the required items including actions to manage
risk and current progress against those actions, but these could be in greater detail and
include timescales for review.
E4

Does the Administering Authority
review the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control
systems of the Fund?

There is an external audit once a year - reported to council, Committee and PB. There
have been 6 or 7 internal and external audits carried out in the last few years, last one
had got best result for the last few years. Audit reports are passed to the PB for
consideration.

Annual

01/03/2018

Fully
completed

Partially
compliant

Quarterly i.e. at
each meeting

01/10/2018

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

Is there a standing item on the Pension Yes - So are conflicts of interest, breaches, minutes, business plan for Committee, report Quarterly i.e. at
Board agenda to review scheme risks? from Committee Chair for PB. All of which may help identify further risks.
each meeting

01/10/2018

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

However it has been noted that the auditors weren't experienced in pension matters so
couldn't necessarily ask the right questions, and so perhaps the control systems have not
been fully tested. This concern has resulted in the TPR Compliance and wider
governance review.
There is no formal review of risk management (other than review of the risk register).
The risk policy sets out a lot of detail on the aims and objectives and principles of risk
management, and how risks are identified and recorded, but could be developed in the
setting up of controls and management of risks.

Page 29

There is also no formal processes for reporting of breaches of the law.
In addition to the above, the risk management and internal controls are reviewed regularly
(albeit this does not follow a formal process and is not always documented) for
effectiveness as part of a number of processes including:
- Finance targets set and monitored by HoFPI on regular basis
- The ongoing updating and annual review of the risk register which includes the control of
those risks

E5

Does the Administering Authority
regularly review the risk register?

The PPIC and PB see the register at each meeting. It is added to when required and as
part of audit process and meetings or through discussions with advisors, if new risks
come to light.
There is a formal risk policy but it does not specify when the format of the register should
be reviewed and there are limited details on the process for managing risks.

E6

No.

TPR Requirement

E3

Does the Administering Authority have
a risk register to record all risks
identified and action taken?

E4

Does the Administering Authority
review the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control
systems of the Fund?

Notes

Action
The register could include
details on what the impact of
the risk event occurring
would be on the Fund.

- Fraud initiative checks.
- Council have external audit of their accounts and fund accounts audit.
- Any areas of concern or non-compliance are discussed at Chief
Exec/MOM meetings.
- For investment - annual internal control reports from custodian and fund
managers.
- Update of TPR Code compliance checklist approximately every 3 years.
- The external audit will require SAS70 reports so internal controls of
external asset managers are covered.
- Heywoods also have a risk management policy for their systems which is
reviewed regularly.
- Disaster recovery tests have been carried out included where staff would
be located.

Suggest implementing the
following to document how
and when additional reviews
will be carried out:
- Breaches procedure and
register
- Risk management policy
- Administration strategy
- Monitoring against legal
administration requirements
e.g disclosure requirements

Ensure audits carried out by
those with sufficient
The Council also has a risk policy where any disaster/emergency recovery expertise.
risks and staff risks are covered.

Page 30

There are some possible areas where the effectiveness could be more
easily monitored, e.g. having a formal risk management policy, including
the methods by which to carry out such a review, formal breaches
processes.
Altair management system has ability to be reported against, and the
Pensions Manager has a dashboard spreadsheet which includes the
statistics on various administration projects and ongoing work (items
completed and outstanding, and those not meet required timescales) so
that areas for improvement can be identified. These don't report on
whether legal timescales are met.

E5

Does the Administering Authority
regularly review the risk register?

E6

Is there a standing item on the Pension
Board agenda to review scheme risks?

Add detail on regualrity of
review of the register and
how it is used in the risk
management policy.

No.
E7

Frequency of
Last Review
Review
Date
Does the Administering Authority have It is considered that there are adequate internal controls in place. Most are set out in the Annual audits and 01/10/2018
adequate systems, arrangements and risk register, though it is recognised this could be more comprehensive and better
tri-yearly TPR
procedures (internal controls) in place documented. The Pensions Manager is developing a more detailed administration risk
Compliance
for the administration and management register which includes more details on the internal controls.
checks, and
of the Fund and are they documented ?
quarterly risk
- Enfeld Council use the Altair task management system - every day, tasks on task list are register review.
allocated, and can monitor all tasks on the team to prioritise and allocate to other
members on team if task overdue. Each task has a priority response time on system
(e.g. 7 would be death) and has a guideline workflow to follow - cipfa timescales are
followed.
- The system provides individual reports on what staff members have done, and the first
appraisals have just been carried out using this information which drive training, and the
next one is in March. Each person only see smaller number of tasks allocated to them to
give them focus.
- There is currently a do/check procedure which depends on tasks i.e. estimates are not
always checked due to time restrictions. Final benefit calculations are reallocated to a
checker after calculation is done - and the job can't be sent to the "doer" , has to go
someone else and can't go further until checked.
- All members of team can check calcs - but payment is only authorised by a senior
member of staff - was Pensions Manager, now Principal Exchequer Officer can as well.
This process is not formally documented but staff know the systems - it has been
suggested that an improvement would be to have the duties allocated as the system can
be altered to set levels of checking. The workflow system shows who has checked
calculations.
TPR Requirement

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence

Check
Completed
Fully
completed

Compliant
Partially
compliant

More details are provided in the notes column as there is limited space.

Do these procedures apply equally to
outsourced services, are internal
controls reflected in contracts with third
party providers and is there adequate
reporting in relation to those controls?

The only outsourced process relates to AVCs. A contract review has not been done for
n/a
some time, and now Prudential have reduced the amount of member communications i.e.
not doing presentations.
No regular updates are provided in relation to AVC services. There have been some
issues about the admin of AVCs when members near retirement, in terms of getting
information from/to Prudential using secure systems, but they are now resolved.
Members are told the retirement process can take longer if AVCs are involved as
sometimes takes a bit longer.
Pru have in the past done a transfer to Enfield when a member didn't want to. But these
incidents are rare - but do show that controls could be improved.
Payroll are completely separate and they arrange the payroll for AVCs. I-Connect is now
used to gather monthly returns for contributions, which includes AVCs, so it will be
possible to check against Prudential records. It's not clear this is taking place.
Member records only show there is an AVC and at retirement the administrators will ask
Prudential to do a quote etc. There is a risk of errors occurring that would be impossible
for the Enfield administration team to detect under the current process.

n/a

Fully
completed

Partially
compliant

Page 31

E8

No.

TPR Requirement

Notes

Action

E7

Does the Administering Authority have
adequate systems, arrangements and
procedures (internal controls) in place
for the administration and management
of the Fund and are they documented ?

- Jobs of different types are spread around the team so people can learn to
do more different things, other than where small numbers of cases where
there will be a small number of specialists who deal with them e.g. divorce
cases.
- All correspondence is scanned and recorded on member file, new post
that arrives is allocated to member files and tasks allocated to suitable
member of staff by post team who have had training on this.
- A senior member of staff monitors the workflow for team members.
- There is a calculation/query backlog so workflow can be difficult - the
team have a priority for deaths and redundancy exercise retirements.
There is a plan to come back to overdue tasks afterwards.
- Task procedures are written already and can be followed - auditors see
these as part of the audits carried out.

The risk policy could add
more detail to document
approaches to establishing
internal controls once risks
are identified.
The Pensions Manager is
considering reporting on
cases having to be redone
so can identify training
needs - rets are OK - other
things, eg GMP.

Ensure all calculations are
- There is currently no formal breaches procedure despite having adequate checked by another member
processes.
of staff to the "doer"
including quotations.
- Decisions on investments are made by the PPIC and fully documented.
- Contributions are monitored throughout the year - minor breaches in
payments are recorded by HoFPI and reported in the annual report.
- There is currently no formal breaches procedure despite having adequate
processes.
- Payments to investment managers can be authorised only by HoFPI
(other than tax and non financial issues).

Do these procedures apply equally to
outsourced services, are internal
controls reflected in contracts with third
party providers and is there adequate
reporting in relation to those controls?

The specific administration
services provided and
responsibilities delegated to
the administrator should be
documented in the terms of
engagement and contract
between the Fund and any
third party which carries out
any outsourced admin
service (such as AVC
providers and tracing
agencies).

Page 32

E8

F - Maintaining accurate member data
Legal Requirements
Scheme managers must keep records of information relating to:
· member information
· transactions, and
· pension board meetings and decisions.
The legal requirements are set out in the Public Service Pensions (Record Keeping and Miscellaneous Amendments) Regulations 2014 (‘the Record Keeping Regulations’).
The Data Protection Act 1998 and the data protection principles set out additional requirements for using, holding and handling personal information. Other requirements are set out in the:
· Pensions Act 1995 and 2004
· Pensions Act 2008 and the Employers’ Duties (Registration and Compliance) Regulations 2010
· Occupational Pension Schemes (Scheme Administration) Regulations 1996 (SI 1996/1715)
· Occupational Pension Schemes (Scheme Administration) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 1997 (SR 1997 No 94)
· Registered Pension Schemes (Provision of Information) Regulations 2006 (SI 2006/567)
TPR Requirement

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence

F1

Do member records record the
information required as defined in the
Record Keeping Regulations and is it
accurate?

Checks were carried out in relation to each of the requirements in the Record Keeping
Regulations and all were considered compliant except for in relation to clause 4(3) which
relates to information for members who pay AVCs.
- Altair system won't allow a new member entry without key details
- Benefits won't be paid until a birth certificate is provided - this is a useful extra check as if
there are any issues with the birth certificate, fraud investigation is commenced.
- Members are identified by NINO
- ICONNECT uploads data on an monthly basis so easier to manage - this system creates
new starters on Altair (and flags a new starter to the team) and updates the pay onto each
members record. Any changes to hours etc will also automatically update so records will
be kept up to date.
- Admin team confirmed both CARE and old 2008 pay data are recorded for each member
- this is just called something different (i.e. "pensionable" for 2008 pay)
- Pension increases are included on member records (via original and increased pension the actual rate isn't on the record but is easily derived), and benefit calculations are
automatically saved onto the member record.
- Enfield will need to check with Prudential that members' AVC choices are recorded i.e.
forms they originally completed when they signed up to AVCs.
- Data accuracy and completeness reports are also received via the triennial valuation,
which cover some of these elements.
Common and conditional data scores as at 31 March 2018 were both 95%. It is not clear
how the conditional (scheme specific) data score was obtained but it is much higher than
has been observed at other pension Funds to date. It is unusual for it to be at a similar
level to the common data score.

Frequency of
Review
Ongoing

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
01/10/2018
Fully
completed

Compliant
Fully
compliant

Notes

Action
Further investigation into
conditional data score to
determine if testing adequate to
identify any data issues which
need to be resolved.
The 2018 data validation carried
out by the Fund actuaries will
also give a useful indication of
the data quality.

Page 33

No.

No.

TPR Requirement

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence

F2

Does the Fund have the appropriate
processes in place so employers can
provide timely and accurate
information?

Monthly information submission via I-connect is being implemented - all Enfield Council
payrolls are already implemented, which is a large majority of the Fund. This process
reduces automation and manual entry and has built-in checks to help ensure the
employer's submission is as accurate as possible. The data is tested when submitted but
the i-connct system and it produces a validation report showing cases which are fine, and
warnings/error reports. Error reports from I-connect are checked and resolved, and if
required the employer is contacted to provide further information. If people have multiple
posts this I-connect system can generate new starters/leavers when that is not he case,
which is a challenge.

Frequency of
Review
Ongoing

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
01/10/2018
Fully
completed

Compliant

Notes

Action

Fully
compliant

For new employers The admin team give
forms to employers (bit
there is no employer
section of the Fund
website - this may be
added on future).
Leaver forms etc are
provided at
commencement, and
the team have given
the employers notes on
how to fill in the return
spreadsheet - though
as time goes on i
connect will reduce
need for this. The
Pensions Manager also
plans to visit the new
employer as well to tell
the employer exactly
what's needed, though
this has not been
carried out to date - the
employers will be
invited to a meeting for
the 2019 valuation and
arrangements to visit
them will take place
then.

Continue to implement i-connect
for all employers and work on
employer engagement as
planned. This will reduce risk of
inaccurate information being
submitted.

Then next to be implemented are Capel Manor (155 actives) and Oasis Enfield Academy
(c400 actives) are next to be implemented (November deadline). Then employers that
have more difficulty with providing what's required will be supported through the process
(e.g. ELT and Cuckoo). Then smaller employers will lbe picked up.
IConnect will be offered to all new employers. It is recognised that this can be difficult
when staff TUPE out and the new employer has a new payroll provider.
The Iconnect run is on the 30th of the month. If employers aren't using i-connect yet, they
send returns via email to the Senior Finance Officer, who checks the contributions
amounts paid is same as what employer has put on the return spreadsheet. She also
checks they are paying the right rate (member and employer). If there are any
discrepancies it suggests the data may not be correct and this is investigated with the
employer, and where changes are needed these are made manually.
See notes for more information as limited space.

Does the Fund keep records of and
reconcile transactions as required by
the Record Keeping Regulations?

Checks were carried out in relation to each of the requirements in the Record Keeping
Regulations and all were considered compliant except for in relation to AVCs, where
compliance is likely but can't be confirmed without Prudential confirmation.

Ongoing

Fully
completed

Partially
compliant

Annual reconciliation is required and audited as part of annual report and accounts
process. We have not seen evidence of the checking of benefit outgo cashflows and
reconciling by employer, but in the 2016 valuation there were some discrepancies witht he
membership data which were quickly resolved. This did not impact the majority of
employers.

Formalise breaches policy and
procedure and inform employers
of this when it is in place so they
understand their obligations and
the possible consequences of not
providing required data.

Page 34

F3

Formalise approach in
administration strategy.

Agree with Prudential a way of
ensuring this is carried out in in
with Regulations for AVCs
Ensure robust processes for
checking employer cashflows in
relation to benfit payments as
required for triennial valuations.

For death overpayment cases, the authority makes a payment to fund for the amount and
then they try to recover the cost - they then make decision to write off if necessary. This is
outside of the pension Fund so the Fund should have minimal write-offs.

F4

Are records kept of pension board
meetings as required by the Record
Keeping Regulations?

These are stored on the Council website and are up to date - the papers are not on the
Ongoing (3
04/10/2018
site but the agendas and minutes are. Ideally there would be a link from the Fund page to meetings a year)
allow scheme members to easily find this information.

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

Consider adding a link to the
minutes/agendas etc on the fund
website.

No.

TPR Requirement

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence

F5

Are records kept of decisions made by The PB are not a decision making body so it is not expected that there will be any
the pension board, outside of meetings decisions outside of meetings (or even in meetings other than decisions within the PB to
as required by the Record Keeping
make recommendations or to request information for oversight purposes).
Regulations?
For the PPIC, members are emailed by HoPFI if something needs to be done between
meetings, with a note that unless there is objection they will proceed with the stated
action, and then there is an update at next meeting for discussion.

F6

Are records retained for as long as they Records are retained indefinitely as part of the members records set up on Altair.
are needed?
A number of old record cards had recently been discovered in archiving so are being
scanned into the system to make records easier to find (though to link them to individual
member records would be significantly time consuming so that is not being carried out).
All paper records and microfiche had previously been added to the systems at the time of
the last review.

Frequency of
Review
Ongoing

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
08/10/2018
Fully
completed

Ongoing

08/10/2018

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

Annual

01/03/2018

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

Triennial (annual 01/03/2018
for actives)

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

Compliant

Notes

Action

Fully
compliant

Cashflow records (contributions and benefit payments) are also kept indefinitely (on Altair
for individual member cashflows and on the payroll/cashflow systems).
Given the long term nature of pensions and the possibility for queries arising many years
after a member has left or died, this is considered a suitable approach.
F7

Common and conditional data scroing has been carried out as at 31 March 2018 (scores
of 95% each).
The fund actuary is due to carry out pre-valuation data testing and is waiting for the
administering authority to provide the data extracts.

F8

Does the Administering Authority carry Active member data is reviewed for the benefit statements but other than that there is no
out a data review at least annually?
annual check.
The Fund will carry out common and conditional data scores on an annual basis now this
is a requirement of the pensions regulator scheme return.
Actuaries Aon carry out data validation at each triennial valuation, and are carrying out a
validation exercise on March 2018 data to attempt to resolve queries before the 2019
valuation date.

Provide data to Fund Actuary
Aon to carry out early valuation
data testing.

Page 35

Does the Administering Authority have NFI is completed each year and workflows established for any work produced via this
policies and processes to monitor data route.
on an ongoing basis?
Member information is also checked at the year-end when benefit statements are being
produced i.e. CARE pay compared to previous years, and contributions are checked to
see if paid in line with the CARE pay. Anything unreasonable in terms of data or data
changes since last year are queried with the employer. If corrections are required, these
are put onto member records immediately (it is done and checked by different staff).
Reporting is carried out on quality under various categories on an ad hoc basis. The
Pension Manager will add data review to the pensions dashboard which is produced by
Altair then updated by the Pensions Manager. This dashboard is not given to PB but has
been offered - this is a record of projects eg unprocessed leavers i.e. how much
completed per month.

No.

TPR Requirement

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence

F9

Is a data improvement plan in place
There are various data improvement activities in place. There is a pensions dashboard
which is being monitored with a defined which shows the progress of each administration - related project such as tracking all
end date?
transfers in and out, (will be a delay for factors after November), In terms of dealing with
employers. the team was moving towards a more interventionist approach for one
employer to ensure better data, however, they have over the summer replaced many of
their staff and there has been a noticeable improvement, although Enfield are keeping a
close watch on this area.

Frequency of
Review
Ongoing

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
01/10/2018
Fully
completed

Compliant

Notes

Action

Partially
compliant

A formal documented
data improvement plan
is not in place but the
work carried out by the
Pension Manager and
the spreadsheets are
useful documentation
of the activities
underway. It would be
useful for a data
improvement plan with
a defined end date
which also looks at
wider improvements
which can be made to
improve likelihood of
Fund meeting it's
objectives to be
created. A formal
administration strategy
should be in place in
order to support this.

Formal administration strategy to
set out objectives.

In terms of general improvements to data collection processes, -iconnect is also due to be
rolled out to more employers as explained above.
MSS is in place to help - actives can update some of their own addresses etc. MSS will be
opened up to deferred and pensioners as well in due course. The Pensions Manager will
be looking at usage statistics to inform where improvements could be made. There is
comprehensive help online for members who are using this - benefit statements will be on
here as well.
The Pensions Manager is also monitoring statistics produced by Altair on work being
carried out. There were lots of workflows which weren't being assigned to staff, but that
has been sorted now and the system is more transparent. There isn't any improvement
activities to improve data scores (common and conditional) or act on queries from
valuation data testing.
It is recognised the PB should be keeping annual eye on this dashboard/statistics and
progress against agreed activities but the PB are quite new so this has not yet been
requested. A short report to summarise work being done can be produced.
See notes section for more detail.

Are processes and policies in place to
reconcile scheme data with employer
data?

Reconciliations are on a continual process until the team is satisfied they have reached a
level that the Pensions Manager is happy with.
The Senior Finance Officer highlights where there are unusual changes month on month
and where information doesn't tie up to contributions paid, and this is passed to the team
to investigate with the employer on a monthly basis.
Employers who submit returns in excel sheet include details like changes to membership
(and addresses etc) which are automatically updated using I-connect or manually changed
if I-connect not used. A small number of employers still send in paper records - and these
are manual entries by the team e.g. for change of address or hours - these changes are
not checked.
Some examples of upcoming areas to be looked at in more detail include a) Marital status review - any missing
b) CARE reconciliation - that every active member has CARE upto 30/09/2018
c) currently working on frozen refunds review to ensure none have missed the automatic
linking to active records
A report can be run in Altair to give the people upcoming for retirement - the team keep an
eye on unprocessed leavers as they come through as well.
There is a new systems team to carry out things like projects, running reports like this.
Altair recent upgrades make it easy to identify those nearing retirement. This report is
carried out 2 times a year. Heywoods came to deliver training for Enfield staff a few weeks
ago on the upgrades.

Inclusion of wider range of
improvement activities in plan dashboard mainly focuses on
completion of day to day admin
tasks (albeit there are backlogs
being resolved).

SLAS are all different
days and HR
expectations different The Pensions Manager
will be improving them
as part of data
improvement activities
and will be discussing
with Board.
Ongoing

01/10/2018

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

Page 36

F10

Formal data improvement plan to
document activities in dashboard
and with a target timescale, so
that progress can be easily
monitored.

Ensure any manual entry into
member records is checked by
another member of staff, where
incorrect entries could affect the
amount of member's benefits or
ability to pay benefits on time.

No.

TPR Requirement

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence

F11

Do the Administering Authority’s
member data processes meet the
requirements of the Data Protection Act
1998 and the data protection principles,
and the new requirements of GDPR
(from 25 May 2018)?

All Enfield Council staff undertook a very comprehensive online training session that
required the staff member to pass to ensure they were signed off as GDPR compliant.
Egress system is compliant with data protection requirements.
Benefit statements are all sent in paper form where an address exists, and will be added
to member records online and staff payroll and pension payslips moving to electronic
where requested. Only if £5 plus difference and after pension increase.
MSS is secure - members get their activation code when they log on and the information
goes to the admin team and on the member record. Members have to use work email
address.
Staff do work from home using a remote server which works the same as if in office.
Passwords are required to get into staff laptops which changes, regularly. Heywoods
requested staff change log ins more often now, ie. every month. This has 2 levels, one
has to be resent by heywoods.
There is not currently a privacy notice on the member website, and members should be
informed by data controllers how their data will be used.

Frequency of
Review
Ongoing

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
01/10/2018
Fully
completed

Compliant
Partially
compliant

Notes

Action
Privacy notice on website

Page 37

G - Maintaining contributions
Legal requirements
Contributions must be paid as detailed below, and where not done, they should be reported to TPR in circumstances where the scheme manager has reasonable cause to believe that the failure is likely to be of material significance to TPR in the exercise of any of
its functions. Reporting must be carried out as detailed below.
Contribution Type

Contributions must be paid

Employer

On or before the due date as defined by the scheme regulations

Employee

Paid within the prescribed period (19 day of the month, or 22
date if required by the scheme regulations

No.

TPR Requirement

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence

G1

Does the Fund have procedures and
processes in place to identify payment
failures?

There are processes which are followed on a monthly and annual basis, based on a spreadsheet.
This is explained below.

th

nd

When a failure should be
reported
To The Regulator: As soon as
reasonably practicable

day if paid electronically) or earlier

Regulator: Within a reasonable
period – 10 working days

Frequency of
Review
Annual

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
01/10/2018
Fully
completed

Annual

01/10/2018

Compliant

Notes

Fully
compliant

We are confident that
the process will identify
payment failures in
terms of timing and
amount.

Fully
compliant

Late payments are
Processes could also
shown in annual report. briefly be recorded in a
formal administration
policy.

The key person involved with this process has minimised the risk involved as they have produced a
comprehensive guide and instructions for this checking proces, and the spreadsheet formulae etc
from previous months would serve as a useful guide if someone were spreadsheet-proficient.

G2

The Senior Finance Officer's spreadsheet sets out what payments are expected for each employer
each month based on rates in R&A certificate and previous month's payment. The Senior Finance
Officer will compare month on month to see if they are paying what they are expected to.
In doing this, she will check member numbers and if there has been a big jump it can justify a big
contribution difference. She also looks at the average per member per month to see if this looks
reasonable.
Discrepancies are investigated. This is broken down by Scheduled Bodies, Admitted Bodies, and
both employee and employer contributions are split out.
The Senior Finance Officer also checks the dates of payment - late payments are identified and put
into a separate sheet for following up. If payments are late, it's usually because the employer is new
or they have technology issues, The Senior Finance Officer emails them, and has never then had to
escalate to the HoPFI. Sometimes the information provided is correct.
The processes are all documented in a comprehensive procedure note with screenshots.

Fully
completed

Page 38

Do those processes and procedures
include a contributions monitoring
record to determine whether
contributions are paid on time and in
full?

Action

No.

TPR Requirement

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence

G3

Do those processes and procedures
include monitoring payments against
the contributions monitoring record on
an ongoing basis?

The payroll (SAP) information on what has been received is held in separate tab, and matched to
each employer for comparison. This is broken down by Scheduled Bodies, Admitted Bodies (which
helps as size and materiality differs between these groups, and both employee and employer
contributions are split out.

Frequency of
Review
Ongoing

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
01/10/2018
Fully
completed

Compliant

Notes

Action

Fully
compliant

Consider how AVC
contributions could be
checked and
monitored.

Processes are not
formally documented.
Administration
policy/strategy should
be drafted which will be
subject to regular
review, as well as the
reporting under the
requirements set out
within the policy.

Discrepancies are investigated by looking at member numbers, employer submissions, and by
contacting employers if a reason can't be found.
No process is currently in place in relation to reconciling AVC payments with contributions record.
This should be discussed with Prudential representative to ensure required information is provided.

Are these procedures regularly
reviewed to ensure they are effective?

Audited at end of year and mid year audit last year.

Annual

01/03/2018

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

G5

Do the Administering Authority’s
processes include managing overdue
contributions in line with TPR's
suggested approach?

There are no employers who are continual offenders where any significant action would be required.

Ongoing

01/10/2018

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

The Senior Finance Officer/HoFPI will identify payments if outside of 19 day statutory period.
When a payment issue is identified they are split out in a separate spreadsheet and the employer
contacted promptly to alert them to the payment failure, find the cause and circumstances and to seek
to resolve the overdue payment. Any late payments are typically due to new staff or technology
changes at the employer.
If it a minor breach which is subsequently quickly paid it is not reported to TPR (just recorded), but if
persistent will raise with employer to try to resolve.
Any late payments are reported in the report and accounts.

Page 39

G4

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence

Frequency of
Review
Ongoing

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
01/10/2018
Fully
completed

TPR Requirement

G6

Does the Fund maintain a record of any The Senior Finance Officer provided evidence of all email communications filed, which includes
investigations and communications with monthly/annual submissions of member and contributions information, as well as any investigation
employers?
correspondence.

G7

Do employers provide sufficient
Generally the employers do provide what's needed unless one-off occasions e.g due to personnel
Ongoing
information to monitor contributions and changes at employers - all current employer payroll providers can do this.
is this in accordance with the LGPS
regulations?
I-connect is being implemented which means monthly submissions for the majority of employers.
Missing information will be raised with employers immediately following the return as Altair will require
it.

01/10/2018

G8

Is there a satisfactory process in place
to assess the materiality of any
payment failures and ensure that those
which are material are reported to the
Regulator within a reasonable period?

01/10/2018

Yes - The Senior Finance Officer bears in mind the size of the employer and the payment (see above) Ongoing
- some employers are very small.
So far no failures have been material to the Regulator, and have been resolved by the next month's
payment so not a cause for concern.
Processes should be documented so that it can be evidenced to the Regulator if ever required.
Breaches are shown in the spreadsheet records kept, but there is not a separate breaches log.
Failures are reported in the annual report and accounts. Since none have been considered
serious/material employers have not been named.

Compliant

Notes

Action

Partially
compliant

Conversations with
employers could be
recorded more formally
e.g. in a log so that
doesn't rely on a
person's inbox, and
this could be a report
to the Pensions Board
if any communications
with employers are
needed in relation to
payment of
contributions.

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

Set out employer
requirements in formal
Administration
Strategy, including
how performance of
employers will be
reported upon and
remedial action taken.

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

Formalise reporting
and monitoring
requirements in formal
process notes and in
administration strategy.

Page 40

No.

No.

TPR Requirement

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence

G9

If the administration of contributions
outsourced to a service provider, is
there a process in place to obtain
regular information on the payment of
contributions to the scheme?

N/A Except for AVCs, where contribution information is passed directly to Prudential from employers
and admin team do not reconcile payroll with AVCs paid. This is something to be considered to
increase confidence in the contributions paid and ultimate benefits settled via AVCs. Prudential do
provide an annual spreadsheet with contributions for each member so this could be checked against
expectations and finance systems to ensure correct.

Frequency of
Review
n/a

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
n/a
Fully
completed

Compliant

Notes

Action

Partially
compliant

Not outsourced other
than AVCs

Put in place improved
monitoring for AVCs

Page 41

H - Providing information to members and others
Legal requirements
The law requires schemes to disclose information about benefits and scheme administration to scheme members and others. This includes requirements relating to benefit statements and certain other information which must be provided under the requirements
of the 2013 Act, HM Treasury directions and the Occupational and Personal Pension Schemes (Disclosure of Information) Regulations 2013 (‘the Disclosure Regulations 2013’). In addition to these duties, there are other legal requirements relating to the
provision of information to members and others under other legislation.

No.

TPR Requirement

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence

H1

Has an annual benefit statement been
provided to all active members within
the required timescales?

97.5% of ABS were issued for Actives were sent by the deadline of 31 August.

Frequency of
Review
Annual

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
Oct-18
Fully
completed

TBC - At least
each time TPR
Compliance is
reviewed

01/10/2018

Fully
completed

Partially
compliant

Ongoing

01/06/2018

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

Compliant

Notes

Partially
compliant

Only partially compliant as
was not 100%, but this was
largely out of the control of
the Administering Authority.
No cause for concern.

The statements for one Academy Trust didn’t go in time as there was a change in
personnel and the timescales made it difficult to obtain the required information, but
those statements have now been sent.

Action

This is not seen as a material breach for reporting to the regulator.
Do these meet the legal requirements
in relation to format?

The active benefit statements have been provided and compared with the HMT
Directions (i.e. the Disclosure Regulations) and they are compliant other than the
following pieces of information which are not included:
- Date of starting pensionable service
- Summary of the method used for calculating member and survivor benefits (there is a
breakdown of the annual CARE calculation but this is missing for any final salary
elements). This was also noted as being omitted at the last TPR Compliance review.
- It's not clear how any deductions e.g. for pension debits or scheme pays debits would
be shown on the statement if they were to apply.

H3

Has a benefit statement been provided For deferred members where an address was held, 100% were issued by end of June
to all active, deferred and pension
2018 (i.e. by LGPS deadline).
credit members who have requested
one within the required timescales?
Enfield have confirmed that they are compliant in this area for other membership
categories where there has been a request. There are no KPI statistics as evidence to
confirm this is the case.

We recommend including the
following information to make
the statements compliant:
- Date of starting pensionable
service
- Summary of the method used
for calculating member and
survivor benefits (e.g. including
the member's final salary and
the pre 08 and pre 14 accrual
rates). The explanation could be
in additional explanatory notes
to support the statement figures
if the desire is to keep the
statement simple.
- Any deductions e.g. for
pension debits or scheme pays
debits would be shown on the
statement if they were to apply.
It may be necessary to use a
different statement for those
with any deductions as would
need more explanation.

Enfield Council to confirm
these statements include
the required information
about the amount of
benefits by reference to a
particular date and how
they are calculated.
Alternatively, example
statements for these cases
can be provided for
evidence.

We suggest that KPI/SLA
statistics are held on whether
benefit statements following a
request by an active, deferred
or pension credit member are
provided no more than two
months after the date the
request is made.

Page 42

H2

Frequency of
Review
TBC - At least
each time TPR
Compliance is
reviewed

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
01/10/2018
Fully
completed

Prudential issued statements in May. These are sent directly to the member by the
Prudential.

Annual

01/05/2018

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

Aon has not seen statements from the Enfield Fund for 2018, but has seen example
statements from Prudential for other LGPS Funds from previous years (the format is
the same across LGPS Clients for Prudential) and they were complaint, so we are
confident that these are likely to still be compliant.

Annual

01/05/2018

In progress

Fully
compliant

TPR Requirement

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence

H4

Does this meet the legal requirements
in relation to format?

The deferred benefit statements have been provided and compared with the HMT
Directions (i.e. the Disclosure Regulations) and they are compliant other than the
following pieces of information which are not included:
- Date of starting pensionable service
- Summary of the method used for calculating member and survivor benefits. This was
also noted as being omitted at the last TPR Compliance review.
- It's not clear how any deductions e.g. for pension debits or scheme pays debits would
be shown on the statement if they were to apply.
- The amount of the member’s pensionable remuneration on the date pensionable
service ended (CARE and Final Salary definition).

H5

Has an annual benefit statement been
provided to all members with AVCs
within the required timescales?

H6

Do these meet the legal requirements
in relation to format?

Compliant

Notes

Action

Partially
compliant

We have not seen
We recommend including the
evidence of a statement for following information to make
a pension credit member. the statements compliant:
- Date of starting pensionable
service
- Summary of the method used
for calculating member and
survivor benefits (e.g. including
the member's final salary and
the pre 08 and pre 14 accrual
rates). The explanation could be
in additional explanatory notes
to support the statement figures
if the desire is to keep the
statement simple.
- Amount of pensionable
remuneration on date of leaving
(CARE and final salary)
- Any deductions e.g. for
pension debits or scheme pays
debits would be shown on the
statement if they were to apply.
It may be necessary to use a
different statement for those
with any deductions as would
need more explanation.

Page 43

No.

While Prudential manage
the AVCs in terms of
administration, it is
important for the
Administering Authority to
recognise that it is still their
responsibility to ensure the
AVCs are managed in line
with the LGPS Regulations
and other legal
requirements.
It is known that Prudential
are reducing the level of
communications for
members relating to AVCs.

In future years make sure that
appropriate levels of member
information is provided to those
who have AVCs.

No.

TPR Requirement

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence

H7

Is basic scheme information provided
to all new and prospective members
within the required timescales?

For Enfield staff, scheme information is issued by HR as part of their new joiner pack,
which includes a new starter form, nomination form.
Member can ask for various forms, and will be directed to the website for these. Other
individual employers have been instructed to provide same info as HR to new staff.

Frequency of
Review
Annual

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
01/10/2018
Fully
completed

Compliant

Notes

Action

Fully
compliant

Enfield Council has limited
control over what
employers send
prospective members but
they are all provided with
the new starter information
to provide and there is
sufficient information on the
Fund website.

The Pension Manager also
wants to send Heywoods
statutory notice to new joiners
which gives more information
e.g. if someone transfers in. In
addition he has said that some
documents are out of date so
need updating.

Once a new starter is in the fund the Employer is meant to send member information to
the Council. If the Fund doesn't receive the required information Enfield then sends a
pack to members once SAP identifies that there is a new joiner with no information
received. This pack includes a form to complete, with an expression of wish form, and
mentions that a pensions/LGPS guide is available on request.

Ensure requirements met as
action of the current review of
processes with HR.

It is recognised that the process needs improvement to ensure members are fully
informed within the required timescales, and to prevent duplication. This matter has
recently discussed at a HR/Pensions meeting at Enfield Council, as part of a full review
of processes between departments. Sometimes info is passed to the pensions team
that isn't needed which causes GDPR issues.

Monitor legal disclosure
timescales as part of formal
KPI/SLA monitoring.

The timescales of sending information to members and setting them up is monitored
using the Heywoods task management system (the example provided shown none
outside of required timescales), - the workflow system records dates of tasks so can
identify late responses, and use of automation via I-connect is ensuring new members
are identified quickly. This means responses within required timescales could be
reported on if required - the team can prioritise cases by deadlines.

Does this meet the legal requirements
in relation to format?

We have been provided with a sample document which is a guide to the LGPS and
some attached forms, which is provided to members on joining.
This is compliant in all areas except that:
- the member contribution rate table is out of date and refers to the 2014/15 table.
- Fuller details re transfers into the Fund as per Regulation 6 i.e. Part 1.6 of Schedule 2.
- Relating to Part 1.4 of Schedule 2, a statement as to whether charges apply on
transfers out
- In relation to Part 1.16 of Schedule 2, a statement relating to AVCs - this may already
be provided by Prudential once a member opts to pay AVCs but it should be set out at
this early stage.
- In relation to Part 1.18, the postal address of the person to contact in relation to IDRP
(this is in the IDRP leaflet but to ensure compliance it could be included in the guide).
In addition the guide still refers to being contracted out of the S2P which is no longer
applicable from 2016.
These comments are largely unchanged from the previous TPR compliance review.
Given the information is now so out of date, we consider this to be non-compliant.

Doesn't appear to
be
reviewed/updated
regularly

Around
2014/2015
based on
contribution
table.

Fully
completed

Noncompliant

Update the guide provided to
members.

Page 44

H8

No.

TPR Requirement

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence

H9

Is all other information provided in
accordance with the legal timescales?

We have not been able to gather the full evidence to guarantee the Fund is fully
compliant in this area.

Frequency of
Review
Ongoing

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
01/10/2018
Fully
completed

Compliant

Notes

Partially
compliant

Enfield Council to confirm
that when information is
provided to
members/beneficiaries on
death, receipt of transfer
credits, and in relation to
AVCs etc., the
requirements of the
Disclosure Regulations
2013 are complied with.
These requirements are set
out in a separate tab as a
checklist to complete.

There is monitoring of internal SLAs on timescales but these may not be the same as
the legal timescales. The dashboard shows that target timescales are missed in some
cases (transfers, retirements, and a significant amount of leavers) although this may
often be out of the Administering Authority's control.
Changes to the scheme are set out in communications which accompany the ABS as
this is the best way of targeting members.

Action

Enfield Council to confirm
how compliance is
monitored on a regular
basis. Please provide
details of how this is
reported, e.g. to the PPIC
and/or pensions board.

H10

We haven't seen evidence of the information Prudential provide but based on previous
experience we are confident they are meeting the requirements.
While we haven't been able to gather evidence of all possible communications we are
confident the requirements are being met.

Ongoing

01/10/2018

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

Page 45

Is all other information provided in the
format and methods required by law?

TPR Requirement

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence

H11

Where any information is only provided Only pensioner payslips are provided electronically, and only for members who have
electronically (i.e. instead of any hard not opted out. The requirements set out have been complied with.
copy) does it comply with the legal
requirements?

H12

Does the Administering Authority aim to
design and deliver communications in a
way that ensures scheme members are
able to engage with their pension
provision?

Frequency of
Review
Each time TPR
compliance
reviewed

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
01/10/2018
Fully
completed

Compliant

Notes

Action

Fully
compliant

Page 46

No.

This work will be for the newly created systems team but there has not been much
Annual based on 01/10/2018
focus on this to date in the existing pensions team. There are no statistics gathered on ABS feedback
the use of the member website but staff do act on ABS feedback received. Nomination
forms and MSS has driven a lot of the feedback. Spikes in email communications are
investigated and acted upon.

Fully
completed

Partially
compliant

Carry out review and updating
of communications including
ABS.

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

Ensure tracing exercise is
carried out as planned

Also, the Enfield design team haven't been involved in the ABS design. A planned
rebranding to match the investment information is going to be undertaken by the Head
of Exchequer Services.
H13

Does the Administering Authority use a NFI is completed each year for all scheme members, but differences arise with
tracing service?
abatements across London Funds.
Individual DWP tracing has been used for pensioners when a "gone away" notification
is received. This is more difficult to monitor for emails, but if no reply is received, it's
marked as a gone away.
A tender exercise is planned for a one off tracing exercise. Assuming this goes ahead
we have marked this as compliant.

Ongoing for gone- 01/10/2018
always and one
off tracing at
intervals i.e.
every 3 years

I - Internal Dispute Resolution
Legal requirements
The Pensions Act 1995 requires scheme managers to set up and implement an Internal Dispute Resolution Procedure (IDRP) to help resolve disputes between the scheme manager and people with an interest in the scheme.
The act states that a person has an interest in the scheme if they:
· are a member or beneficiary
· are a prospective member
· have ceased to be a member, beneficiary or prospective member
· claim to be any of the above and the dispute relates to this claim.
The Act also states that the procedure must include:
· how an application is to be made
· what must be included in an application
· how decisions are to be reached and notified
· a specified period (which is reasonable) within which applications must be made.
The procedure may require people with an interest in the scheme to first refer matters in dispute to a ‘specified person’ in order for that person to consider and give their decision on those matters. This decision may then be confirmed or replaced by the decision
taken by the scheme manager after reconsideration of the matters. However, legislation provides flexibility for scheme managers to decide the details of these.
Frequency of
Review
Not specified in
IDRP

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
01/10/2018
Fully
completed

No.

TPR Requirement

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence

I1

Has the Administering Authority put in
place an internal dispute resolution
procedure?

The IDRP policy is in place and is available to Enfield Council staff through the staff intranet.
However it is not available on the fund website for members who are employees of other employers.

I2

Does the Administering Authority’s
IDRP Employee guide does not state explicitly who is eligible nor who is exempt - suggest setting out Not specified in
process highlight or consider whether a in list form to be clearer.
IDRP
dispute is exempt?

01/10/2018

Fully
completed

Noncompliant

Update to include
details on what is
exempt next time IDRP
is reviewed and
updated.

I3

Does the information made available to
applicants about the procedure clearly
state the procedure and process to
apply for a dispute to be resolved
including:
- who it applies to
- who the specified person (stage 1) is
- the timescales for making applications
- who to contact with a dispute
- the information that an applicant must
include
- the process by which decisions are
reached?

01/10/2018

Fully
completed

Partially
compliant

Consider including
details of who the
"nominated person" for
stage 1 is.

Not specified in
IDRP

Action

Fully
compliant

The procedure references a "nominated person" for stage 1, but does not set out who this is (although
a generic contact address setting out who to send disputes to is provided). Time limits for when
applications must be made are set out at the end of the document.

Consider also adding
more details on the
process for how stage
1 and stage 2
decisions are made.

A brief explanation that discretionary decisions will be reconsidered and what happens if the
nominated person disagrees with the initial decision in stage 1 is included, but no details on stage 2
process is included other than it will be considered by an independent person to stage 1.

Has the Administering Authority
Employers do not have their own appointed person - this is all carried out by Enfield Council. The
ensured that employers who make first pensions team deal with the case and then pass to Head of Exchequer Services to review. All
stage decisions also have IDRP in
employers have it documented where they follow the Administering Authority's policy.
place?

Notes

Not specified in
IDRP

01/10/2018

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

Page 47

I4

The IDRP leaflet includes the details of the process to be followed and the information required by
way of a form to complete.

Compliant

No.

TPR Requirement

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence

I5

Are the timescales in the procedure
adhered to including sending an
acknowledgment on receipt of an
application?

The timescales for response are not included in the IDRP.

Frequency of
Review
Not specified in
IDRP

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
01/10/2018
Fully
completed

Not specified in
IDRP

01/10/2018

Not specified in
IDRP

Not reviewed

Compliant

Notes

Action

Fully
compliant

Suggest formal
monitoring or reporting
to PB (or PPIC) on
IDRP
processes/performance
including whether
timescales met.

Fully
completed

Partially
compliant

Include IDRP as
separate document on
member website

01/10/2018

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

Update the wording to
reflect the fact that the
TPAS disputes team is
now (from April 18) at
the Ombudsman.

n/a

Fully
completed

Noncompliant

Processes for IDRP
should be formally
reviewed e.g. check
treating the cases
consistently, and
reporting on whether
response timescales
met.

n/a

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

The Fund does not have many complaints, so it is easy to monitor the timescales taken for each case.
The Head of Exchequer Services and Pensions Manager monitor the timescales for cases and get in
touch with the members if investigations or decisions take longer than expected.
There is also a central complaints team at Enfield Council who keep a log of complaint cases, and
they will also follow up when it is getting close to deadlines to ensure requirements met where
possible.
An acknowledgement is sent upon receipt of an application and members are told of the timescales in
these communications (though not in IDRP document).

I6

Does the Administering Authority notify IDRP guide and form is provided when a decision is taken about a member's benefits and they are
and advertise the procedure
written to set out the decision, and when a member complaint is received, with a covering letter.
appropriately?
However the IDRP is not held separately on the member website where the other useful forms and
guides are held.
It is explained in the new member guide which is on the website:
https://new.enfield.gov.uk/pensions/wp-content/uploads/2017/02/LGPS-guide.pdf

Are the notification requirements in
relation to TPAS and the Pensions
Ombudsman being adhered to?

Included in letters in initial stages and in decision letter. Notifications always include information
about TPAS/PO in the decision letter.
Information on TPAS and PO are also given in the IDRP leaflet.
However, the wording should have changed slightly as the disputes team at TPAS is now at the
Ombudsman - the IDRP and example letters we have seen have not been updated to reflect this.

I8

Does the Administering Authority
The processes are not formally reviewed. Sometimes cases arise where they haven't been through
regularly assess the effectiveness of its the proper employer process and that is usually resolved quickly.
arrangements?
The Council do make sure they don't get involved in the detail of the ill health decisions based on
previous experience.
It has been noted that the freeze of transfers due to the change in the factors/SCAPE discount rate
may result in some IDRP cases as there is a backlog.

I9

Does the Administering Authority
Administering Authority doesn't look at stage 1 cases which don't make it to stage 2. Mainly relevant n/a
regularly assess the effectiveness
to ill-health cases where only review would be to see if they met requirements.
where employers carry out a stage one
process?

Page 48

I7

J - Reporting breaches of the law
Legal Requirements
Certain people are required to report breaches of the law to the regulator where they have reasonable cause to believe that:
· a legal duty which is relevant to the administration of the scheme has not been, or is not being, complied with
· the failure to comply is likely to be of material significance to the regulator in the exercise of any of its functions.
People who are subject to the reporting requirement (‘reporters’) for public service pension schemes are:
· scheme managers
· members of pension boards
· any person who is otherwise involved in the administration of a public service pension scheme
· employers: in the case of a multi-employer scheme, any participating employer who becomes aware of a breach should consider their statutory duty to report, regardless of whether the breach relates to, or affects, members who are its employees or those
of other employers
·
·

professional advisers including auditors, actuaries, legal advisers and fund managers: not all public service pension schemes are subject to the same legal requirements to appoint professional advisers, but nonetheless the regulator expects that all
schemes will have professional advisers, either resulting from other legal requirements or simply as a matter of practice
any person who is otherwise involved in advising the managers of the scheme in relation to the scheme.

The report must be made in writing as soon as reasonably practicable.
London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence

Frequency of
Review
When new
members are
appointed.

TPR Requirement

J1

Is the Administering Authority satisfied It is expected that those responsible are aware of their responsibilities as training has been provided
that those responsible for reporting
in induction sessions members have attended.
breaches under the legal requirements
and TPR guidance understand the
However there is not a formal documented process for reporting breaches for the Fund.
requirements?

J2

Does the Administering Authority have The Pensions Manager escalates any issues to Head of Exchequer Services. The administration
Not currently
appropriate procedures in place to
team raises any areas of concern (e.g. at checker level) with the Pensions Manager. Where things
carried out
meet their legal obligations for
are raised at checking level that typically means a breach is avoided.
identifying and assessing breaches?
Processes for monitoring contributions are in place (though could be more formally documented) and
there are also processes in place for checking member benefit calculations and completing benefit
statements, and staff are aware of how to raise and escalate any issues that arise. Advice is sought
from legal and actuarial advisers where required.
However it is recognised that it would be preferable if the procedures were formalised in a procedure
note and/or policy.

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
01/10/2018
Fully
completed

01/10/2018

Fully
completed

Compliant

Notes

Action

Partially
compliant

Partially
compliant

Formal documentation
of processes and policy

Page 49

No.

No.

TPR Requirement

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence

J3

Are breaches being recorded in
accordance with the agreed
procedures?

There is no formal procedure or log for recording breaches of the law.

Frequency of
Review
Not currently
carried out

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
01/10/2018
Fully
completed

Compliant

Notes

Action

Partially
compliant

There is evidence that the employer contributions process is well managed and rare cases of any late
payment is resolved without issue. These aren't reportable to the Regulator and aren't on a breaches
log but are recorded in the contributions monitoring process where it is clear these aren't material, and
the contribution failures are reported in the annual report and accounts.
However the regulatory requirements in relation to breaches cover more than the contribution
payment breaches and there should also be records kept of the administration and
disclosure/timescale related breaches, regardless of how minor they appar to be individually, as an
accumulation of minor breaches can be indicative of an underlying issue.

Page 50

K - Scheme Advisory Board - Guidance on the creation and operation of Local Pension Boards in England and Wales
Legal Requirements
Clause 7 of the Public Service Pensions Act provides that the national Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) may provide advice to scheme managers or pension boards in relation to the effective and efficient administration and management of the scheme.

It also provides that a person to whom advice is given by virtue of subsection (1) or (2) must have regard to the advice.
The Scheme Advisory Board has published guidance on the creation and operation of Local Pension Boards in England and Wales which incorporates a number of action point check lists at the end of some of the sections. The following are the items in those
checklists.
SAB
London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence
Section
5
Approved March 2015 by full Council

Last Review
Date
n/a

Check
Compliant
Completed
Fully completed Fully compliant

The first meeting was held on 31 July 2015 (with 3
subsequent meetings per annum since then)

One - off at
commencement

n/a

Fully completed Fully compliant

6

Thre is a training policy which covers PB and PPIC, for
which HoPFI has responsibility, this sets out knowledge
and understanding requirements in line with TPR
requirements and is based on CIPFA requirements

Not specified

01/09/2017

Fully completed Fully compliant

A Local Pension Board should
designate a person to take
responsibility for ensuring that the
knowledge and understanding policy
and framework is developed and
implemented.

6

HoPFI has responsibility but this isn't specified in the
policy.

Not specified

01/09/2017

Fully completed Partially
compliant

K5

The Administering Authority should
offer access to high quality induction
training and provide relevant ongoing
training to the appointed members of
the Local Pension Board.

6

This is in place - see section B for details

Ongoing - in each 04/10/2018
meeting and
business
planning.

Fully completed Fully compliant

K6

A Local Pension Board should prepare 6
(and keep updated) a list of the core
documents recording policy about the
administration of the Fund and make
the list and documents (as well as the
rules of the LGPS) accessible to its
members.

This is set out in the policy.

Not specified

01/09/2017

Fully completed Fully compliant

Members of a Local Pension Board
should undertake a personal training
needs analysis and put in place a
personalised training plan.

There currently are not individual needs assessments but When new PB
the training needs of the Group are identified in Business members join
Planning so that the training is delivered before the item is
in consideration by PPIC or PB.
HoPFI meets with new Chair and Deputy to explain
requirements and can establish if any knowledge needed.
.

01/10/2018

Fully completed Partially
compliant

SAB Requirement

K1

Administering Authority to have
approved the establishment (including
Terms of Reference) of the Local
Pension Board by 1 April 2015.

K2

The Local Pension Board must be
5
operational (i.e. had its first meeting no
later than 4 months after the 1 April
2015).

K3

Once established a Local Pension
Board should adopt a knowledge and
understanding policy and framework
(possibly in conjunction with the
Pensions Committee if appropriate).

K4

K7

6

In addition, the HoFPI has gone through with the PB
members at their meeting and explained the key
documents (main focus was on the accounts which
includes many key documents within it).

Notes

Action

Update policy to include this
information.

Page 51

Frequency of
Review
One - off at
commencement

No.

SAB
London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence
Section
7
Council Code of Conduct includes reference to conflicts however, this is currently not linked to the PB Terms of
Reference.

Frequency of
Review
Unknown

Last Review
Date
Unknown

Check
Compliant
Completed
Fully completed Partially
compliant

Yes - see sections B and C

When new PB
members join

01/10/2018

Fully completed Fully compliant

7

The interests are held on the Council website (there are
no declarations on the site for the PB but there is a site
location for them). The meeting minutes are a formal
record of interests which are declared at each meeting
and a register is kept.

Quarterly

01/10/2018

Fully completed Fully compliant

Consider adding link to this on fund
website.

An Administering Authority should
agree the ongoing reporting
arrangements between the Local
Pension Board and the Administering
Authority.

8

Not formally set up currently. HoFPI will draft the report
Not in place
annually, PB chair to finalise and this will then go in report
and accounts. TOR only states that an annual report on
the work of the Board will be included in the Fund's annual
report, but no formal Annual report prepared – HoPFI
mentioned reference included in Pension Annual Report
but not clear this is in 2018 accounts. An Annual report for
Pension Board is included in the Council’s Forward Plan
to go Full Council in May 2019.

n/a

Fully completed Non-compliant

Annual report to be produced

K12

A Local Pension Board should
understand the Administering
Authority’s requirements, controls and
policies for FOIA compliance so that
the Local Pension Board is aware of
them and can comply with them.

8

Not completed. All FOI’s go through the Council's
Complaints team and all over due answers are reviewed.

n/a

01/10/2018

Fully completed Non-compliant

Report to PB on FoI compliance

K13

A Local Pension Board should put in
8
place arrangements to meet the duty of
its members to report breaches of law.

While administering authority staff know the right
procedures and need for escalation where breaches
occur, there are no formal policies or procedures and this
has not been covered specifically for PB or PPIC.

Not currently
carried out

n/a

Fully completed Non-compliant

A breaches procedure and log
should be in place and all should be
aware of responsibilities under the
policy. Beaches could be a
standing item for PPIC and/or PB.

K14

A Local Pension Board should consider 8
(with its Administering Authority) the
need to publish an annual report of its
activities.

Not in place but being implemented. See K11

n/a

n/a

Fully completed Non-compliant

K15

An Administering Authority should
consult on, revise and publish its
governance compliance statement to
include details of the terms, structure
and operational procedures relating to
its Local Pension Board.

The published governance compliance statement does not Annual
include the details required in relation to the LPB. This
was identified as an action to include in the 2015 TPR
Compliance review.

31/03/2018

Fully completed Partially
compliant

No.

SAB Requirement

K8

An Administering Authority should
prepare a code of conduct and a
conflicts policy for its Local Pension
Board for approval in accordance with
the Administering Authority’s
constitution and at the first meeting of
the Local Pension Board. The Local
Pension Board should keep these
under regular review.

K9

Training should be arranged for officers 7
and members of a Local Pension Board
on conduct and conflicts.

K10

A Local Pension Board should
establish and maintain a register of
interests for its members.

K11

Action
Consider linking to PB Terms of
Reference

Include additional PB terms,
structure and operational
procedures detail in 2018/19 and all
future statements.

Page 52

8

Notes

The Pension Regulator’s and Scheme Advisory Board Compliance Checklist
Date of Completion:

20/07/2021

Contents
Introduction
Summary Results Dashboard
A - Reporting Duties
B - Knowledge and Understanding
C - Conflicts of interest
D - Publishing information about schemes
E - Managing risk and internal controls
F - Maintaining accurate member data
G - Maintaining contributions
H - Providing information to members and others
I - Internal Dispute Resolution
J - Reporting breaches of the law
K - Scheme Advisory Board - Guidance on the creation and operation of Local Pension Boards in England and Wales

Page 53

Introduction
This document outlines how the London Borough of Enfield complies with the Pensions Regulator’s (TPR) Code of Practice No 14 Governance and administration of public
service pension schemes ('the TPR Code') in relation to the management of the London Borough of Enfield LGPS Pension Fund which is part of the Local Government Pension
Scheme (LGPS). It will be updated regularly by officers of the Fund and reported annually to the Pension Panel and LGPS Local Pension Board.
This document highlights all the key elements of the TPR Code and then evidences whether the London Borough of Enfield meets these areas of best practice. As part of this
evidence it shows when the element was last checked and whether, at that point, it was considered fully, partially or not compliant. Where they are partially or not compliant, it
also highlights whether the Council have identified actions to be carried out to improve their current practices. Where an element is not yet active, the commentary will generally
still highlight where advanced progress is being made.
Those reading this document should be mindful that the TPR Code applies equally to all public service pension schemes and therefore it is generic in nature. There may be a
number of elements that are more specifically stipulated within LGPS legislation and it is not the purpose of this compliance checklist to consider that level of detail.

Further, the London Borough of Enfield may also incorporate key elements of national guidance from the LGPS Scheme Advisory Board into this compliance checklist. This
version contains the checklists included as part of the Shadow Scheme Advisory Boards “Guidance on the creation and operation of Local Pension Boards in England and
Wales”.

Key
Frequency of review and last review date: Where a process, policy or practice is officially reviewed at a set interval, the actual interval will be shown as well as the last
interval date. However, in many circumstances processes and procedures are ongoing and part of the day – to - day operation of the Fund. In these circumstances, an annual
check will be carried out to ensure that the ongoing process meets the TPR Code expectations and therefore the date shown will be the date that annual check was carried out
and the frequency will be shown as “ongoing (annual check)”.

Completed:

Compliant:

Fully compliant

In progress

Partially compliant

Not started

Non-compliant

Not yet relevant

Net yet relevant

Employers - Fully
compliant
Employers - Partially
compliant
Employers - Noncompliant
Not yet relevant

Definitions:
PSPA13
LGPS
TPR
TPR Code

Public Service Pensions Act 2013
Local Government Pension Scheme
The Pensions Regulator
The Pensions Regulator’s Code of Practice No 14 Governance and administration of public service pension schemes

Scheme Manager

For the London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund, this is Enfield Council

Administering
Authority
IDRP
SAB
Panel
PB
HoPFI

The LGPS specific term for Scheme Manager. For the London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund, this is the London Borough of Enfield, also referred to as
Enfield Council.
Internal Dispute Resolution Procedure
The national LGPS Scheme Advisory Board
Enfield Pensions Policy and Investment Panel
London Borough of Enfield Local Pension Board
Head of Pension Fund Investment

Page 54

Fully completed

Where responsibility
relates to
employers:

Summary Dashboard
A dashboard showing the summary of the results of the latest compliance checklist is shown below:
No.

Completed

Compliant

No.

Reporting Duties

Completed

Compliant

No.

Completed

Compliant

Risk and Internal Controls

A1

Fully completed

Fully compliant

E1

Fully completed

Fully compliant

H7

Fully completed

Fully compliant

A2

Fully completed

Fully compliant

E2

Fully completed

Fully compliant

H8

Fully completed

Partially compliant

A3

Fully completed

Fully compliant

E3

Fully completed

Fully compliant

H9

Fully completed

Partially compliant

A4

Fully completed

Fully compliant

E4

Fully completed

Fully compliant

H10

Fully completed

Fully compliant

Knowledge and Understanding

E5

Fully completed

Fully compliant

H11

Fully completed

Fully compliant

B1

Fully completed

Fully compliant

E6

Fully completed

Fully compliant

H12

Fully completed

Partially compliant

B2

Fully completed

Fully compliant

E7

Fully completed

Fully compliant

H13

Fully completed

Fully compliant

B3

Fully completed

Fully compliant

E8

Fully completed

Partially compliant

B4

Fully completed

Fully compliant

B5

Fully completed

Fully compliant

F1

Fully completed

B6

Fully completed

Fully compliant

F2

B7

Fully completed

Fully compliant

B8

Fully completed

B9

Internal Dispute Resolution
Fully completed

Fully compliant

Fully compliant

I2

Fully completed

Non-compliant

Fully completed

Fully compliant

I3

Fully completed

Partially compliant

F3

Fully completed

Partially compliant

I4

Fully completed

Fully compliant

Fully compliant

F4

Fully completed

Fully compliant

I5

Fully completed

Fully compliant

Fully completed

Fully compliant

F5

Fully completed

Fully compliant

I6

Fully completed

Partially compliant

B10

Fully completed

Fully compliant

F6

Fully completed

Fully compliant

I7

Fully completed

Fully compliant

B11

Fully completed

Fully compliant

F7

Fully completed

Fully compliant

I8

Fully completed

Non-compliant

B12

Fully completed

Fully compliant

F8

Fully completed

Fully compliant

I9

Fully completed

Fully compliant

F9

Fully completed

Partially compliant

Conflicts of Interest

Reporting Breaches

C1

Fully completed

Fully compliant

F10

Fully completed

Fully compliant

J1

Fully completed

Fully compliant

C2

Fully completed

Fully compliant

F11

Fully completed

Fully compliant

J2

Fully completed

Fully compliant

C3

Fully completed

Fully compliant

J3

Fully completed

Fully compliant

C4

Fully completed

Fully compliant

G1

Fully completed

Fully compliant

Scheme Advisory Board Requirements

C5

Fully completed

Fully compliant

G2

Fully completed

Fully compliant

K1

Fully completed

Fully compliant

C6

Fully completed

Fully compliant

G3

Fully completed

Fully compliant

K2

Fully completed

Fully compliant

C7

Fully completed

Fully compliant

G4

Fully completed

Fully compliant

K3

Fully completed

Fully compliant

C8

Fully completed

Fully compliant

G5

Fully completed

Fully compliant

K4

Fully completed

Fully compliant

C9

Fully completed

Fully compliant

G6

Fully completed

Fully compliant

K5

Fully completed

Fully compliant

C10

Fully completed

Fully compliant

G7

Fully completed

Fully compliant

K6

Fully completed

Fully compliant

C11

Fully completed

Fully compliant

G8

Fully completed

Fully compliant

K7

Fully completed

Fully compliant

G9

Fully completed

Partially compliant

K8

Fully completed

Fully compliant

K9

Fully completed

Fully compliant

Publishing Information

Maintaining Contributions

D1

Fully completed

Fully compliant

D2

Fully completed

Partially compliant

H1

Fully completed

Partially compliant

K10

Fully completed

Fully compliant

D3

Fully completed

Fully compliant

H2

Fully completed

Partially compliant

K11

Fully completed

Partially compliant

D4

Fully completed

Fully compliant

H3

Fully completed

Fully compliant

K12

Fully completed

Partially compliant

H4

Fully completed

Partially compliant

K13

Fully completed

Fully compliant

H5

Fully completed

Fully compliant

K14

Fully completed

Partially compliant

H6

In progress

Fully compliant

K15

Fully completed

Fully compliant

Providing Information to Members and Others

Page 55

I1

Maintaining Accurate Member Data

A - Reporting Duties
Note the requirements in this section are not included in the TPR Code but they are a fundamental to the relationship with TPR.

Legal Requirements
All public service pension schemes have to be registered with TPR. In addition, all schemes must provide a regular scheme return to TPR, containing prescribed information. A return is required when the scheme receives a scheme return notice from the regulator. The scheme

Note the requirements in this section are not included in the TPR Code but are a requirement for all schemes.
No.

TPR Requirement

Notes from TPR Code

A1

Is your scheme registered with the
Pension Regulator?

Managers of public service pension schemes that are ‘registrable schemes’ must register their scheme with the Pensions Regulator
(TPR). A ‘registrable scheme’ is an occupational or personal pension scheme which is registered with HMRC and has more than one
member.
HMRC have indicated that the new arrangements for the 2014 LGPS in England and Wales and the 2015 LGPS in Northern Ireland will
not be treated by them as new pension schemes, but as part of the schemes that were already in place. Where a scheme doesn’t need to
be registered further with HMRC, no further registration of that scheme with TPR is required, as existing schemes should already be
registered with TPR.
However, the managers of these schemes (which may be the local administering authorities) should ensure that their scheme (or part of
the scheme for which they are responsible) is properly registered with us. They must also let us know of any changes to their scheme’s
(or part of the scheme’s) ‘registrable information’ and provide up-to-date information as soon as possible.
Managers must provide ‘registrable information’ when they register with TPR. ‘Registrable information’ includes details about:
- the scheme
- the managers of the scheme
- employers.

Is the information held on the Pensions It is a legal requirement for managers of a scheme to notify TPR of changes to their scheme’s registrable information as soon as possible,
Regulator's website about the scheme and they can be fined if they don't do so.
up-to-date?
The TPR's Exchange online service is available to view and update schemes' registrable information online.

A3

Have you completed this latest Scheme TPR issues bespoke scheme returns for public service schemes to complete. These will ask for registrable and other information on an
Return in the required timescale?
annual basis. This is in addition to the ongoing duty for managers to notify TPR of changes to registrable information as soon as possible.
These typically include membership, employer, administration and governance details, and fund contact details. These are issued for
completion in around September/October of each year.

A4

Have you responded to the latest TPR
public service pension scheme survey
/questionnaire?

TPR issues annual surveys to gather information in relation to how schemes demonstrate best practice in administration and governance.
Surveys are currently still voluntary, but Funds are expected to complete them as the completion itself is an indicator of good governance
and compliance with Regulator requirements.

Page 56

A2

A return is required when the scheme receives a scheme return notice from the regulator. The scheme manager must also keep the regulator informed of any changes to registrable scheme details.

Frequency of
Review
One off - i.e. is
registered

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
n/a
Fully
completed

The number of Employers does not change significantly (there are usually a very small
number, if any, exiting employers each year) and so it is considered that an annual
update for the scheme return is a reasonable approach. We therefore consider this to
be fully compliant.

Annual

07/07/2021

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

The 2020 scheme return was submitted

Annual

07/07/2021

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

The last survey completed was December 2020

Annual

07/07/2021

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence
Aon has checked with the Regulator and the Enfield Fund is registered - further
evidence is that scheme returns and surveys are sent to be completed.

Compliant

Notes

Fully
compliant

Action
Consider having a
specific individual
rather than the generic
pensions mailbox as
the key contact on the
Regulator's exchange
system.

The contact for such surveys/returns is zpensions@enfield.gov.uk. It may be possible
that important information is not seen or dealt with using a generic mailbox so the fund
could consider having a specific individual as the key contact on the Regulator's
exchange system.
The Head of Exchequer Services, Head of Pension Fund Investment (HoPFI) and the
Principal Exchequer Officer have their own log in to the Exchange site to make
changes.

Page 57

The Regulator is likely to pay
particular attention in their case work
in coming years to those Funds who
do not carry out basic governance
and administration activities,
including the annual survey.

Suggest that the
2018/19 survey is
completed (issued 5
November 2018) - the
results of this TPR
compliance review
should help with the
responses to the
survey

B - Knowledge and Understanding
Legal Requirements
A member of the pension board of a public service pension scheme must be conversant with:
· the rules of the scheme, and
· any document recording policy about the administration of the scheme which is for the time being adopted in relation to the scheme.
A member of a pension board must have knowledge and understanding of:
· the law relating to pensions, and
· any other matters which are prescribed in regulations.
The degree of knowledge and understanding required is that appropriate for the purposes of enabling the individual to properly exercise the functions of a member of the pension board.
TPR Requirement

Notes from TPR Code

B1

Are there policies and arrangements in 38 - Schemes should establish and maintain policies and arrangements for acquiring and retaining knowledge and understanding to
place to support pension board
support their pension board members.
members in acquiring and retaining
knowledge and understanding?

B2

Has a person been designated to take
responsibility for ensuring the
framework is developed and
implemented?

38 - Schemes should designate a person to take responsibility for ensuring that a framework is developed and implemented

Page 58

No.

No.

TPR Requirement

Notes from TPR Code

B3

Is the Fund providing assistance to
pension board members to determine
the degree of knowledge and
understanding required?

48 - Schemes should assist individual pension board members to determine the degree of knowledge and understanding that is sufficient
for them to effectively carry out their role, responsibilities and duties as a pension board member
40 - Being ‘conversant’ means having a working knowledge of the scheme regulations and policies, so that pension board members can
use them effectively when carrying out their duties
49 - Pension board members must have a working knowledge of their scheme regulations and documented administration policies. They
should understand their scheme regulations and policies in enough detail to know where they are relevant to an issue and where a
particular provision or policy may apply
50 - Pension board members must have knowledge and understanding of the law relating to pensions (and any other prescribed matters)
sufficient for them to exercise the functions of their role. Pension board members should be aware of the range and extent of the law
relating to pensions which applies to their scheme, and have sufficient understanding of the content and effect of that law to recognise
when and how it impacts on their responsibilities and duties.
52 - Pension board members’ breadth of knowledge and understanding should be sufficient to allow them to understand fully and
challenge any information or advice they are given. They should understand how that information or advice impacts on any issue or
decision relevant to their responsibilities and duties.
53 - Pension board members should ensure that they have the appropriate degree of knowledge and understanding of funding and
investment matters relating to their scheme to enable them to effectively carry out their role. This includes having a working knowledge of
provisions in their scheme regulations and administration policies that relate to funding and investment, as well as knowledge and
understanding of relevant law relating to pensions.

B4

Are the roles and responsibilities of
47 - The roles, responsibilities and duties of pension boards and their individual members will vary between pension schemes. Matters for
pension boards and members of
which the pension board is responsible will be set out in scheme regulations. Clear guidance on the roles, responsibilities and duties of
pension board clearly set out in scheme pension boards and the members of those boards should be set out in scheme documentation.
documentation?
48 - Schemes should assist individual pension board members to determine the degree of knowledge and understanding that is sufficient
for them to effectively carry out their role, responsibilities and duties as a pension board member.

B5

Are pension board members aware of
their legal responsibility in terms of
Knowledge and Understanding?

39 - It is the responsibility of individual pension board members to ensure that they have the appropriate degree of knowledge and
understanding to enable them to properly exercise their functions as a member of the pension board.

Page 59

54 - All board members should attain appropriate knowledge so that they are able to understand the relevant law in relation to their
scheme and role. The degree of knowledge and understanding required of pension board members may vary according to the role of the
board member, as well as the expertise of the board member. For example, a board member who is also a pensions law expert (for
instance, as a result of their day job) should have a greater level of knowledge than that considered appropriate for board members
without this background.

No.

TPR Requirement

Notes from TPR Code

B6

Have all pension board members got
access to copies of the scheme rules
and relevant Fund documentation?

40 - Pension board members must be conversant with their scheme rules, which are primarily found in the scheme regulations, and
documented administration policies currently in force for their pension scheme.
42 - The following are examples of administration policies which the regulator considers to be particularly pertinent and would expect to
be documented where relevant to a pension scheme, and with which pension board members must therefore be conversant where
applicable. This list is not exhaustive:
- any scheme-approved policies relating to:
A) conflicts of interest and the register of interests
B) record-keeping
C) internal dispute resolution
D) reporting breaches
E) maintaining contributions to the scheme
F) the appointment of pension board members
- risk assessments/management and risk register policies for the scheme
- scheme booklets, announcements and other key member and employer communications, which describe scheme policies and
procedures
- the roles, responsibilities and duties of the scheme manager, pension board and individual pension board members
- terms of reference, structure and operational policies of the pension board and/or any sub-committee
- statements of policy about the exercise of discretionary functions
- statements of policy about communications with members and scheme employers
- the pension administration strategy, or equivalent, and
- any admission body (or equivalent) policies.
43 - Documents which record policy about the administration of the scheme include those relating to funding and investment matters. For
example, where relevant they must be conversant with the statement of investment principles and the funding strategy statement.

B7

Is there an up-to-date list of the Fund
specific documents with which pension conversant. This will enable them to effectively carry out their role. They should make sure that both the list and the documents are
board members need to be conversant available in accessible formats.
in?

B8

Are all pension board members
55 - Pension board members should invest sufficient time in their learning and development alongside their other responsibilities and
investing sufficient time in their learning duties. Schemes should provide pension board members with the relevant training and support that they require. Training is an important
and development?
part of the individual’s role and will help to ensure that they have the necessary knowledge and understanding to effectively meet their
legal obligations.

Page 60

44 - Pension board members must also be conversant with any other documented policies relating to the administration of the scheme.
For example, where applicable, they must be conversant with policies relating to:
- the contribution rate or amount (or the range/variability where there is no one single rate or amount) payable by employers participating
in the scheme
- statements of assurance (for example, assurance reports from administrators)
- third party contracts and service level agreements
- stewardship reports from outsourced service providers (for example, those performing outsourced activities such as scheme
administration),
including
aboutand
compliance
issues list of the documents with which they consider pension board members need to be
46 - Schemes should
prepare
keep an updated

No.

TPR Requirement

Notes from TPR Code

B9

Does the Fund offer pre-appointment
training for new pension board
members or mentoring by existing
members?

56 - Newly appointed pension board members should be aware that their responsibilities and duties as a pension board member begin
from the date they take up their post. Therefore, they should immediately start to familiarise themselves with the scheme regulations,
documents recording policy about the administration of the scheme and relevant pensions law. Schemes should offer pre-appointment
training or arrange for mentoring by existing pension board members.
This can also ensure that historical and scheme-specific knowledge is retained when pension board members change.

B10

Is there a process in place for regularly
assessing the pension board members'
level of knowledge and understanding
is sufficient for their role,
responsibilities and duties?

57 - Pension board members should undertake a personal training needs analysis and regularly review their skills, competencies and
knowledge to identify gaps or weaknesses. They should use a personalised training plan to document and address these promptly.
58 - Learning programmes should be flexible, allowing pension board members to update particular areas of learning where required and
to acquire new areas of knowledge in the event of any change.

Are records of learning activities being 60 - Schemes should keep appropriate records of the learning activities of individual pension board members and the board as a whole.
maintained?
This will help pension board members to demonstrate steps they have taken to comply with legal requirements and how they have
mitigated risks associated with knowledge gaps. A good external learning programme will maintain records of the learning activities of
individuals on the programme or of group activities, if these have taken place.

B12

Have the pension board members
completed the Pension Regulator's
toolkit for training on the Code of
Practice number 14?

59 - The regulator has provided an e-learning programme to help meet the needs of pension board members, whether or not they have
access to other learning.
If schemes choose alternative learning programmes they should be confident that those programmes:
- cover the type and degree of knowledge and understanding required
- reflect the legal requirements, and
- are delivered within an appropriate timescale.

Page 61

B11

Frequency of
Review
The Fund has a training policy for Pension Policy and Investment Committee (PPIC) Annually.
and Pension Board (PB) members - though this is not on the Fund or the Council
website. This policy include training objectives, details of how training will be
documented and how attendance at events will be recorded and monitored. With
self assessments on an annual basis to identify needs.
London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
07/07/2021
Fully
completed

Compliant
Fully
compliant

Notes

Action
The policy should be reviewed
every three years at least, specify
this in the policy.
The policy should ideally include
the objectives of the policy, and
specify how training will be
recorded and monitored.

There are various processes in place to ensure members can obtain relevant
knowledge and understanding. This involves offering attendance to induction
training events, attendance of PB members at PPIC meetings (as observers), and
identifying training needs in business planning so that relevant training is provided
before PPIC and PB meetings.

FMPT is responsible for training, the Training Policy and its implementation,
including the maintenance of the monitoring - however this responsibility is not set
out in the training policy.

Annually.

07/07/2021

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

Include responsibility in policy.

Page 62

The FMPT meet with new Chairs of the PPIC/PB to help them understand their role
and about the Fund before their first meeting. The Chair of the PB attends the
PPIC meetings to give updates on their monitoring activities and work in progress.

Frequency of
Review
The Training Policy says the members should do the TPR online training toolkit -this Annual
is a requirement in first year - the FMPT will review if this has been completed by
new members by the end of the year (2021).
Other requirements are set out in the Training Policy which indicates the level of
knowledge required. The policy specified that an annual training needs assessment
will be carried out which will feed into training plans.
London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
07/07/2021
Fully
completed

Compliant

Notes

Fully
compliant

We haven't seen evidence
of the Business Plan but if
this is in place and
regularly updated it
provides a useful tool for
identifying knowledge
requirements.

Action

The PPIC training is based on what's coming up in meetings, and similar approach
is take for the PB, but focused on governance - training is carried out at every
meeting which helps indicate the level of knowledge required. All future activities
and therefore what knowledge is needed is set out in the 3 year business plan, eg
ABS.
New members attend induction training (e.g. provided by Aon or LGA), which gives
indication of knowledge requirements.

Page 63

Core functions of the board, terms of office and duties are included in the Board's
Anually
Terms of Reference which has been formally agreed. The ToR is based on the SAB
board draft TOR template, but has been tailored appropriately to Enfield's
circumstances.

07/07/2021

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

Consider adding more detail on
requirements for existing members
into policy e.g. to attend at least a
certain number of training events
each year.

Each time new
07/07/2021
member
appointed, and
TPR Compliance
review carried out

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

Add legal requirements (for PB)
and consider extending to PC in
formal policy.

Requirements for training and knowledge are also set out in the Training Policy. This
is more focused on new members than existing members (existing members are
encouraged but not required to attend general awareness events).
Enfield confirmed members are told about this on appointment
These responsibilities are mentioned in Terms of Reference, so PB members are
aware of their responsibilities

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence
New members are given the terms of reference and Fund policies etc, lots of these
are in one place in the annual report.

Frequency of
Review
Each time TPR
Compliance
reviewed

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
07/07/2021
Fully
completed

Compliant

Notes

Action

Fully
compliant

Fund documents such as Funding Strategy Statement and Investment Strategy
Statement are also on the Fund website: https://new.enfield.gov.uk/pensions/forms/
which also has useful links to LGPS member website, LGPS Regulations etc.
However the Terms of Reference for the PB are not on the website.
Each set of meeting minutes from the Pension Policy and Investment Committee is
circulated to PB members, and they are read at PB meetings.
The list of key documents is set out in the training policy.

Page 64

The training policy drafted sets out the requirements (and this is given to existing PB Not specified in
members and new PB members when they join). A formal list of documents is
policy. Suggest
included in the training policy.
annually.

07/07/2021

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

07/07/2021

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

The key documents such as annual report and funding and investment strategies
are available on the website (the annual report includes strategies and policy
statements but the annual report on the website is more than a year out of date.
HoFPI mentions the key items when he distributes the annual accounts in the
meeting with new members - and explains which bits of the accounts to focus on.
Bite-sized training is currently carried out at each PB meeting according to need and Annual
what is to be discussed in the course of the meeting.
Employee members have gone on Unison training and new members attended Aon
induction course. Chair has had significant training.
Provided members attend the meetings, this is considered sufficient to meet
requirements.

Suggest training plans are agreed
when annual business planning
exercise takes place.
Suggest method of monitoring of
training and documenting the level
of investment of time in training is
included in formal training policy.

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence
Pre-appointment training is not currently provided, and nor is mentoring as this is
difficult to arrange and the commencement of the role is very soon after
selection/appointment. However newly appointed board members are invited to
attend Committee and Board meetings and training events taking place before their
first meeting to develop their knowledge of the Fund. Board members can now
remain in meeting even if not open to the public.

Frequency of
Review
Each time new
member
appointed

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
07/07/2021
Fully
completed

Compliant

Notes

Action

Fully
compliant

An individual approach is Ensure approach is documented in
taken to new appointments formal training policy
which ensures the
members are as wellinformed as possible which
we believe to be compliant.

When appointed, members have a meeting with the PB Chair as soon as possible in
order to explain the PB member's responsibilities.
In addition, the Chair of the PB did attend the CIPFA / Barnet Waddingham training
before taking the Chair position, and attended induction training provided by Aon
before first PB meeting.
The FMPT will also visit the new school representative to explain how the PB works
before their first meeting. The PPIC Chair presents information on the last PPIC to
every PB to inform what the PB will look at. The Chair of PB also attends PPIC as
an observer.
A Training log is maintained - PPIC and PB members email the HoPFI about training Annual
attended, who keeps these on record and puts it in in annual report. The draft report
on training attended is provided to members before the accounts are produced give
members time to attend training to increase knowledge if required.

07/07/2021

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

Formal regular assessment of knowledge and understanding against required
competencies (e.g. CIPFA) does not appear to be taking place.
Annual

07/07/2021

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

The PB have been advised to carry out these modules and this is included in the
training policy. Members have a year to complete the modules after being
appointed, and will inform FMPT when completed.

Twice-yearly

07/07/2021

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

The FMPT is considering completing modules in group training sessions as a
"bitesize" approach.

.

Partially compliant as it's
not been confirmed that all
members have completed
this.

Page 65

The FMPT collects the information about attendance in emails from the PPIC and
PB members and collates this into the annual report and accounts on an annual
basis. Members are given the information before the report is published to give
them time to complete further training if felt necessary.

C - Conflicts of interest
Legal Requirements
The Public Service Pensions Act 2013 sets out the legal requirements for scheme managers and pension boards for conflicts of interest.
In relation to the pension board, scheme regulations must include provision requiring the scheme manager to be satisfied:
·
that a person to be appointed as a member of the pension board does not have a conflict of interest and
·
from time to time, that none of the members of the pension board has a conflict of interest.
Scheme regulations must require each member or proposed member of a pension board to provide the scheme manager with such information as the scheme manager reasonably requires for the purposes of meeting the requirements referred to above.
Scheme regulations must include provision requiring the pension board to include employer representatives and member representatives in equal numbers.
No.

TPR Requirement

Notes from TPR Code

C1

Does the Fund have a conflict of
interest policy and procedure, which
include identifying, monitoring and
managing potential conflicts of interest?

76 - Schemes should ensure that there is an agreed and documented conflicts policy and procedure, which includes identifying,
monitoring and managing potential conflicts of interest. They should keep this under regular review. Policies and procedures should
include examples of scenarios giving rise to conflicts of interest, how a conflict might arise specifically in relation to a pension board
member and the process that pension board members and scheme managers should follow to address a situation where board members
are subject to a potential or actual conflict of interest.
86 - Schemes should establish and operate procedures which ensure that pension boards are not compromised by potentially conflicted
members. They should consider and determine the roles and responsibilities of pension boards and individual board members carefully to
ensure that conflicts of interest do not arise, nor are perceived to have arisen.
Toolkit module - The policy should:
- outline the steps to be followed by pension board members and scheme managers to address a situation where board members have a
potential or actual conflict of interest
- include a three-stage process to identify, monitor and manage potential conflicts of interest
- include examples of scenarios giving rise to conflicts

Do pension board members have a
clear understanding of their role, the
circumstances in which they may have
a conflict of interest and how to
manage potential conflicts?

78 - Schemes should cultivate a culture of openness and transparency. They should recognise the need for continual consideration of
potential conflicts. Disclosure of interests which have the potential to become conflicts of interest should not be ignored. Pension board
members should have a clear understanding of their role and the circumstances in which they may find themselves in a position of conflict
of interest. They should know how to manage potential conflicts.

C3

Have all Pension Board members
79 - Pension board members, and people who are proposed to be appointed to a pension board, must provide scheme managers with
provided appropriate information for the information that they reasonably require to be satisfied that pension board members and proposed members do not have a conflict of
Administering Authority to determine
interest.
whether a conflict exists (on
appointment and from time to time)?

C4

Does the appointment process for
pension board members require
disclosure of interests and
responsibilities which could become
conflicts of interest?

80 - Schemes should ensure that pension board members are appointed under procedures that require them to disclose any interests,
including other responsibilities, which could become conflicts of interest and which may adversely affect their suitability for the role, before
they are appointed.
81 - All terms of engagement, for example appointment letters, should include a clause requiring disclosure of all interests, including any
other responsibilities, which have the potential to become conflicts of interest, as soon as they arise. All interests disclosed should be
recorded. See the section of this code on ‘Monitoring potential conflicts’.
82 - Schemes should take time to consider what important matters or decisions are likely to be considered during, for example, the year
ahead and identify and consider any potential or actual conflicts of interest that may arise in the future. Pension board members should be
notified as soon as practically possible and mitigations should be put in place to prevent these conflicts from materialising.

Page 66

C2

No.

TPR Requirement

Notes from TPR Code

C5

Is the conflicts policy regularly
reviewed?

76 - The conflicts policy and procedure should be regularly reviewed.

C6

Does the Fund have a conflicts register 83 - As part of their risk assessment process, schemes should identify, evaluate and manage dual interests which have the potential to
and it is circulated for ongoing review become conflicts of interest and pose a risk to the scheme and possibly members, if they are not mitigated. Schemes should evaluate the
and published?
nature of any dual interests and assess the likely consequences were a conflict of interest to materialise.
84 - A register of interests should provide a simple and effective means of recording and monitoring dual interests and responsibilities.
Schemes should also capture decisions about how to manage potential conflicts of interest in their risk registers or elsewhere. The
register of interests and other relevant documents should be circulated to the pension board for ongoing review and published, for
example on a scheme’s website.
Toolkit module - When managing conflicts of interest, it is essential that all conflicts of interest are recorded and the action taken is
documented. The scheme should be able to demonstrate that records of conflicts are kept and that the register is monitored and reviewed
regularly.

Is appropriate information included in
the register?

Toolkit module - The register should outline areas where potential conflicts may arise and include details of:
- all obligations owed by pension boards
- all corporate hospitality offered (whether or not it has been accepted)
- personal financial interests (such as significant investments in particular organisations)
- other employment (for example where a pension board works with more than one scheme or where the spouse/family member of a
pension board member works for an organisation which is bidding to provide services to the scheme)
- actions or mitigations taken.

C8

Is there a standing item on the agenda 85 - Conflicts of interest should be included as an opening agenda item at board meetings and revisited during the meeting, where
for declaring conflicts of interest?
necessary. This provides an opportunity for those present to declare any interests, including other responsibilities, which have the
potential to become conflicts of interest, and to minute discussions about how they will be managed to prevent an actual conflict arising.
Toolkit module - At the start of all pension board meetings it is good practice for pension board members to declare whether they have
any new conflicts of interest, either due to a change in circumstances, or because of a particular item that is to be considered at the
meeting.

C9

Do those involved know how to report a Toolkit module - The policy should set this out.
conflict of interest?

C10

Is the number of employer and member 90 - While scheme regulations must require pension boards to have an equal number of employer and member representatives, there is
representatives on the board in line
flexibility to design arrangements which best suit each scheme.
with legal requirements?

C11

Is the board made up of the appropriate 91 - Arrangements should be designed with regard to the principles of proportionality, fairness and transparency, and with the aim of
mix of representatives in order to
ensuring that a pension board has the right balance of skills, experience and representation (for example, of membership categories and
minimise potential conflicts?
categories of employers participating in the scheme). Those responsible for appointing members to a pension board should also consider
the mix of skills and experience needed on the pension board in order for the board to operate effectively in light of its particular role,
responsibilities and duties.

Page 67

C7

onably requires for the purposes of meeting the requirements referred to above.

Frequency of
Review
There is a CoI policy which is detailed in the Council Code of Conduct which applies to PB Annualy
and PPIC members - this covers identification/declaration requirements but not all points
recommended by TPR guidance. This is not on the Fund website and is not a Fund
document.
London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
30/11/2020
Fully
completed

Compliant

Notes

Action

Fully
compliant

Council sends register of interests to members to complete.
Standing item on PPIC and PB meetings to identify conflicts.

Their role is set out in the TOR which all members have been provided with, and
responsibilities also set out in the COI policy.

Whenever new
members
appointed

Page 68

Yes - this was covered at PB meeting in November.

07/07/2021

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

Quarterly i.e.
07/07/2021
each PB meeting

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

It would be useful if the
Fund ensured annual
declarations were on
the Fund website for all
members (not just
Council staff)

Each time new
member
appointed

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

Suggest declarations
are requested at
appointment/interview
phase for future PB
and PPIC members.

Inclusion of conflicts as standing item in meetings ensures members understand the
requirements.
Standing item on each PPIC and PB meeting.
FMPT checks declarations of interests when member appointed, to make sure can carry
out the role without conflict.
Declarations are completed annually for Council staff via an annual questionnaire, and any
hospitality or gifts are declared at the time of offer.
No formal pre-appointment declaration of interest takes place currently.
However the FMPT checks declarations of interests when member appointed, to make
sure can carry out the role without conflict.

07/07/2021

Frequency of
Review
annually

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
07/07/2021
Fully
completed

annually

07/07/2021

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

The PPIC and PB declarations in meetings are just shown on each meeting minutes.

At each meeting, 07/07/2021
i.e. quarterly

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

Yes - for both PPIC and PB.

At each meeting, 07/07/2021
i.e. quarterly

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

Members have been told in first meeting and have been given Code of Conduct so are
At each meeting, 07/07/2021
aware of responsibilities. Is also standing agenda item for PPIC and PB meetings, so fully i.e. quarterly
covered.

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

There are four representatives on each side, so this is compliant, and set out in the Terms Each time
07/07/2021
of Reference. The Chair and Deputy Chair are appointed by PB at the first meeting, and members leave
where the Chair is an employee rep the Deputy is then a employer rep, and vice versa.
or new members
appointed
An Independent adviser is being considered to help the Chair formulate an agenda
independently.

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

Yes - see details above in C10.

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence

Compliant

Notes

Action

Fully
compliant

Conflicts policy review annually
The Council website has a space for declarations of interest on the committee meetings
pages, but there aren't any recorded declarations published.
Conflicts is discussed at each meeting as a standing item so minutes would provide record
of any identified conflicts. However this is no formal register for the Fund.
Conflicts are reported in the annual report and accounts.

There is 1 Academy representative, and 3 council representatives which is in a suitable
proportion for the make-up of the Fund. There is 1 pensioner representative and 3
employee representatives. Unions suggested employee names so that suitable candidates
were selected.

Each time
07/07/2021
members leave
or new members
appointed

Page 69

Also members will be encouraged to complete Toolkit module as part of Training
requirements which is additional training on how this can be done.

D - Publishing information about schemes
Legal Requirements
The scheme manager for a public service scheme must publish information about the pension board for the scheme(s) and keep that information up-to-date.
The information must include:
·
who the members of the pension board are
·
representation on the board of members of the scheme(s), and
·
the matters falling within the pension board’s responsibility
TPR Requirement

Notes from TPR Code

D1

Does the Administering Authority
publish information about the pension
board?

95 - Scheme managers must publish the information required about the pension board and keep that information up-to-date. This will
ensure that scheme members can easily access information about who the pension board members are, how pension scheme members
are represented on the pension board and the responsibilities of the board as a whole.

D2

Does the Administering Authority
96 - When publishing information about the identity of pension board members, the representation of scheme members and matters for
publish other useful related information which the board is responsible, schemes should also publish useful related information about the pension board such as:
about the pension board?
- the employment and job title (where relevant) and any other relevant position held by each board member
- the pension board appointment process
- who each pension board member represents
- the full terms of reference for the pension board, including details of how it will operate, and
- any specific roles and responsibilities of individual pension board members.

D3

Is all the information about the Pension 98 - Scheme managers must ensure that information published about the pension board is kept up-to-date. Schemes should have policies
Board kept up-to-date?
and processes to monitor all published data on an ongoing basis to ensure it is accurate and complete.

D4

Does the Administering Authority public 97 - Schemes should also consider publishing information about pension board business, for example board papers, agendas and
information about pension board
minutes of meetings (redacted to the extent that they contain confidential information and/or data covered by the Data Protection Act
business?
2018). They should consider any requests for additional information to be published, to encourage scheme member engagement and
promote a culture of transparency.

Page 70

No.

Frequency of
Last Review
Review
Date
Ongoing and at
07/07/2021
end of specific
terms (i.e. as LPB
members
change)

Check
Completed
Fully
completed

Ongoing and at
07/07/2021
end of specific
terms (i.e. as LPB
members
change)

Fully
completed

Partially
compliant

Consider adding additional
information from Code of
Practice paragraph 96 about
the PB and PC members
onto the Fund website. Ask
Head of Democratic
Services to update the
Council website.

The information on the Council website is up to date, but is not complete and there is no
information on the Fund website. Given we marked the above as partially compliant
relating to what is actually published, we are comfortable that this information will be kept
up to date once published, as it currently is up to date on the Council website - therefore
this is marked as compliant.

Ongoing and at
07/07/2021
end of specific
terms (i.e. as LPB
members
change)

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

Consider adding to pension
fund website, even if just a
link back to Council site.

The Council website shows meeting dates, agendas and meeting minutes, and is up to
date

Quarterly

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

Consider adding to pension
fund website, even if just a
link back to Council site.

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence
The Council website include the full details of the pension board representation, and the
Terms of Reference also the Fund website to be in line with TPR requirements/best
practice.

The Council website, if you click on links for the Councillor members, will show the job
information and other positons held. There is no further information on the Council
website and no information about PPIC or PB members on the fund website.
The FMPT has noted that he will escalate this with the Head of Democratic Services to
ensure the information is updated.

Notes

Action

Fully
compliant

Page 71

07/07/2021

Compliant

E - Managing risk and internal controls
Legal Requirements
The scheme manager must establish and operate internal controls which adequately ensure the scheme is administered and managed in accordance with the scheme rules and the requirements of the law.
Internal controls are defined in the legislation as:
· arrangements and procedures to be followed in the administration and management of the scheme
· systems and arrangements for monitoring that administration and management
· arrangements and procedures to be followed for the safe custody and security of the assets of the scheme
The legal requirements apply equally where a scheme outsources services connected with the running of the scheme.
No.

TPR Requirement

Notes from TPR Code

E1

Is there an agreed process for
106 - Before implementing an internal controls framework, schemes should carry out a risk assessment. They
identifying and recording scheme risks? should begin by:
- setting the objectives of the scheme
- determining the various functions and activities carried out in the running of the scheme, and
- identifying the main risks associated with those objectives, functions and activities.
107 - An effective risk assessment process will help schemes to identify a wide range of internal and external
risks, which are critical to the scheme and members. When identifying risks, schemes should refer to relevant
sources of information, such as records of internal disputes and legislative breaches, the register of interests,
internal and external audit reports and service contracts.

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence
There is a formal risk policy which sets out how risks are identified and recorded, which is
soon to be approved by the Pension Board, and there is a risk register to help identify and
record risks, and this has a covering note which is produced for each PPIC meeting. The
PB also see the register every quarter. The risks on the risk register are clearly related to
key fund objectives such as paying member benefits on time and achieving good returns
for limited risk.

108 - Once schemes have identified risks, they should record them in a risk register and review them regularly.
Schemes should keep appropriate records to help scheme managers demonstrate steps they have taken to
comply, if necessary, with legal requirements.

Does the Fund have an adequate
109 - Not all risks will have the same potential impact on scheme operations and members or the same
Register shows who has responsibility for each risk and the current control in place to
process to evaluate risks and establish likelihood of materialising. Schemes should consider both these areas when determining the order of priority for manage it as well as new controls required - if new risks were to arise a new internal
internal controls?
managing risks and focus on those areas where the impact and likelihood of a risk materialising is high.
control (or development of existing controls) would take place to mitigate/manage the risk.
110 - Many pension schemes will already have adequate internal controls in place, some of which may apply to
a variety of the functions of the administering authority. Schemes should review their existing arrangements and
procedures to determine whether they can prevent and detect errors in scheme operations and help mitigate
pension scheme-related risks. For example, schemes could obtain assurance about their existing controls
through direct testing or by obtaining reports on controls. Any such review should be appropriate to the outcome
of the risk evaluation.

Risk ratings and controls are considered by PPIC at each meeting where the risk status
has changed, or if new risks are included on the register. The PB has also requested to
see the full register at each PB meeting.

The Pensions Manager is also developing a separate administration risk register which is
being used from April 2020, as the main Fund risk register only includes a few key
administration risks. This will be updated on an ongoing basis and will help inform what
111 - Schemes should consider what internal controls are appropriate to mitigate the main risks they have
risks should be included on the wider fund register.
identified and how best to monitor them. For example, the scheme manager(s) for a funded scheme should
The administration risks are identified through ongoing projects such as undecided
establish and operate internal controls that regularly assess the effectiveness of investment-related decision
members, transfers, GMP reconciliation as well as through ongoing day to day tasks.
making. Scheme managers for all pension schemes should establish and operate internal controls that regularly Monitoring of progress on these projects is carried out. The register identifies current
assess the effectiveness of data management and record-keeping.
controls and additional actions, but it is not yet fully complete in these sections. The
Pensions Manager agrees it would be ideal to document these activities in a formal data
improvement plan and risk policy.

E3

Does the Administering Authority have Schemes should use a risk register to record all risks.
a risk register to record all risks
identified and action taken?
The risk register should contain:
- details of the risks identified
- the likelihood of the risk arising
- the impact of the risk if it does arise
- the actions taken to mitigate the risk
- when mitigation action was taken
- when the risk and mitigation should next be reviewed
- who has responsibility for monitoring the risk, if it is not the scheme manager

There is currently a risk register which includes 7 key high-level strategic fund risks. The
scoring of risks is based on judgement and the risks are categorised as either D or E with
a number which rates them in terms of priority - this is based on high/medium or low
likelihood and impact. This is reviewed in PPIC meetings quarterly but the HoFPI adds to
it when new risks arise e.g. following from an audit.
It is noted the risk register does include the required items including actions to manage
risk and current progress against those actions, but these could be in greater detail and
include timescales for review.

Page 72

E2

E - Managing risk and internal controls
Legal Requirements
The scheme manager must establish and operate internal controls which adequately ensure the scheme is administered and managed in accordance with the scheme rules and the requirements of the law.
Internal controls are defined in the legislation as:
· arrangements and procedures to be followed in the administration and management of the scheme
· systems and arrangements for monitoring that administration and management
· arrangements and procedures to be followed for the safe custody and security of the assets of the scheme
The legal requirements apply equally where a scheme outsources services connected with the running of the scheme.
Frequency of
Review
Is there an agreed process for
Quarterly i.e. at
identifying and recording scheme risks? each meeting

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
07/07/2021
Fully
completed

E2

Does the Fund have an adequate
Quarterly i.e. at
process to evaluate risks and establish each meeting
internal controls?

07/07/2021

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

E3

Does the Administering Authority have Each time TPR
a risk register to record all risks
compliance
identified and action taken?
reviewed

07/07/2021

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

No.
E1

TPR Requirement

Compliant

Notes

Action

Fully
compliant

Page 73

No.

TPR Requirement

Notes from TPR Code

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence

E4

Does the Administering Authority
review the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control
systems of the Fund?

101 - The scheme manager must establish and operate internal controls. These must be adequate for the
The risk management and internal controls are reviewed regularly (albeit this does not
purpose of securing that the scheme is administered and managed in accordance with the scheme rules and in follow a formal process and is not always documented) for effectiveness as part of a
accordance with the requirements of the law.
number of processes including:
- Finance targets set and monitored by HoFPI on regular basis
A failure to have adequate internal controls may cause an administrative breach of the law.
- The ongoing updating and annual review of the risk register which includes the control of
those risks
102 - For these purposes ‘internal controls’ means:
- arrangements and procedures to be followed in the administration and management of the scheme
- systems and arrangements for monitoring that administration and management
- arrangements and procedures to be followed for the safe custody and security of the assets of the scheme
103 - Internal controls should include:
- a clear separation of duties
- processes for escalation and /decision making
- documented procedures for assessing and managing risks, reviewing breaches of law and managing
contributions
105 - The scheme's internal controls should address significant risks which are likely to have a material impact
on the scheme. Scheme managers should employ a risk-based approach and ensure that sufficient time and
attention is spent on identifying, evaluating and managing risks and developing and monitoring appropriate
controls. They should seek advice, as necessary.

E5

Does the Administering Authority
regularly review the risk register?

The PPIC and PB see the register at each meeting. It is added to when required and as
part of audit process and meetings or through discussions with advisors, if new risks
come to light.

E6

Is there a standing item on the Pension Establishing effective internal controls is not a one-off exercise and must take into account a changing
Board agenda to review scheme risks? environment as well as new and emerging risks.
Procedures need to be in place to:
- regularly monitor the effectiveness of internal control systems
- ensure controls are kept up to date
- ensure controls are capable of mitigating new and emerging risks

Yes - So are conflicts of interest, breaches, minutes, business plan for Committee, report
from Committee Chair for PB. All of which may help identify further risks.

Page 74

There is a formal risk policy but it does not specify when the format of the register should
be reviewed and there are limited details on the process for managing risks.

Frequency of
Review
Annual

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
07/07/2021
Fully
completed

Quarterly i.e. at
each meeting

07/07/2021

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

Is there a standing item on the Pension Quarterly i.e. at
Board agenda to review scheme risks? each meeting

07/07/2021

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

TPR Requirement

E4

Does the Administering Authority
review the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control
systems of the Fund?

E5

Does the Administering Authority
regularly review the risk register?

E6

Compliant

Notes

Action

Fully
compliant

Page 75

No.

No.

TPR Requirement

Notes from TPR Code

E7

Does the Administering Authority have
adequate systems, arrangements and
procedures (internal controls) in place
for the administration and management
of the Fund and are they documented ?

101 - The scheme manager must establish and operate internal controls. These must be adequate for the
It is considered that there are adequate internal controls in place. Most are set out in the
purpose of securing that the scheme is administered and managed in accordance with the scheme rules and in risk register, though it is recognised this could be more comprehensive and better
accordance with the requirements of the law.
documented. The Pensions Manager is developing a more detailed administration risk
register which includes more details on the internal controls.
A failure to have adequate internal controls may cause an administrative breach of the law.
- Enfeld Council use the Altair task management system - every day, tasks on task list are
102 - For these purposes ‘internal controls’ means:
allocated, and can monitor all tasks on the team to prioritise and allocate to other
- arrangements and procedures to be followed in the administration and management of the scheme
members on team if task overdue. Each task has a priority response time on system
- systems and arrangements for monitoring that administration and management
(e.g. 7 would be death) and has a guideline workflow to follow - cipfa timescales are
- arrangements and procedures to be followed for the safe custody and security of the assets of the scheme
followed.
- The system provides individual reports on what staff members have done, and the first
103 - Internal controls should include:
appraisals have just been carried out using this information which drive training, and the
- a clear separation of duties
next one is in March. Each person only see smaller number of tasks allocated to them to
- processes for escalation and /decision making
give them focus.
- documented procedures for assessing and managing risks, reviewing breaches of law and managing
- There is currently a do/check procedure which depends on tasks i.e. estimates are not
contributions
always checked due to time restrictions. Final benefit calculations are reallocated to a
checker after calculation is done - and the job can't be sent to the "doer" , has to go
105 - The scheme's internal controls should address significant risks which are likely to have a material impact someone else and can't go further until checked.
on the scheme. Scheme managers should employ a risk-based approach and ensure that sufficient time and
- All members of team can check calcs - but payment is only authorised by a senior
attention is spent on identifying, evaluating and managing risks and developing and monitoring appropriate
member of staff - was Pensions Manager, now Principal Exchequer Officer can as well.
controls. They should seek advice, as necessary.

E8

Do these procedures apply equally to
outsourced services, are internal
controls reflected in contracts with third
party providers and is there adequate
reporting in relation to those controls?

119 - The legal requirements apply equally where a scheme outsources services connected with the running of
the scheme. Providers should be required to demonstrate that they will have adequate internal controls in their
tenders for delivering services. The requirements should be incorporated in the terms of engagement and
contract between the scheme and service provider. Outsourced services may include, for example, the
maintenance of records and data, calculation of benefits and investment management services. Where services
are outsourced, scheme managers should be satisfied that internal controls associated with those services are
adequate and effective.

The only outsourced process relates to AVCs. A contract review has not been done for
some time, and now Prudential have reduced the amount of member communications i.e.
not doing presentations.
No regular updates are provided in relation to AVC services. There have been some
issues about the admin of AVCs when members near retirement, in terms of getting
information from/to Prudential using secure systems, but they are now resolved.
Members are told the retirement process can take longer if AVCs are involved as
sometimes takes a bit longer.
Pru have in the past done a transfer to Enfield when a member didn't want to. But these
incidents are rare - but do show that controls could be improved.
Payroll are completely separate and they arrange the payroll for AVCs. I-Connect is now
used to gather monthly returns for contributions, which includes AVCs, so it will be
possible to check against Prudential records. It's not clear this is taking place.
Member records only show there is an AVC and at retirement the administrators will ask
Prudential to do a quote etc. There is a risk of errors occurring that would be impossible
for the Enfield administration team to detect under the current process.

Page 76

120 - An increasing number of service providers are obtaining independent assurance reports to help
demonstrate their ability to deliver quality administration services. Schemes should ask their service providers to
demonstrate that they have adequate internal controls relating to the services they provide. It is vital that
schemes ensure they receive sufficient assurance from service providers. For example, the information from
providers should be sufficiently detailed and comprehensive and the service level agreements should cover all
services that are outsourced. Schemes should also consider including provisions in contracts for outsourced
services requiring compliance with appropriate standards. This should help to ensure effective administration.

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence

No.
E7

E8

Check
Completed
Fully
completed

Do these procedures apply equally to n/a
outsourced services, are internal
controls reflected in contracts with third
party providers and is there adequate
reporting in relation to those controls?

Fully
completed

n/a

Compliant

Notes

Fully
compliant

This process is not formally documented but staff know the systems - it
has been suggested that an improvement would be to have the duties
allocated as the system can be altered to set levels of checking. The
workflow system shows who has checked calculations.

Partially
compliant

Action

The specific administration
services provided and
responsibilities delegated to
the administrator should be
documented in the terms of
engagement and contract
between the Fund and any
third party which carries out
any outsourced admin
service (such as AVC
providers and tracing
agencies).

Page 77

Frequency of
Last Review
Review
Date
Does the Administering Authority have Annual audits and 07/07/2021
adequate systems, arrangements and tri-yearly TPR
procedures (internal controls) in place Compliance
for the administration and management checks, and
of the Fund and are they documented ? quarterly risk
register review.

TPR Requirement

F - Maintaining accurate member data
Legal Requirements
Scheme managers must keep records of information relating to:
· member information
· transactions, and
· pension board meetings and decisions.
The legal requirements are set out in the Public Service Pensions (Record Keeping and Miscellaneous Amendments) Regulations 2014 (‘the Record Keeping Regulations’).
The Data Protection Act 1998 and the data protection principles set out additional requirements for using, holding and handling personal information. Other requirements are set out in the:
· Pensions Act 1995 and 2004
· Pensions Act 2008 and the Employers’ Duties (Registration and Compliance) Regulations 2010
· Occupational Pension Schemes (Scheme Administration) Regulations 1996 (SI 1996/1715)
· Occupational Pension Schemes (Scheme Administration) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 1997 (SR 1997 No 94)
· Registered Pension Schemes (Provision of Information) Regulations 2006 (SI 2006/567)
No.

TPR Requirement

Notes from TPR Code

F1

Do member records record the
information required as defined in the
Record Keeping Regulations and is it
accurate?

126 - Scheme managers must ensure that member data across all membership categories specified in the Record Keeping Regulations is
complete and accurate. Member data should be subject to regular data evaluation.
127 - Scheme managers must keep specific member data, which will enable them to uniquely identify a scheme member and calculate
benefits correctly. This is particularly important with the establishment of career average revalued earnings (CARE) schemes. Scheme
managers must be able to provide members with accurate information regarding their pension benefits (accrued benefits to date and their
future projected entitlements) in accordance with legislative requirements, as well as pay the right benefits to the right person (including all
beneficiaries) at the right time.

Page 78

No.

TPR Requirement

Notes from TPR Code

F2

Does the Fund have the appropriate
processes in place so employers can
provide timely and accurate
information?

128 - Schemes should require participating employers to provide them with timely and accurate data in order for the scheme manager to
be able to fulfil their legal obligations. Schemes should seek to ensure that processes are established by employers which enable the
transmission of complete and accurate data from the outset. Processes will vary from employer to employer, depending on factors such
as employee turnover, pay periods, number of employees who are members and the timing and number of payroll processing systems.
129 - Schemes should seek to ensure that employers understand the main events which require information about members to be passed
from the employer to the scheme and/or another employer, such as when an employee:
- joins or leaves the scheme
- changes their rate of contributions
- changes their name, address or salary
- changes their member status, and
- transfers employment between scheme employers.
130 - Schemes should ensure that appropriate procedures and timescales are in place for scheme employers to provide updated
information when member data changes, for checking scheme data against employer data and for receiving information which may affect
the profile of the scheme. If an employer fails to act according to the procedures set out above, meaning that they and/or scheme
managers may not be complying with legal requirements, those under a statutory duty to report breaches of the law to the regulator under
section 70 of the Pensions Act 2004 should assess whether there has been a relevant breach and take action as necessary.

F3

Does the Fund keep records of and
reconcile transactions as required by
the Record Keeping Regulations?

131 - Schemes should be able to trace the flow of funds into and out of the scheme and reconcile these against expected contributions
and scheme costs. In doing so, they will have clear oversight of the core scheme transactions and should be able to mitigate risks swiftly.

F4

Are records kept of pension board
meetings as required by the Record
Keeping Regulations?

133 - Schemes must keep records of all pension board meetings. Schemes should also keep records of decisions made and key
discussions, which may include topics such as compliance with policies in relation to the administration of the scheme.
This will ensure there is a clear and transparent audit trail.

F5

Are records kept of decisions made by 134 - Schemes must also record any decisions taken by members of the pension board other than at a pension board meeting, or by a
the pension board, outside of meetings committee/sub-committee of a pension board, including the date, time, and place of the decision and the names of board members
as required by the Record Keeping
participating in that decision.
Regulations?
This will ensure that there is a clear and transparent audit trail of the decisions made in relation to the scheme.

Page 79

132 - Scheme managers must keep records of transactions made to and from the scheme and any amount due to the scheme which has
been written off. They should be able to demonstrate that they do so.

No.

TPR Requirement

Notes from TPR Code

F6

Are records retained for as long as they 135 - Schemes should retain records for as long as is relevant for the purposes for which they are needed. It is likely data will need to be
are needed?
held for long periods of time. Schemes will need to keep some records for a member even after they have retired, ensuring that pension
benefits can be settled for as long as they need to be paid. It is also important that schemes have in place systems and processes so they
can keep records for the necessary amount of time.

F7

Does the Administering Authority have 136 - Schemes should have policies and processes that monitor data on an ongoing basis to ensure it is accurate and complete,
policies and processes to monitor data regardless of the volume of scheme transactions. This should be in relation to all membership categories, including pensioner member
on an ongoing basis?
data where queries may arise once the pension is being paid.
137 - Schemes should adopt a proportionate and risk-based approach to monitoring, based on any known or historical issues that may
have occurred in relation to the scheme’s administration. This is particularly important for the effective administration of CARE pension
schemes, which requires schemes to hold significantly more data than needed for final salary schemes.

Page 80

F8

Does the Administering Authority carry 138 - Schemes should continually review their data and carry out a data review exercise at least annually. This should include an
out a data review at least annually?
assessment of the accuracy and completeness of the member information data held. Schemes should decide the frequency and nature of
the review in light of factors such as the level of data quality, any issues identified and key scheme events.

TPR Requirement

Notes from TPR Code

F9

Is a data improvement plan in place
141 - Where schemes identify poor quality or missing data, they should put a data improvement plan in place to address these issues.
which is being monitored with a defined The plan should have specific data improvement measures which schemes can monitor and a defined end date within a reasonable
end date?
timeframe when the scheme will have complete and accurate data.

F10

Are processes and policies in place to
reconcile scheme data with employer
data?

Page 81

No.

142 - Schemes should ensure that member records are reconciled with information held by the employer, for example postal address or
electronic address (email address) changes and new starters. Schemes should also ensure that the numbers of scheme members is as
expected based on the number of leavers and joiners since the last reconciliation. Schemes should be able to determine those members
who are approaching retirement, those who are active members and those who are deferred members.

No.

TPR Requirement

Notes from TPR Code

F11

Do the Administering Authority’s
member data processes meet the
requirements of the Data Protection Act
1998 and the data protection principles,
and the new requirements of GDPR
(from 25 May 2018)?

143 - Schemes must ensure that member data processes meet the requirements of the Data Protection Act 2018 and the data protection
principles, and from 25 May 2018, the new General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR).
144 - In relation to data management, schemes should understand:
- the obligations of data controllers
- the difference between personal data and sensitive personal data
- how data is held and how responses to data requests from different parties are handled
- the systems required to store, move and destroy data

Page 82

set out in the:

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence

Common and conditional data scores as at 31 March 2018 were both 95%. It is not clear
how the conditional (scheme specific) data score was obtained but it is much higher than
has been observed at other pension Funds to date. It is unusual for it to be at a similar
level to the common data score.

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
07/07/2021
Fully
completed

Compliant

Notes

Action

Fully
compliant

Page 83

Checks were carried out in relation to each of the requirements in the Record Keeping
Regulations and all were considered compliant except for in relation to clause 4(3) which
relates to information for members who pay AVCs.
- Altair system won't allow a new member entry without key details
- Benefits won't be paid until a birth certificate is provided - this is a useful extra check as if
there are any issues with the birth certificate, fraud investigation is commenced.
- Members are identified by NINO
- ICONNECT uploads data on an monthly basis so easier to manage - this system creates
new starters on Altair (and flags a new starter to the team) and updates the pay onto each
members record. Any changes to hours etc will also automatically update so records will
be kept up to date.
- Admin team confirmed both CARE and old 2008 pay data are recorded for each member
- this is just called something different (i.e. "pensionable" for 2008 pay)
- Pension increases are included on member records (via original and increased pension the actual rate isn't on the record but is easily derived), and benefit calculations are
automatically saved onto the member record.
- Enfield will need to check with Prudential that members' AVC choices are recorded i.e.
forms they originally completed when they signed up to AVCs.
- Data accuracy and completeness reports are also received via the triennial valuation,
which cover some of these elements.

Frequency of
Review
Ongoing

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence
Monthly information submission via I-connect has been implemented

Checks were carried out in relation to each of the requirements in the Record Keeping
Regulations and all were considered compliant except for in relation to AVCs, where
compliance is likely but can't be confirmed without Prudential confirmation.

Frequency of
Review
Ongoing

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
07/07/2021
Fully
completed

Ongoing

07/07/2021

Fully
completed

Compliant

Action

Fully
compliant

Partially
compliant

Agree with Prudential a way of
ensuring this is carried out in in
with Regulations for AVCs
Ensure robust processes for
checking employer cashflows in
relation to benfit payments as
required for triennial valuations.

For death overpayment cases, the authority makes a payment to fund for the amount and
then they try to recover the cost - they then make decision to write off if necessary.

These are stored on the Council website and are up to date

Ongoing (4
07/07/2021
meetings a year)

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

The PB are not a decision making body so it is not expected that there will be any
decisions outside of meetings (or even in meetings other than decisions within the PB to
make recommendations or to request information for oversight purposes).

Ongoing

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

07/07/2021

Page 84

Annual reconciliation is required and audited as part of annual report and accounts
process. We have not seen evidence of the checking of benefit outgo cashflows and
reconciling by employer, but in the 2016 valuation there were some discrepancies witht he
membership data which were quickly resolved. This did not impact the majority of
employers.

For the PPIC, members are emailed by HoPFI if something needs to be done between
meetings, with a note that unless there is objection they will proceed with the stated
action, and then there is an update at next meeting for discussion.

Notes

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence
Records are retained indefinitely as part of the members records set up on Altair.

Frequency of
Review
Ongoing

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
07/07/2021
Fully
completed

Annual

07/07/2021

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

Triennial (annual 07/07/2021
for actives)

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

Compliant

Notes

Action

Fully
compliant

A number of old record cards had recently been discovered in archiving so are being
scanned into the system to make records easier to find (though to link them to individual
member records would be significantly time consuming so that is not being carried out).
All paper records and microfiche had previously been added to the systems at the time of
the last review.
Cashflow records (contributions and benefit payments) are also kept indefinitely (on Altair
for individual member cashflows and on the payroll/cashflow systems).
Given the long term nature of pensions and the possibility for queries arising many years
after a member has left or died, this is considered a suitable approach.
NFI is completed each year and workflows established for any work produced via this
route.
Member information is also checked at the year-end when benefit statements are being
produced i.e. CARE pay compared to previous years, and contributions are checked to
see if paid in line with the CARE pay. Anything unreasonable in terms of data or data
changes since last year are queried with the employer. If corrections are required, these
are put onto member records immediately (it is done and checked by different staff).
Reporting is carried out on quality under various categories on an ad hoc basis. The
Pension Manager will add data review to the pensions dashboard which is produced by
Altair then updated by the Pensions Manager. This dashboard is not given to PB but has
been offered - this is a record of projects eg unprocessed leavers i.e. how much
completed per month.

Page 85

Common and conditional data scroing has been carried out as at 31 March 2018 (scores
of 95% each).
The fund actuary is due to carry out pre-valuation data testing and is waiting for the
administering authority to provide the data extracts.

Active member data is reviewed for the benefit statements but other than that there is no
annual check.
The Fund will carry out common and conditional data scores on an annual basis now this
is a requirement of the pensions regulator scheme return.
Actuaries Aon carry out data validation at each triennial valuation, and are carrying out a
validation exercise on March 2018 data to attempt to resolve queries before the 2019
valuation date.

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence
There are various data improvement activities in place. There is a pensions dashboard
which shows the progress of each administration - related project such as tracking all
transfers in and out, (will be a delay for factors after November), In terms of dealing with
employers. the team was moving towards a more interventionist approach for one
employer to ensure better data, however, they have over the summer replaced many of
their staff and there has been a noticeable improvement, although Enfield are keeping a
close watch on this area.

Frequency of
Review
Ongoing

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
07/07/2021
Fully
completed

Compliant

Notes

Action

Partially
compliant

A formal documented
data improvement plan
is not in place but the
work carried out by the
Pension Manager and
the spreadsheets are
useful documentation
of the activities
underway. It would be
useful for a data
improvement plan with
a defined end date
which also looks at
wider improvements
which can be made to
improve likelihood of
Fund meeting it's
objectives to be
created. A formal
administration strategy
should be in place in
order to support this.

Formal administration strategy to
set out objectives.

In terms of general improvements to data collection processes, -iconnect is also due to be
rolled out to more employers as explained above.
MSS is in place to help - actives can update some of their own addresses etc. MSS will be
opened up to deferred and pensioners as well in due course. The Pensions Manager will
be looking at usage statistics to inform where improvements could be made. There is
comprehensive help online for members who are using this - benefit statements will be on
here as well.
The Pensions Manager is also monitoring statistics produced by Altair on work being
carried out. There were lots of workflows which weren't being assigned to staff, but that
has been sorted now and the system is more transparent. There isn't any improvement
activities to improve data scores (common and conditional) or act on queries from
valuation data testing.
It is recognised the PB should be keeping annual eye on this dashboard/statistics and
progress against agreed activities but the PB are quite new so this has not yet been
requested. A short report to summarise work being done can be produced.
See notes section for more detail.

The Senior Finance Officer highlights where there are unusual changes month on month
and where information doesn't tie up to contributions paid, and this is passed to the team
to investigate with the employer on a monthly basis.
Employers who submit returns in excel sheet include details like changes to membership
(and addresses etc) which are automatically updated using I-connect or manually changed
if I-connect not used. A small number of employers still send in paper records - and these
are manual entries by the team e.g. for change of address or hours - these changes are
not checked.
Some examples of upcoming areas to be looked at in more detail include a) Marital status review - any missing
b) CARE reconciliation - that every active member has CARE upto 30/09/2018
c) currently working on frozen refunds review to ensure none have missed the automatic
linking to active records
A report can be run in Altair to give the people upcoming for retirement - the team keep an
eye on unprocessed leavers as they come through as well.
There is a new systems team to carry out things like projects, running reports like this.
Altair recent upgrades make it easy to identify those nearing retirement. This report is
carried out 2 times a year. Heywoods came to deliver training for Enfield staff a few weeks
ago on the upgrades.

Inclusion of wider range of
improvement activities in plan dashboard mainly focuses on
completion of day to day admin
tasks (albeit there are backlogs
being resolved).

SLAS are all different
days and HR
expectations different The Pensions Manager
will be improving them
as part of data
improvement activities
and will be discussing
with Board.
Ongoing

07/07/2021

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

Page 86

Reconciliations are on a continual process until the team is satisfied they have reached a
level that the Pensions Manager is happy with.

Formal data improvement plan to
document activities in dashboard
and with a target timescale, so
that progress can be easily
monitored.

Ensure any manual entry into
member records is checked by
another member of staff, where
incorrect entries could affect the
amount of member's benefits or
ability to pay benefits on time.

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence
All Enfield Council staff undertook a very comprehensive online training session that
required the staff member to pass to ensure they were signed off as GDPR compliant.
Egress system is compliant with data protection requirements.

Frequency of
Review
Ongoing

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
07/07/2021
Fully
completed

Compliant

Notes

Action

Fully
compliant

Page 87

G - Maintaining contributions
Legal requirements
Contributions must be paid as detailed below, and where not done, they should be reported to TPR in circumstances where the scheme manager has reasonable cause to believe that the failure is likely to be of material significance to TPR in the exercise of any of its functions.

Contribution Type
Employer

Employee

No.

TPR Requirement

Notes from TPR Code

G1

Does the Fund have procedures and
processes in place to identify payment
failures?

150 - The scheme manager should ensure that there are effective procedures and processes in place to identify payment failures that are
– and are not – of material significance to the regulator. A ‘payment failure’ is where contribution payments are not paid to the scheme by
the due date(s), or within the prescribed period and a ‘materially significant payment failure’ refers to a payment failure which is likely to be
of material significance to the regulator in the exercise of its functions.
151 - Schemes should monitor pension contributions, resolve payment issues and report payment failures, as appropriate, so that the
scheme is administered and managed in accordance with the scheme regulations and other legal requirements.

G2

152 - Adequate procedures and processes are likely to involve:
- developing a record to monitor the payment of contributions
- monitoring the payment of contributions
- managing overdue contributions, and
- reporting materially significant payment failures.
156 - A contributions monitoring record will enable schemes to check whether contributions have been paid on time and in full, and, if they
have not, provide a trigger for escalation for schemes to investigate the payment failure and consideration of whether scheme managers
need to report to the regulator and, where relevant, members.
157 - A contributions monitoring record should include the following information:
- contribution rates
- the date(s) on or before which employer contributions are to be paid to the scheme
- the date by when, or period within which, the employee contributions are to be paid to the scheme
- the rate or amount of interest payable where the payment of contributions is late.

Page 88

Do those processes and procedures
include a contributions monitoring
record to determine whether
contributions are paid on time and in
full?

No.

TPR Requirement

Notes from TPR Code

G3

Do those processes and procedures
include monitoring payments against
the contributions monitoring record on
an ongoing basis?

161 - Schemes should monitor contributions on an ongoing basis for all the membership categories within the scheme. Schemes should
regularly check payments due against the contributions monitoring record.
162 - Schemes should apply a risk-based and proportionate approach to help identify employers and situations which present a higher
risk of payment failures occurring and which are likely to be of material significance and require the scheme manager to intervene.
163 - Schemes should be aware of what is to be paid in accordance with the contributions monitoring record or other scheme
documentation, which may be used by the pension scheme. Schemes should also have a process in place to identify where payments are
late or have been underpaid, overpaid or not paid at all.
164 - For schemes to effectively monitor contributions they will require access to certain information. Employers will often provide the
payment information that schemes need to monitor contributions at the same time as they send the contributions to the scheme.
165 - Schemes should have adequate internal controls in place to monitor the sharing of payment information between the employer,
pension scheme and member. Where the necessary payment information is not automatically available or provided by employers,
schemes should request the additional information they need. Schemes may not need to obtain payment information as a matter of
course, only where it is required for effective monitoring.
165 - Scheme managers must record and retain information on transactions, including any employer and employee contributions received
and payments of pensions and benefits, which will support them in their administration and monitoring responsibilities.
166 - Where the administration of scheme contributions is outsourced to a service provider, schemes should ensure that there is a
process in place to obtain regular information on the payment of contributions to the scheme and a clear procedure in place to enable
them to identify and resolve payment failures which may occur.

Are these procedures regularly
reviewed to ensure they are effective?

171 - The regulator recognises that a monitoring process based on information provided by employers may not be able to confirm
deliberate underpayment or non-payment, or fraudulent behaviour by an employer. Schemes should review current processes or develop
a new process which is able to detect situations where fraud may be more likely to occur and where additional checks may be
appropriate.

G5

Do the Administering Authority’s
processes include managing overdue
contributions in line with TPR's
suggested approach?

168 - When schemes identify or are notified of a problem, they should assess whether a payment failure has occurred before taking steps
to resolve and, if necessary, report it. During their assessment, schemes should take into account:
- legitimate agreed payments made directly by an employer for scheme purposes, i.e. where the scheme has agreed that a contributions
payment can be made late due to exceptional circumstances
- legitimate agreed payment arrangements made between an employee and employer, i.e. where the employer has agreed that a
contribution payment can be made late due to exceptional circumstances
- contributions paid directly to a pension provider, scheme administrator or investment manager
- any AVCs included with an employer’s overall payment.
169 - Where schemes identify a payment failure, they should follow a process to resolve issues quickly. This should normally involve the
following steps:
a. Investigate any apparent employer failure to pay contributions in accordance with the contributions monitoring record or legal
requirements.
b. Contact the employer promptly to alert them to the payment failure and to seek to resolve the overdue payment.
c. Discuss it further with the employer as soon as practicable to find out the cause and circumstances of the payment failure.
d. Ask the employer to resolve the payment failure and take steps to avoid a recurrence in the future.

Page 89

G4

No.

TPR Requirement

Notes from TPR Code

G6

Does the Fund maintain a record of any 170 - Schemes should maintain a record of their investigation and communications between themselves and the employer. Recording this
investigations and communications with information will help to provide evidence of schemes’ effective monitoring processes and could help to demonstrate that the scheme
employers?
manager has met the legal requirement to establish and operate adequate internal controls. It will also form part of the decision of
whether or not to report a payment failure to the regulator and, where relevant, members.

G7

Do employers provide sufficient
information to monitor contributions and
is this in accordance with the LGPS
regulations?

164 - Employers will often provide the payment information that schemes need to monitor contributions at the same time as they send the
contributions to the scheme, which may be required under the scheme regulations. Payment information may include:
• the employer and employee contributions due to be paid, which should be specified in the scheme regulations and/or other scheme
documentation
• the pensionable pay that contributions are based upon (where required), and
• due date(s) on or before which payment of contributions and other amounts are to be made.

G8

Is there a satisfactory process in place
to assess the materiality of any
payment failures and ensure that those
which are material are reported to the
Regulator within a reasonable period?

173 - Scheme managers must report payment failures which are likely to be of material significance to the regulator within a reasonable
period, in the case of employee contributions; and as soon as reasonably practicable in the case of employer contributions
174 - Where schemes identify a payment failure, they should attempt to recover contributions within 90 days from the due date or
prescribed period having passed without full payment of the contribution.
175 - While schemes are not expected to undertake a full investigation to establish materiality or investigate whether an employer has
behaved fraudulently, schemes should ask the employer:
- the cause and circumstances of the payment failure
- what action the employer has taken as a result of the payment failure, and
- the wider implications or impact of the payment failure.
176 - When reaching a decision about whether to report, schemes should consider these points together and establish whether they have
reasonable cause to report.

178 - Schemes may choose to take an employer’s response to their enquiries at face value if they have no reason to believe it to be
untrue or where their risk-based process indicates that there is a low risk of continuing payment failure. Where they receive no response,
schemes may infer that an employer is unwilling to pay the contributions due.
181 - Schemes should identify and report to the regulator, as appropriate, any payment failures that may not be of material significance
taken individually, but which could indicate a systemic problem. For example, an employer consistently failing to pay contributions by the
due date or within the prescribed period, but paying within 90 days, may be due to inefficient scheme systems and processes. Schemes
may also need to report payment failures that occur repeatedly and are likely to be materially significant to the regulator, depending on the
circumstances.
182 - Reporting payment failures of employer contributions as soon as ‘reasonably practicable’ means within a reasonable period from the
scheme manager having reasonable cause to believe that the payment failure is likely to be of material significance to the regulator.
Schemes should also consider whether it may be appropriate to report a payment failure of employer contributions to scheme members.

G9

If the administration of contributions
outsourced to a service provider, is
there a process in place to obtain
regular information on the payment of
contributions to the scheme?

183 - A reasonable period for reporting would be within ten working days from having reasonable cause to believe that the payment
failure
is likelythe
to administration
be of material significance.
This will depend
upon theto
seriousness
of the payment
failure
andensure
impactthat
on the
scheme.
A
167 - Where
of scheme contributions
is outsourced
a service provider,
schemes
should
there
is a
process in place to obtain regular information on the payment of contributions to the scheme and a clear procedure in place to enable
them to identify and resolve payment failures which may occur.

Page 90

177 - Having reasonable cause means more than merely having a suspicion that cannot be substantiated. Schemes should investigate
the payment failure and use their judgement when deciding whether to report to the regulator.

elieve that the failure is likely to be of material significance to TPR in the exercise of any of its functions. Reporting must be carried out as detailed below.

Contributions must be paid

When a failure should be
To The Regulator: As soon as
reasonably practicable

On or before the due date as defined by the scheme regulations
th

nd

Paid within the prescribed period (19 day of the month, or 22
date if required by the scheme regulations

day if paid electronically) or earlier

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence
There are processes which are followed on a monthly and annual basis, based on a spreadsheet.
This is explained below.

Regulator: Within a reasonable
period – 10 working days

Frequency of
Review
Annual

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
07/07/2021
Fully
completed

Annual

07/07/2021

Compliant

Notes

Action

Fully
compliant

The key person involved with this process has minimised the risk involved as they have produced a
comprehensive guide and instructions for this checking proces, and the spreadsheet formulae etc
from previous months would serve as a useful guide if someone were spreadsheet-proficient.

The processes are all documented in a comprehensive procedure note with screenshots.

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

Late payments are
shown in annual report.

Page 91

The Senior Finance Officer's spreadsheet sets out what payments are expected for each employer
each month based on rates in R&A certificate and previous month's payment. The Senior Finance
Officer will compare month on month to see if they are paying what they are expected to.
In doing this, she will check member numbers and if there has been a big jump it can justify a big
contribution difference.

Frequency of
Review
Ongoing

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
07/07/2021
Fully
completed

Audited at end of year and mid year audit last year.

Annual

07/07/2021

There are no employers who are continual offenders where any significant action would be required.

Ongoing

07/07/2021

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence
The payroll (SAP) information on what has been received is held in separate tab, and matched to
each employer for comparison. This is broken down by Scheduled Bodies, Admitted Bodies (which
helps as size and materiality differs between these groups, and both employee and employer
contributions are split out.

Compliant

Notes

Action

Fully
compliant

Consider how AVC
contributions could be
checked and
monitored.

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

Processes are not
formally documented.
Administration
policy/strategy should
be drafted which will be
subject to regular
review, as well as the
reporting under the
requirements set out
within the policy.

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

Discrepancies are investigated by looking at member numbers, employer submissions, and by
contacting employers if a reason can't be found.
No process is currently in place in relation to reconciling AVC payments with contributions record.
This should be discussed with Prudential representative to ensure required information is provided.

If it a minor breach which is subsequently quickly paid it is not reported to TPR (just recorded), but if
persistent will raise with employer to try to resolve.
Any late payments are reported in the report and accounts.

Page 92

The Senior Finance Officer/HoFPI will identify payments if outside of 19 day statutory period.
When a payment issue is identified they are split out in a separate spreadsheet and the employer
contacted promptly to alert them to the payment failure, find the cause and circumstances and to seek
to resolve the overdue payment. Any late payments are typically due to new staff or technology
changes at the employer.

Frequency of
Review
Ongoing

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
07/07/2021
Fully
completed

Ongoing

07/07/2021

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

Yes - The Senior Finance Officer bears in mind the size of the employer and the payment (see above) Ongoing
- some employers are very small.

07/07/2021

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

n/a

Fully
completed

Partially
compliant

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence
The Senior Finance Officer provided evidence of all email communications filed, which includes
monthly/annual submissions of member and contributions information, as well as any investigation
correspondence.

Generally the employers do provide what's needed unless one-off occasions e.g due to personnel
changes at employers - all current employer payroll providers can do this.

Compliant

Notes

Action

Not outsourced other
than AVCs

Put in place improved
monitoring for AVCs

Fully
compliant

I-connect has been implemented which means monthly submissions for the majority of employers.
Missing information will be raised with employers immediately following the return as Altair will require
it.

So far no failures have been material to the Regulator, and have been resolved by the next month's
payment so not a cause for concern.
Processes should be documented so that it can be evidenced to the Regulator if ever required.
Breaches are shown in the spreadsheet records kept, a separate breaches log. Failures are reported
in the annual report and accounts. Since none have been considered serious/material employers
have not been named.

Page 93

N/A Except for AVCs, where contribution information is passed directly to Prudential from employers
and admin team do not reconcile payroll with AVCs paid. This is something to be considered to
increase confidence in the contributions paid and ultimate benefits settled via AVCs. Prudential do
provide an annual spreadsheet with contributions for each member so this could be checked against
expectations and finance systems to ensure correct.

n/a

H - Providing information to members and others

Legal requirements
The law requires schemes to disclose information about benefits and scheme administration to scheme members and others. This includes requirements relating to benefit statements and certain other information which must be provided under the requirements of the 2013 Act
2013 (‘the Disclosure Regulations 2013’). In addition to these duties, there are other legal requirements relating to the provision of information to members and others under other legislation.

No.

TPR Requirement

Notes from TPR Code

H1

Has an annual benefit statement been
provided to all active members within
the required timescales?

188 - Scheme regulations must require scheme managers to provide an annual benefit information statement to each active member of a
DB scheme established under the 2013 Act or new public body scheme. The statement must include a description of the benefits earned
by a member in respect of their pensionable service.
189 - The first statement was required to be provided no later than 17 months after the scheme regulations establishing the scheme come
into force (i.e. 31st August 2015). Subsequent statements must be provided at least annually after that date, so by 31 August following
the previous 31 March of each year.

Do these meet the legal requirements
in relation to format?

190 - Statements must also comply with HM Treasury directions in terms of any other information which must be included and the manner
in which they must be provided to members.

H3

Has a benefit statement been provided 191 - Managers of a scheme must also provide a benefit statement following a request by an active, deferred or pension credit member of
to all active, deferred and pension
a DB scheme if the information has not been provided to that member in the previous 12 months before that request.
credit members who have requested
one within the required timescales?
193 - The information must be given as soon as practicable but no more than two months after the date the request is made

Page 94

H2

TPR Requirement

Notes from TPR Code

H4

Does this meet the legal requirements
in relation to format?

192 - These benefit statements must include information about the amount of benefits by reference to a particular date and how they are
calculated. The full details depend on the type of member making the request.

H5

Has an annual benefit statement been
provided to all members with AVCs
within the required timescales?

194 - Managers of a scheme must provide a benefit statement to a member of a DC public service pension scheme, who is not an
‘excluded person’, within 12 months of the end of the scheme year. An ‘excluded person’ is a member or beneficiary whose present postal
address and email address is not known to the scheme because the correspondence has been returned (in the case of postal
correspondence) or has not been delivered (in the case of electronic correspondence).

H6

Do these meet the legal requirements
in relation to format?

195 - The information which must be provided includes the amount of contributions (before any deductions are made) credited to the
member during the immediately preceding scheme year, the value of the member’s accrued rights under the scheme at a date specified
by the managers of the scheme and a statutory money purchase illustration. The full detail of the information that must be provided is set
out in the Disclosure Regulations 2013.

Page 95

No.

No.

TPR Requirement

Notes from TPR Code

H7

Is basic scheme information provided
to all new and prospective members
within the required timescales?

200 - Managers must disclose certain basic information about the scheme and the benefits it provides to a prospective member (if
practicable to do so) or a new member. Where the manager has received jobholder information for the member or prospective member
they must provide the information within a month of the jobholder information being received. Where they have not received jobholder
information, they must provide the information within two months of the date the person became an active member of the scheme.
201 - Managers must also provide the information on request to a relevant person within two months of the request being made, except
where the same information was provided to the same person or trade union in the 12 months before the request.

Does this meet the legal requirements
in relation to format?

200 - As per Regulation 6 of the Disclosure Regulations 2013.

H9

Is all other information provided in
accordance with the legal timescales?

196 - Under the Disclosure Regulations 2013, managers of a scheme must provide other information to members and others in certain
circumstances (for example, on request). The Regulations set out the information which must be given, the timescales for providing such
information and the methods that may be used. Not all information must be provided in respect of all public service pension schemes
(there are some exemptions for specified public service schemes or according to the type of benefit offered), but information which
scheme managers may need to provide includes:
- information about the scheme that has materially altered
- information about the constitution of the scheme
- information about transfer credits
- information about lifestyling (this requirement will not apply in respect of DB benefits in public service pension schemes)
- information about accessing benefits, and
- information about benefits in payment.
197 - The detail of the information that must be provided to scheme members and others and any exemptions are set out in the
Disclosure Regulations 2013. Managers must provide the required information, along with confirmation that members may request further
information and the postal and email addresses to which a person should send those requests and enquiries

Page 96

H8

No.

TPR Requirement

Notes from TPR Code

H10

Is all other information provided in the
format and methods required by law?

See above.

H11

Where any information is only provided
electronically (i.e. instead of any hard
copy) does it comply with the legal
requirements?

203 - Generally, schemes may choose how they provide information to scheme members, including by post, electronically (by email or by
making it available on a website) or by any other means permitted by the law. For benefit statements issued under the 2013 Act,
HM Treasury directions may specify how the information must be provided. Where schemes wish to provide information required under
the Disclosure Regulations 2013 by electronic means there are important steps and safeguards that must first be met. These include:
- scheme members and beneficiaries being provided with the option to opt out of receiving information electronically by giving written
notice to the scheme
- managers being satisfied that the electronic communications have been designed:
A) so that the person will be able to access and either store or print the relevant information and
B) taking into account the requirements of disabled people
- ensuring that members and beneficiaries who were members or beneficiaries of the public service pension scheme on 1 December
2010 (where the scheme had not provided information electronically prior to that date) has been sent a written notice (other than via email
or website), informing them that:
A) it is proposed to provide information electronically in the future and
B) scheme members and beneficiaries may opt out of receiving information electronically by sending written notice.
204 - Where schemes make information or a document available on a website for the first time, they must give notice (other than via a
website) to the recipient. They must ensure that the notice includes:
- a statement advising that the information is available on the website
- the website address
- details of where on the website the information or document can be read, and
- an explanation of how the information or document may be read on the website.

H12

Does the Administering Authority aim to 207 - Schemes should design and deliver communications to scheme members in a way that ensures they are able to engage with their
design and deliver communications in a pension provision. Information should be clear and simple to understand as well as being accurate and easily accessible. It is important
way that ensures scheme members are that members are able to understand their pension arrangements and make informed decisions where required.
able to engage with their pension
provision?

H13

Does the Administering Authority use a 208 - Schemes should attempt to make contact with their scheme members and, where contact is not possible, schemes should carry out
tracing service?
a tracing exercise to locate the member and ensure that their member data are up-to-date.

Page 97

205 - When any subsequent information is made available on a website, managers of a scheme must give a notice (other than via a
website) to recipients informing them that the information is available on the website. This notice will not be required where:
- at least two documents have been given to the recipient by hand or sent to the recipient’s last known postal address
- each of those letters asks the recipient to give their electronic (email) address to the scheme and informs the recipient of their right to
request (in writing) that information or documents are not to be provided electronically
- a third letter has been given to the recipient by hand or sent to the recipient’s last known postal address and includes a statement that
further information will be available to read on the website and that no further notifications will be sent to the recipient and
- the managers of the scheme do not know the recipient’s email address and have not received a written request that information or
documents are not to be provided to the recipient electronically.

tatements and certain other information which must be provided under the requirements of the 2013 Act, HM Treasury directions and the Occupational and Personal Pension Schemes (Disclosure of Information) Regulations
other legislation.

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
Jul-21
Fully
completed

The active benefit statements have been provided and compared with the HMT
Directions (i.e. the Disclosure Regulations) and they are compliant other than the
following pieces of information which are not included:
- Date of starting pensionable service
- Summary of the method used for calculating member and survivor benefits (there is a
breakdown of the annual CARE calculation but this is missing for any final salary
elements). This was also noted as being omitted at the last TPR Compliance review.
- It's not clear how any deductions e.g. for pension debits or scheme pays debits would
be shown on the statement if they were to apply.

TBC - At least
each time TPR
Compliance is
reviewed

Oct-18

Fully
completed

Partially
compliant

For deferred members where an address was held, 100% were issued by end of June
2018 (i.e. by LGPS deadline).

Ongoing

01/06/2018

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

97.5% of ABS were issued for Actives were sent by the deadline of 31 August.

Enfield have confirmed that they are compliant in this area for other membership
categories where there has been a request. There are no KPI statistics as evidence to
confirm this is the case.

Compliant

Notes

Partially
compliant

Only partially compliant as
was not 100%, but this was
largely out of the control of
the Administering Authority.
No cause for concern.

Action

We recommend including the
following information to make
the statements compliant:
- Date of starting pensionable
service
- Summary of the method used
for calculating member and
survivor benefits (e.g. including
the member's final salary and
the pre 08 and pre 14 accrual
rates). The explanation could be
in additional explanatory notes
to support the statement figures
if the desire is to keep the
statement simple.
- Any deductions e.g. for
pension debits or scheme pays
debits would be shown on the
statement if they were to apply.
It may be necessary to use a
different statement for those
with any deductions as would
need more explanation.

Enfield Council to confirm
these statements include
the required information
about the amount of
benefits by reference to a
particular date and how
they are calculated.
Alternatively, example
statements for these cases
can be provided for
evidence.

We suggest that KPI/SLA
statistics are held on whether
benefit statements following a
request by an active, deferred
or pension credit member are
provided no more than two
months after the date the
request is made.

Page 98

Frequency of
Review
Annual

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence

Frequency of
Review
TBC - At least
each time TPR
Compliance is
reviewed

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
01/10/2018
Fully
completed

Prudential issued statements in May. These are sent directly to the member by the
Prudential.

Annual

01/05/2018

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

Aon has not seen statements from the Enfield Fund for 2018, but has seen example
statements from Prudential for other LGPS Funds from previous years (the format is
the same across LGPS Clients for Prudential) and they were complaint, so we are
confident that these are likely to still be compliant.

Annual

01/05/2018

In progress

Fully
compliant

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence
The deferred benefit statements have been provided and compared with the HMT
Directions (i.e. the Disclosure Regulations) and they are compliant other than the
following pieces of information which are not included:
- Date of starting pensionable service
- Summary of the method used for calculating member and survivor benefits. This was
also noted as being omitted at the last TPR Compliance review.
- It's not clear how any deductions e.g. for pension debits or scheme pays debits would
be shown on the statement if they were to apply.
- The amount of the member’s pensionable remuneration on the date pensionable
service ended (CARE and Final Salary definition).

Compliant

Notes

Action

Partially
compliant

We have not seen
We recommend including the
evidence of a statement for following information to make
a pension credit member. the statements compliant:
- Date of starting pensionable
service
- Summary of the method used
for calculating member and
survivor benefits (e.g. including
the member's final salary and
the pre 08 and pre 14 accrual
rates). The explanation could be
in additional explanatory notes
to support the statement figures
if the desire is to keep the
statement simple.
- Amount of pensionable
remuneration on date of leaving
(CARE and final salary)
- Any deductions e.g. for
pension debits or scheme pays
debits would be shown on the
statement if they were to apply.
It may be necessary to use a
different statement for those
with any deductions as would
need more explanation.

Page 99

While Prudential manage
the AVCs in terms of
administration, it is
important for the
Administering Authority to
recognise that it is still their
responsibility to ensure the
AVCs are managed in line
with the LGPS Regulations
and other legal
requirements.
It is known that Prudential
are reducing the level of
communications for
members relating to AVCs.

In future years make sure that
appropriate levels of member
information is provided to those
who have AVCs.

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence
For Enfield staff, scheme information is issued by HR as part of their new joiner pack,
which includes a new starter form, nomination form.
Member can ask for various forms, and will be directed to the website for these. Other
individual employers have been instructed to provide same info as HR to new staff.

Frequency of
Review
Annual

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
01/10/2018
Fully
completed

Compliant

Notes

Action

Fully
compliant

Enfield Council has limited
control over what
employers send
prospective members but
they are all provided with
the new starter information
to provide and there is
sufficient information on the
Fund website.

The Pension Manager also
wants to send Heywoods
statutory notice to new joiners
which gives more information
e.g. if someone transfers in. In
addition he has said that some
documents are out of date so
need updating.

Once a new starter is in the fund the Employer is meant to send member information to
the Council. If the Fund doesn't receive the required information Enfield then sends a
pack to members once SAP identifies that there is a new joiner with no information
received. This pack includes a form to complete, with an expression of wish form, and
mentions that a pensions/LGPS guide is available on request.

Ensure requirements met as
action of the current review of
processes with HR.

It is recognised that the process needs improvement to ensure members are fully
informed within the required timescales, and to prevent duplication. This matter has
recently discussed at a HR/Pensions meeting at Enfield Council, as part of a full review
of processes between departments. Sometimes info is passed to the pensions team
that isn't needed which causes GDPR issues.

Monitor legal disclosure
timescales as part of formal
KPI/SLA monitoring.

The timescales of sending information to members and setting them up is monitored
using the Heywoods task management system (the example provided shown none
outside of required timescales), - the workflow system records dates of tasks so can
identify late responses, and use of automation via I-connect is ensuring new members
are identified quickly. This means responses within required timescales could be
reported on if required - the team can prioritise cases by deadlines.

annual

Around
2014/2015
based on
contribution
table.

Fully
completed

Partially
compliant

We have not been able to gather the full evidence to guarantee the Fund is fully
compliant in this area.

Ongoing

01/10/2018

Fully
completed

Partially
compliant

There is monitoring of internal SLAs on timescales but these may not be the same as
the legal timescales. The dashboard shows that target timescales are missed in some
cases (transfers, retirements, and a significant amount of leavers) although this may
often be out of the Administering Authority's control.
Changes to the scheme are set out in communications which accompany the ABS as
this is the best way of targeting members.

Update the guide provided to
members.

Enfield Council to confirm
that when information is
provided to
members/beneficiaries on
death, receipt of transfer
credits, and in relation to
AVCs etc., the
requirements of the
Disclosure Regulations
2013 are complied with.
These requirements are set
out in a separate tab as a
checklist to complete.
Enfield Council to confirm
how compliance is
monitored on a regular
basis. Please provide
details of how this is
reported, e.g. to the PPIC
and/or pensions board.

Page 100

We have been provided with a sample document which is a guide to the LGPS and
some attached forms, which is provided to members on joining.

Frequency of
Review
We haven't seen evidence of the information Prudential provide but based on previous Ongoing
experience we are confident they are meeting the requirements.
London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
01/10/2018
Fully
completed

Compliant

Notes

Action

Fully
compliant

While we haven't been able to gather evidence of all possible communications we are
confident the requirements are being met.
Only pensioner payslips are provided electronically, and only for members who have
not opted out. The requirements set out have been complied with.

Each time TPR
compliance
reviewed

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

This work will be for the newly created systems team but there has not been much
Annual based on 01/10/2018
focus on this to date in the existing pensions team. There are no statistics gathered on ABS feedback
the use of the member website but staff do act on ABS feedback received. Nomination
forms and MSS has driven a lot of the feedback. Spikes in email communications are
investigated and acted upon.

Fully
completed

Partially
compliant

Carry out review and updating
of communications including
ABS.

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

Ensure tracing exercise is
carried out as planned

Page 101

01/10/2018

Also, the Enfield design team haven't been involved in the ABS design. A planned
rebranding to match the investment information is going to be undertaken by the Head
of Exchequer Services.
NFI is completed each year for all scheme members, but differences arise with
abatements across London Funds.
Individual DWP tracing has been used for pensioners when a "gone away" notification
is received. This is more difficult to monitor for emails, but if no reply is received, it's
marked as a gone away.
A tender exercise is planned for a one off tracing exercise. Assuming this goes ahead
we have marked this as compliant.

Ongoing for gone- 01/10/2018
always and one
off tracing at
intervals i.e.
every 3 years

I - Internal Dispute Resolution
Legal requirements
The Pensions Act 1995 requires scheme managers to set up and implement an Internal Dispute Resolution Procedure (IDRP) to help resolve disputes between the scheme manager and people with an interest in the scheme.
The act states that a person has an interest in the scheme if they:
· are a member or beneficiary
· are a prospective member
· have ceased to be a member, beneficiary or prospective member
· claim to be any of the above and the dispute relates to this claim.
The Act also states that the procedure must include:
· how an application is to be made
· what must be included in an application
· how decisions are to be reached and notified
· a specified period (which is reasonable) within which applications must be made.

The procedure may require people with an interest in the scheme to first refer matters in dispute to a ‘specified person’ in order for that person to consider and give their decision on those matters. This decision may then be confirmed or replaced by the decision taken by the sc
the details of these.

TPR Requirement

Notes from TPR Code

I1

Has the Administering Authority put in
place an internal dispute resolution
procedure?

213 - Scheme managers must make and implement dispute resolution arrangements that comply with the requirements of the law and
help resolve pensions disputes between the scheme manager and a person with an interest in the scheme.

I2

Does the Administering Authority’s
214 - Section 50(9) of the 1995 Pensions Act states that a dispute is exempt if:
process highlight or consider whether a - proceedings have commenced in a court or tribunal
dispute is exempt?
- the Pensions Ombudsman has started an investigation
- it is prescribed by regulations made by the Secretary of State.

I3

Does the information made available to
applicants about the procedure clearly
state the procedure and process to
apply for a dispute to be resolved
including:
- who it applies to
- who the specified person (stage 1) is
- the timescales for making applications
- who to contact with a dispute
- the information that an applicant must
include
- the process by which decisions are
reached?

215 - A person has an interest in the scheme if they:
- are a member or surviving non-dependant beneficiary of a deceased member of the scheme
- are a widow, widower, surviving civil partner or surviving dependant of a deceased member of the scheme
- are a prospective member of the scheme
- have ceased to be a member, beneficiary or prospective member or
- claim to be in one of the categories mentioned above and the dispute relates to whether they are such a person.
216 - Dispute resolution arrangements may require people with an interest in the scheme to first refer matters in dispute to a ‘specified
person’ in order for that person to consider and give their decision on those matters. The specified person’s decision may then be
confirmed or replaced by the decision taken by the scheme manager after reconsideration of the matters.
225 - If schemes decide to specify time limits, they should publish and make those time limits readily available to ensure that those with
an interest in the scheme are aware that they must submit an application within a prescribed time limit.
237 - Scheme managers must also provide the postal or email address and job title of the person to contact in order to make use of the
internal dispute arrangements.
239 - Schemes can decide what information they need from applicants to reach a decision on a disputed matter and how applications
should be submitted. Schemes should ensure they make this information available to applicants.

I4

Has the Administering Authority
ensured that employers who make first
stage decisions also have IDRP in
place?

Page 102

No.

No.

TPR Requirement

Notes from TPR Code

I5

Are the timescales in the procedure
adhered to including sending an
acknowledgment on receipt of an
application?

Note - For the LGPS, the timescales must be in accordance with the LGPS regulations.
231 - Applicants must be notified of the decision made by a scheme manager and specified person (where applicable) within a
reasonable time period after the decision has been made.
230 - The regulator recognises that the circumstances of each dispute are different and decision times may vary. Schemes should be
satisfied that the time taken to reach a decision is appropriate to the situation and be able to demonstrate this, if necessary.
232 - Schemes should provide the applicant with regular updates on the progress of their investigation. They should notify the applicant
where the time period for a decision is expected to be shorter or longer than the reasonable time period and let them know when they are
likely to receive an outcome.
239 - Schemes should send an acknowledgement once an application has been received.

I6

Does the Administering Authority notify 236 -Information about the IDRP must be communicated to:
and advertise the procedure
- prospective members (if practicable)
appropriately?
- scheme members who haven’t already been given the information
- members, or prospective members, when schemes receive jobholder information, or when a jobholder becomes an active member, in
connection with automatic enrolment
- certain people who request the information and haven’t been given it in the previous 12 months

I7

Are the notification requirements in
relation to TPAS and the Pensions
Ombudsman being adhered to?

238 - In addition, scheme managers must provide information about TPAS and the Pensions Ombudsman at certain stages. Upon
receiving an application for the resolution of a pension dispute, scheme managers (or the specified person) must make the applicant
aware as soon as reasonably practicable that TPAS is available to assist members and beneficiaries of the scheme and provide contact
details for TPAS. When notifying the applicant of the decision, scheme managers must also inform the applicant that the Pensions
Ombudsman is available to investigate and determine complaints or disputes of fact or law relating to a public service pension scheme
and provide the Pension Ombudsman’s contact details.

I8

Does the Administering Authority
234 - Schemes should ensure that the effectiveness of the arrangements is assessed regularly and be satisfied that those following the
regularly assess the effectiveness of its process are complying with the requirements set, which includes effective decision making.
arrangements?

I9

Does the Administering Authority
234 - See above - this is particularly important where the arrangements require employers participating in the pension scheme to carry out
regularly assess the effectiveness
duties as part of the process, for example where schemes have implemented the two-stage procedure and employers are acting as the
where employers carry out a stage one specified person for the first stage.
process?

Page 103

233 & 235 - The procedure should be:
- communicated in scheme documentation, e.g. a joining booklet
- easily accessible, e.g. on the scheme website
- within documents recording policy about the administration of the scheme.

manager and people with an interest in the scheme.

sion on those matters. This decision may then be confirmed or replaced by the decision taken by the scheme manager after reconsideration of the matters. However, legislation provides flexibility for scheme managers to decide

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence
The IDRP policy is in place and is available to Enfield Council staff through the staff intranet.
However it is not available on the fund website for members who are employees of other employers.

Frequency of
Review
Not specified in
IDRP

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
01/10/2018
Fully
completed

Compliant

Notes

Action

Fully
compliant

01/10/2018

Fully
completed

Noncompliant

Update to include
details on what is
exempt next time IDRP
is reviewed and
updated.

The IDRP leaflet includes the details of the process to be followed and the information required by
way of a form to complete.

01/10/2018

Fully
completed

Partially
compliant

Consider including
details of who the
"nominated person" for
stage 1 is.

Not specified in
IDRP

The procedure references a "nominated person" for stage 1, but does not set out who this is (although
a generic contact address setting out who to send disputes to is provided). Time limits for when
applications must be made are set out at the end of the document.

Consider also adding
more details on the
process for how stage
1 and stage 2
decisions are made.

A brief explanation that discretionary decisions will be reconsidered and what happens if the
nominated person disagrees with the initial decision in stage 1 is included, but no details on stage 2
process is included other than it will be considered by an independent person to stage 1.

Employers do not have their own appointed person - this is all carried out by Enfield Council. The
pensions team deal with the case and then pass to Head of Exchequer Services to review. All
employers have it documented where they follow the Administering Authority's policy.

Not specified in
IDRP

01/10/2018

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

Page 104

IDRP Employee guide does not state explicitly who is eligible nor who is exempt - suggest setting out Not specified in
in list form to be clearer.
IDRP

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence
The timescales for response are not included in the IDRP.

Frequency of
Review
Not specified in
IDRP

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
01/10/2018
Fully
completed

Not specified in
IDRP

01/10/2018

Not specified in
IDRP

Not reviewed

Compliant

Notes

Action

Fully
compliant

Suggest formal
monitoring or reporting
to PB (or PPIC) on
IDRP
processes/performance
including whether
timescales met.

Fully
completed

Partially
compliant

Include IDRP as
separate document on
member website

01/10/2018

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

Update the wording to
reflect the fact that the
TPAS disputes team is
now (from April 18) at
the Ombudsman.

n/a

Fully
completed

Noncompliant

Processes for IDRP
should be formally
reviewed e.g. check
treating the cases
consistently, and
reporting on whether
response timescales
met.

n/a

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

The Fund does not have many complaints, so it is easy to monitor the timescales taken for each case.
The Head of Exchequer Services and Pensions Manager monitor the timescales for cases and get in
touch with the members if investigations or decisions take longer than expected.
There is also a central complaints team at Enfield Council who keep a log of complaint cases, and
they will also follow up when it is getting close to deadlines to ensure requirements met where
possible.
An acknowledgement is sent upon receipt of an application and members are told of the timescales in
these communications (though not in IDRP document).

IDRP guide and form is provided when a decision is taken about a member's benefits and they are
written to set out the decision, and when a member complaint is received, with a covering letter.
However the IDRP is not held separately on the member website where the other useful forms and
guides are held.
It is explained in the new member guide which is on the website:
https://new.enfield.gov.uk/pensions/wp-content/uploads/2017/02/LGPS-guide.pdf

Information on TPAS and PO are also given in the IDRP leaflet.
However, the wording should have changed slightly as the disputes team at TPAS is now at the
Ombudsman - the IDRP and example letters we have seen have not been updated to reflect this.
The processes are not formally reviewed. Sometimes cases arise where they haven't been through
the proper employer process and that is usually resolved quickly.
The Council do make sure they don't get involved in the detail of the ill health decisions based on
previous experience.
It has been noted that the freeze of transfers due to the change in the factors/SCAPE discount rate
may result in some IDRP cases as there is a backlog.
Administering Authority doesn't look at stage 1 cases which don't make it to stage 2. Mainly relevant n/a
to ill-health cases where only review would be to see if they met requirements.

Page 105

Included in letters in initial stages and in decision letter. Notifications always include information
about TPAS/PO in the decision letter.

J - Reporting breaches of the law
Legal Requirements
Certain people are required to report breaches of the law to the regulator where they have reasonable cause to believe that:
· a legal duty which is relevant to the administration of the scheme has not been, or is not being, complied with
· the failure to comply is likely to be of material significance to the regulator in the exercise of any of its functions.

People who are subject to the reporting requirement (‘reporters’) for public service pension schemes are:
· scheme managers
· members of pension boards
· any person who is otherwise involved in the administration of a public service pension scheme
· employers: in the case of a multi-employer scheme, any participating employer who becomes aware of a breach should consider their statutory duty to report, regardless of whether the breach relates to, or affects, members who are its employees or those of other emplo
·

professional advisers including auditors, actuaries, legal advisers and fund managers: not all public service pension schemes are subject to the same legal requirements to appoint professional advisers, but nonetheless the regulator expects that all schemes will have pro

·

any person who is otherwise involved in advising the managers of the scheme in relation to the scheme.

The report must be made in writing as soon as reasonably practicable.
TPR Requirement

Notes from TPR Code

J1

Is the Administering Authority satisfied
that those responsible for reporting
breaches under the legal requirements
and TPR guidance understand the
requirements?

244 - Schemes should be satisfied that those responsible for reporting breaches are made aware of the legal requirements and this
guidance. Schemes should provide training for scheme managers and pension board members. All others under the statutory duty to
report should ensure they have a sufficient level of knowledge and understanding to fulfil that duty. This means having sufficient familiarity
with the legal requirements and procedures and processes for reporting.

J2

Does the Administering Authority have
appropriate procedures in place to
meet their legal obligations for
identifying and assessing breaches?

245 - Identifying and assessing a breach of the law is important in reducing risk and providing an early warning of possible malpractice in
public service pension schemes. Those people with a responsibility to report breaches, including scheme managers and pension board
members, should establish and operate appropriate and effective procedures to ensure that they are able to meet their legal obligations.
Procedures should enable people to raise concerns and facilitate the objective consideration of those matters. It is important that
procedures allow reporters to decide within an appropriate timescale whether they must report a breach. Reporters should not rely on
waiting for others to report.
246 - Procedures should include the following features:
- a process for obtaining clarification of the law around the suspected breach where needed
- a process for clarifying the facts around the suspected breach where they are not known
- a process for consideration of the material significance of the breach by taking into account its cause, effect, the reaction to it, and its
wider implications, including (where appropriate) dialogue with the scheme manager or pension board
- a clear process for referral to the appropriate level of seniority at which decisions can be made on whether to report to the regulator
- an established procedure for dealing with difficult cases
- a timeframe for the procedure to take place that is appropriate to the breach and allows the report to be made as soon as reasonably
practicable
- a system to record breaches even if they are not reported to the regulator (the record of past breaches may be relevant in deciding
whether to report future breaches, for example it may reveal a systemic issue), and
- a process for identifying promptly any breaches that are so serious they must always be reported.

J3

Are breaches being recorded in
accordance with the agreed
procedures?

246 - Procedures should include a system to record breaches even if they are not reported to the regulator (the record of past breaches
may be relevant in deciding whether to report future breaches, for example it may reveal a systemic issue).

Page 106

No.

ss of whether the breach relates to, or affects, members who are its employees or those of other employers

nts to appoint professional advisers, but nonetheless the regulator expects that all schemes will have professional advisers, either resulting from other legal requirements or simply as a matter of practice

London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence
It is expected that those responsible are aware of their responsibilities as training has been provided
in induction sessions members have attended.

Last Review Check
Date
Completed
07/07/2021
Fully
completed

Annual

07/07/2021

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

Annual

07/07/2021

Fully
completed

Fully
compliant

Compliant

Action

Fully
compliant

Processes for monitoring contributions are in place (though could be more formally documented) and
there are also processes in place for checking member benefit calculations and completing benefit
statements, and staff are aware of how to raise and escalate any issues that arise. Advice is sought
from legal and actuarial advisers where required.
The procedures have been formalised in a procedure policy.

There is a formal procedure and log for recording breaches of the law.

Notes

Page 107

The Pensions Manager escalates any issues to Head of Exchequer Services. The administration
team raises any areas of concern (e.g. at checker level) with the Pensions Manager. Where things
are raised at checking level that typically means a breach is avoided.

Frequency of
Review
When new
members are
appointed.

K - Scheme Advisory Board - Guidance on the creation and operation of Local Pension Boards in England and Wales
Legal Requirements
Clause 7 of the Public Service Pensions Act provides that the national Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) may provide advice to scheme managers or pension boards in relation to the effective and efficient administration and management of the scheme.

It also provides that a person to whom advice is given by virtue of subsection (1) or (2) must have regard to the advice.
The Scheme Advisory Board has published guidance on the creation and operation of Local Pension Boards in England and Wales which incorporates a number of action point check lists at the end of some of the sections. The following are the items in those
checklists.
SAB
London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence
Section
5
Approved March 2015 by full Council

Frequency of
Review
One - off at
commencement

Last Review
Date
n/a

Check
Compliant
Completed
Fully completed Fully compliant

The first meeting was held on 31 July 2015 (with 3
subsequent meetings per annum since then)

One - off at
commencement

n/a

Fully completed Fully compliant

6

Thre is a training policy which covers PB and PPIC, for
which FMPT has responsibility, this sets out knowledge
and understanding requirements in line with TPR
requirements and is based on CIPFA requirements

Not specified

07/07/2021

Fully completed Fully compliant

A Local Pension Board should
designate a person to take
responsibility for ensuring that the
knowledge and understanding policy
and framework is developed and
implemented.

6

FMPT has responsibility

Annual

07/07/2021

Fully completed Fully compliant

K5

The Administering Authority should
offer access to high quality induction
training and provide relevant ongoing
training to the appointed members of
the Local Pension Board.

6

This is in place - see section B for details

Ongoing - in each 07/07/2021
meeting and
business
planning.

Fully completed Fully compliant

K6

A Local Pension Board should prepare 6
(and keep updated) a list of the core
documents recording policy about the
administration of the Fund and make
the list and documents (as well as the
rules of the LGPS) accessible to its
members.

This is set out in the policy.

Not specified

07/07/2021

Fully completed Fully compliant

Members of a Local Pension Board
should undertake a personal training
needs analysis and put in place a
personalised training plan.

There are not individual needs assessments but the
When new PB
training needs of the Group are identified in Business
members join
Planning so that the training is delivered before the item is
in consideration by PPIC or PB.
FMPT meets with new Chair and Deputy to explain
requirements and can establish if any knowledge needed.
.

07/07/2021

Fully completed Fully compliant

No.

SAB Requirement

K1

Administering Authority to have
approved the establishment (including
Terms of Reference) of the Local
Pension Board by 1 April 2015.

K2

The Local Pension Board must be
5
operational (i.e. had its first meeting no
later than 4 months after the 1 April
2015).

K3

Once established a Local Pension
Board should adopt a knowledge and
understanding policy and framework
(possibly in conjunction with the
Pensions Committee if appropriate).

K4

Action

Page 108

K7

Notes

6

In addition, the HoFPI has gone through with the PB
members at their meeting and explained the key
documents (main focus was on the accounts which
includes many key documents within it).

SAB
London Borough of Enfield Approach / Evidence
Section
7
There is policy in place

Frequency of
Review
Annual

Last Review
Date
07/07/2021

Check
Compliant
Completed
Fully completed Fully compliant

Yes - see sections B and C

When new PB
members join

07/07/2021

Fully completed Fully compliant

7

The interests are held on the Council website (there are
no declarations on the site for the PB but there is a site
location for them). The meeting minutes are a formal
record of interests which are declared at each meeting
and a register is kept.

Quarterly

07/07/2021

Fully completed Fully compliant

An Administering Authority should
agree the ongoing reporting
arrangements between the Local
Pension Board and the Administering
Authority.

8

Not formally set up currently. FMPT will draft the report
annual
annually, PB chair to finalise and this will then go in report
and accounts. TOR states that an annual report on the
work of the Board will be included in the Fund's annual
report.

n/a

Fully completed Partially
compliant

Annual report to be produced

K12

A Local Pension Board should
understand the Administering
Authority’s requirements, controls and
policies for FOIA compliance so that
the Local Pension Board is aware of
them and can comply with them.

8

Not completed. All FOI’s go through the Council's
Complaints team and all over due answers are reviewed.

01/10/2018

Fully completed Partially
compliant

Report to PB on FoI compliance

K13

A Local Pension Board should put in
8
place arrangements to meet the duty of
its members to report breaches of law.

There are formal policies or procedures, specifically for PB Annual
or PPIC.

07/07/2021

Fully completed Fully compliant

K14

A Local Pension Board should consider 8
(with its Administering Authority) the
need to publish an annual report of its
activities.

Not in place, but to be implemented. See K11

n/a

Fully completed Partially
compliant

K15

An Administering Authority should
consult on, revise and publish its
governance compliance statement to
include details of the terms, structure
and operational procedures relating to
its Local Pension Board.

The published governance compliance statement includes Annual
the details required in relation to the LPB.

31/03/2018

Fully completed Fully compliant

No.

SAB Requirement

K8

An Administering Authority should
prepare a code of conduct and a
conflicts policy for its Local Pension
Board for approval in accordance with
the Administering Authority’s
constitution and at the first meeting of
the Local Pension Board. The Local
Pension Board should keep these
under regular review.

K9

Training should be arranged for officers 7
and members of a Local Pension Board
on conduct and conflicts.

K10

A Local Pension Board should
establish and maintain a register of
interests for its members.

K11

n/a

Action

Page 109

8

n/a

Notes

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 111

Agenda Item 6

.

London Borough of Enfield
PENSION POLICY AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE
Meeting Date: 29 July 2021

Subject:

LAPFF Engagement Update for FY 2020/21

Cabinet Member:

Cllr Maguire

Executive Director:

Fay Hammond

Key Decision:

[

]

Purpose of Report
1.

The Fund is a member of the Local Authority Pension Fund Forum (LAPFF)
and the Committee has previously agreed that the Fund should cast its votes
at investor meetings in line with LAPFF voting recommendations.

2.

This report provides an update on various Environmental Social &
Governance (ESG) issues that the Local Authority Pension Fund Forum
(LAPFF) have been involved in, for the attention of the Pension Board.
Proposal(s)

3.

The Pension Policy and Investments Committee are recommended to:
a) Note the contents of this report;
b) The issues discussed by LAPFF, set out in the Quarterly Engagement
Report which is available on the LAPFF website:
https://lapfforum.org/publications/category/quarterly-engagement-reports/
Reason for Proposal(s)

4.

The exercise of voting rights and engagement with investee companies are a
key part of the Fund’s role as a long term steward of assets. Ensuring good
corporate governance and the adoption of sustainable business models at the
companies in which the Fund invests should over the longer term ensure that
they are able to deliver superior returns to the Fund.
Relevance to the Council’s Corporate Plan

5.

Good homes in well-connected neighbourhoods.

6.

Build our Economy to create a thriving place.

7.

Sustain Strong and healthy Communities.

Page 112

Background
8.

The subject of voting and engagement has been considered by the Pensions
Committee on a number of occasions. The Fund wishes to ensure that it is
able to effectively express its views on ESG issues through the exercise of the
Fund’s voting rights, as well as enhancing the Fund’s approach to
engagement with its investee companies more generally. However, the rapid
changes currently taking place across the sector have raised a number of
questions about how voting rights, and Responsible Investment (RI)
approaches more generally, can best be delivered through the new pooled
structures.

9.

The Fund currently delegates the exercise of its voting rights to its external
equity managers, who are asked to comply as far as possible with the Fund’s
voting policies. The move to a pooled structure over the medium term would
significantly impact this arrangement as voting rights would need to be
exercised at pool level rather than fund level. The Fund will therefore need to
ensure that it works with other London funds as well as the pool itself to
ensure that in the future it is able to effectively express its views through the
exercise of voting rights.

10.

The Fund also currently delegates broader engagement with investee
companies around ESG issues to its external managers. The Fund is also a
member of the Local Authority Pension Fund Forum (LAPFF), which currently
comprises 71 local authority pension funds with combined assets of £205
billion. The Forum exists to promote the investment interests of local authority
pension funds, and in particular to maximise their influence as shareholders to
promote corporate social responsibility and high standards of corporate
governance amongst the companies in which they invest.

11.

The voting alerts received from LAPFF and the outcome of votes, as well as
how the fund’s equity managers, MFS, Blackrock and London CIV, is detailed
in attached Appendix 1. Managers have been asked to provide voting
information in light of LAPFF recommendations.
LAPFF Engagement Outcomes

12.

The LAPFF had engaged with 27 companies on issues such as Climate
Change, Community Engagement and the Just Transition during the Quarter
Ending 30 June 2020.

13.

ArcelorMittal (Climate Action) – Met with company officials to establish 2030
carbon emission targets, including scope 3 targets

14.

HSBC/ Allianz (Climate Change) – LAPFF engaged with both companies t0
ensure they gain awareness of the impact the insurance side of their
businesses does - and can - have on climate change, in addition to the
investment aspects.

15.

Pharmaceutical Companies (COVID-19) – Joined a collaborative engagement
and sent letters to 17 pharmaceutical companies, to seek assurances that
Page 2 of 7

Page 113

there won’t be unfair distribution and pricing practices in the context of the
virus
16.

Department of Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (Policy Engagement)
– Supported findings from the Kingman Review in replacing the Financial
Reporting Council as well as the Competition and Markets Authority’s Review
on the audit market

17.

The LAPFF had engaged with 79 companies on issues such as Climate
Change, Community Engagement and the Just Transition during the Quarter
Ending 30 September 2020.

18.

ArcelorMittal (Climate Action) – LAPFF are currently leading the engagement
with Arcelor Mittal through the Climate Action 100+ group.

19.

Barclays (Climate Change) – LAPFF engaged with both Barclays and Share
Action, in response to both organisations submitting their own climate
resolutions. As both resolutions had become very close in their views on how
to progress Barclays’ Climate Strategy, the LAPFF were happy to support
both.

20.

Tailings Dams (Sustainability) – Community representatives flagged a list of
high risk dams, which pose significant safety concerns for affected
communities, which the LAPFF cross referenced with its own collective
holdings. They had found that the AngloAmerican, Vale and ArcelorMittal all
had dams on the list. The Forum consequently decided to pursue
engagement with these companies on how they were mitigating risk for these
communities

21.

Chipotle (Climate Change) – LAPFF met with Chipotle representatives on
numerous occasions during 2019 and into 2020, asking how they plan to
enact meaningful policies and targets to de-risk their meat and dairy supply
chains from a climate perspective. Chipotle have since confirmed it would set
science based emissions reduction targets by 2021. LAPFF’s focus is now on
ensuring the company continues to develop a methodology capable of
accurately collecting emissions data from across its value chain.

22.

The LAPFF had engaged with 145 companies on issues such as Climate
Change, Human Rights and the Just Transition during the Quarter Ending 31
December 2020.

23.

Auto Industry (Climate Action) – The LAPFF wrote to 6 vehicle manufacturers
on how they are approaching the challenge of electrifying their fleets in line
with the UK’s ban on petrol/ diesel cars by 2030. BMW has openly set
science-based targets for its Scope 1 & 2 emissions but has yet to set such
targets for Scope 3 emissions. The company assured LAPFF that it is ready
to meet a rise in demand for electric vehicles and that its own operations will
be carbon neutral by next year by offsetting its carbon emissions in a number
of ways. LAPFF has meetings organised for early 2020 with two other vehicle
manufacturers to discuss these issues. LAPFF hopes to get manufacturers
that haven’t already, to set science-based targets for their scope 3 emissions
Page 3 of 7

Page 114

and also wants to ensure that these companies are set up sufficiently to deal
with the electrification of their fleets.
24.

Standard Chartered (Climate Change) – LAPFF met with Standard Chartered
to seek evidence of progress in the period to 2030 against the company’s net
zero targets. On progress to 2030, Standard Chartered has committed to net
zero emissions across its global properties by 2030 by sourcing energy from
renewable sources and pursuing energy efficiency measures. For scope 3,
the company is working with clients to measure, monitor and reduce
emissions in order to ensure alignment of the portfolio with Paris goals.

25.

Investors for Opioid and Pharmaceutical Accountability (IOPA) – Forum
representatives also regularly attend IOPA meetings and have flagged
shareholder resolutions stemming from the initiative, both addressing the
Opioid epidemic in the US as well as engaging with the companies on their
approach to COVID-19.

26.

BAE Systems (Human Rights) – The LAPFF met with BAE and found that at
the moment the company appears to continue to focus on staff issues as its
primary social indicator of performance but doesn’t acknowledge the human
rights implication of its arms contracts. The LAPFF feels that continuation of
this engagement is necessary and would consider engaging with government
Post-Covid.

27.

The LAPFF had engaged with 145 companies on issues such as Climate
Change, Human Rights and the Just Transition during the Quarter Ending 31
March 2021.

28.

LAPFF continues to engage with Shell. In addition to its own engagement,
LAPFF is engaging via the CA100+ group of investors on Shell. The Forum is
very keen to continue the collaboration with other investors, and make sure
that investors collectively communicate a consistent and robust case to
ensure all aspects of the company’s financial outcomes and performance are
understood fully. Shell has proposed a nonbinding shareholder resolution on
its climate change plans.

29.

The Israeli-Palestinian Territories have long been fraught with controversy. In
February 2020, the Office of the United Nations High Commissioner for
Human Rights published a list of 112 business entities that it had identified as
having business activities related to settlements in these territories. The
Forum has been monitoring the ongoing situation in the territories and
reached out reached out to 16 companies in which a number of member
funds hold to seek an engagement meeting. The aim of these engagement
letters was to ascertain whether these companies had undertaken human
rights impact assessments on their operations and if not, ask them to do so.
Out of the 16 companies, LAPFF had one engagement meeting in the third
quarter of 2020 with Altice Europe N.V and received a number of responses
from other companies.

30.

Suzano, the Brazilian-based pulp and paper company, has been identified by
CA100+ as critical to the net-zero energy transition. As one of two lead
Page 4 of 7

Page 115

investors, LAPFF has been engaging with the company over the last 18
months, pushing it to take action to reduce greenhouse gas emissions,
improve disclosures, and implement a strong governance framework from
which company decision making can be made accountable. In January,
LAPFF met with the company to encourage a response to the CA100+ net
zero company benchmark. The benchmark will enable comparative
assessment of the world’s key emitters and the extent to which businesses
have aligned with a 1.5 degree global temperature rise. Since LAPFF began
engaging with Suzano 18 months ago the company has set a target to reduce
emissions intensity of scope 1 & 2 emissions by 15% by 2030. LAPFF will
continue to focus on the company’s carbon reduction strategy with a focus on
setting more ambitious scope 1 & 2 emission reduction targets.
31.

During January 2021, LAPFF met with Tesco to discuss the company’s longterm strategy relating to health and nutrition. Part of the objective of this
engagement was to encourage the company to disclose metrics relating to the
proportion of healthy versus unhealthy produce available to customers and to
set relevant targets to improve the availability of healthy items. This
engagement aligns with the Healthy Markets initiative being coordinated by
ShareAction. ShareAction has announced the filing of a resolution at the
upcoming Tesco AGM requesting that the company disclose the share of total
food and non-alcoholic drink annual sales by volume made up of healthier
products and publish a target to significantly increase that share by 2030.

32.

The Forum met with General Motors (GM) and Volkswagen (VW). Both
companies outlined their commitments to investing in and scaling up electric
vehicle production. VW stated that it was committed to achieving net zero by
2050 and highlighted the reputational damage to the company caused by the
emissions scandal. GM stated that it was aiming for an all-electric future, was
aiming for carbon neutrality, and was working with the Science-Based
Taskforce Initiative on this aim. Two weeks after the engagement GM formally
announced its plans for carbon neutrality by 2040 in products and operations
and its aspiration to eliminate tailpipe emission for light-duty vehicles by 2035.
LAPFF hopes that manufacturers that haven’t already set science-based
targets for their scope 3 emissions will do so imminently and also expects
investee companies to ensure that they are sufficiently capable of electrifying
their fleets. The Forum intends to continue engagements with carmakers to
ensure that they are meeting their targets and that short-term emission
reductions are being achieved
Safeguarding Implications

33.

Poor corporate governance and unsustainable business practices can impact
on share prices and increases the risk that the Fund may experience a loss of
value in its investments in the future

34.

Public Health Implications

35.

The Enfield Pension Fund indirectly contributes to the delivery of Public
Health priorities in the Borough.

Page 5 of 7

Page 116

Equalities Impact of the Proposal
36.

The Council is committed to Fairness for All to apply throughout all work and
decisions made. The Council serves the whole borough fairly, tackling
inequality through the provision of excellent services for all, targeted to meet
the needs of each area. The Council will listen to and understand the needs of
all its communities.
Environmental and Climate Change Considerations

37.

Environmental and climate change considerations are all over this report.
Risks that may arise if the proposed decision and related work is not
taken

38.

The rigorous robust management of LBE Pension Fund results in better
quicker and more effective decision making which can lead to better Fund
performance and reduction in the contribution required from the Council
towards the Fund.

39.

Ensuring good corporate governance and the adoption of sustainable
business models at the companies in which the Fund invests should over the
longer term ensure that they are able to deliver superior returns to the Fund.
Risks that may arise if the proposed decision is taken and actions that
will be taken to manage these risks

40.

This is a noting report.
Financial Implications

41.

This is a noting report and there are no direct financial implications as a result
of the contents of this report.

42.

The exercise of voting rights and engagement with investee companies are a
key part of the Fund’s role as a long term steward of assets. Ensuring good
corporate governance and the adoption of sustainable business models at the
companies in which the Fund invests should over the longer term ensure that
they are able to deliver superior returns to the Fund. Poor corporate
governance and unsustainable business practices can impact on share prices
and increases the risk that the Fund may experience a loss of value in its
investments in the future.
Legal Implications

43.

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of
Funds) Regulations 2016 Regulation 7 requires Administering Authorities to
publish and maintain an Investment Strategy Statement which includes,
amongst other items, details of:

Page 6 of 7

Page 117



The authority’s policy on how social, environmental and corporate
governance considerations are taken into account in the selection, nonselection, retention and realisation of investments.



The authority’s policy on the exercise of the rights (including voting rights)
attaching to investments.

5.2

In addition, Government guidance on the preparation and maintenance of the
Investment Strategy Statement states that Administering Authorities should
explain their policy on stewardship with reference to the Stewardship Code, the
seven principles of which apply on a ‘comply or explain’ basis.

5.3

There are no immediate legal implications arising from this report.
Workforce Implications

44.

The employer’s contribution is a significant element of the Council’s budget
and consequently any improvement in investment performance will allow the
Council to meet this obligation easily and could also make resources available
for other corporate priorities.
Property Implications

45.

None
Other Implications

46.

None
Options Considered

47.

The Fund would remain a member of LAPFF but to ensure the Fund’s
Responsible Investment (RI) approach is enhanced the engagement
approach can be improved by procuring an overlay service rather than relying
on delegation to fund managers.

Report Author:

Date of report

Bola Tobun
Finance Manager – Pensions & Treasury
Bola.Tobun@enfield.gov.uk
Tel no. 020 8132 1588
30th June 2021

Appendices
Appendix 1 – LAPFF Voting Alerts and Votes Outcomes
Background Papers
https://lapfforum.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/07/LAPFF_QER2_2020_01.pdf
https://lapfforum.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/10/LAPFF_QER3_2020.pdf
https://lapfforum.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/01/LAPFF_QER4_2020_final.pdf
https://lapfforum.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/04/LAPFF_QER1_2021.pdf

Page 7 of 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 119

Agenda Item 7

London Borough of Enfield
PENSION POLICY AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE
Meeting Date: 29 July 2021

Subject:

Draft Enfield Pension Fund Financial Statement for 2020/21

Cabinet Member:

Cllr Maguire

Executive Director:

Fay Hammond

Key Decision:

[

]

Purpose of Report
1.

This report presents the draft Pension Fund Statement of Accounts for 2020-21 for
approval.

2.

The draft Pension Fund Statement of Accounts 2020/21 is attached as Appendix A
to this report.
Proposal(s)

3.

The Committee are recommended to:
i) Note the contents of this report and
ii) Note and approve for external audit submission the draft Pension Fund
Statement of Accounts for 2020/21, attached as Appendix A to this report.
Reason for Proposal(s)

4.

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require that each Local Authority approve
its audited financial report statements by the statutory deadline of 30th September
each year. The external auditors are required to audit this report and to provide an
audit opinion by the same date.

5.

The Pension Policy & Investment Committee (PPIC) acts as quasi-trustee to the
Pension Fund and as such acts in the capacity of the Administering Authority of the
Pension Fund. The PPIC’s terms of reference require that the Annual Report and
Accounts on the activities of the Fund are presented and approved prior to their
publication. The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013, Regulation
57 require the Pension Fund to publish its report and accounts by 1st December
following the financial year end and for the Report to contain a number of standard
items.

Page 120

6.

The publication of the Pension Fund Annual Report and Statement of Accounts helps
to keep Fund members informed, shows good governance and also helps to
demonstrate effective management of Fund assets
Relevance to the Council’s Corporate Plan

7.

Good homes in well-connected neighbourhoods.

8.

Build our Economy to create a thriving place.

9.

Sustain Strong and healthy Communities.
Background

10.

The production of the Pension Fund Accounts, has a statutory requirement of 31
May 2021 (although due to COVID-19 interruptions, this deadline is currently
extended to 31 July 2021). The draft Pension Fund Accounts for 2020/21 is attached
at Appendix A, Committee members are asked to comment on any matters in the
draft Pension Fund Account.
THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

11.

The Accounts comprise two main statements with supporting notes. The main
statements are:
i) Dealings with members, employers and others which is essentially the fund’s
revenue account; and
ii) The Net Assets Statement which can be considered as the fund’s balance
sheet.

12.

The return on investment section of the accounts sets out the movement in the net
worth of the fund in the year by analysing the relevant financial transactions and
movements in the market value of the investment portfolio. The statement has two
main sections:
i) The financial transactions relating to the administration of the fund; and
ii) The transactions relating to its role as an investor.

13.

Overall, the Fund’s assets has performed exceptionally well with asset value
increasing by £246m in the financial year. The overall improvement was due to the
out performance of the financial markets in which the Fund held its investments and
a net withdrawals of fund expenditure over income.

14.

The net asset statement represents the net worth (£1,395m) of the Fund as at the
31st March 2021. The statement reflects how the transactions outlined in the other
statement have impacted on the value of the Fund’s assets.

15.

The Fund income section of the report principally relates to the receipt of
contributions, from employers and active members, and the payment of pensions
benefits. The section indicates that the Fund is cash positive in that that the receipt
of contributions exceeds payments, which stood at £5.5m net additions for 2020/21
compared to net addition of £7.1m in 2019/20.

Page 121

16.

Investment income improved over the year as expected in line with strengthened
assets value by some £1.2m. Transfer Values received (amounts paid over when a
fund member transfers their benefits from one fund to another) was more by £1.2m
over the year. It is not possible to predict the value of transfer value payments as
they are dependent on an individual’s length of service and salary and as such may
vary significantly. The total contributions reduced over the year by £2m compared to
last year this was due to LB Enfield employer contribution rate reduced from 24.9%
to 20.9%.

17.

In 2020/21 the overall expenditure increased by some £2.2m. The major contributors
were the overall benefits paid which increased by some £1.6m over the year. The
management expenses went up by £1.2m and this is solely and increase from
administration costs.

18.

Overall, fund membership has increased slightly from 23,123 to 23,690, an increase
in membership number of 567. The active members increased by 357 members over
the year whilst deferred members increased slightly by 11. Retired membership
increased significantly by 199 members.

19.

The investment performance section of the report details returns on the investment
portfolio, the impact of managers’ activities and investment markets on the value of
investments.

20.

The Audit Plan for the Pension Fund and any reports arising from the audit will be
reported to the Pension Policy & Investments Committee. However, as the pension
fund accounts remain part of the financial statements of the Council as a whole, the
Audit Committee retain ultimate responsibility for receiving, considering and agreeing
audit plans as well as receiving any reports arising from the audit.

21.

The External Auditor provides an independent assessment of the Council’s Pension
Fund financial statements, systems, procedures and performance. The external
auditor is required to issue an ISA 260 report, an opinion on the Council’s accounts
and this will include an opinion on the Pension Fund accounts. The ISA 260 report
sets out their opinion and any issues which they believe the Committee should be
aware of.

22.

The Pension Fund accounts is ready to be submitted to the Council’s external
auditors for external audit. The Fund is still awaiting the commencement of the
external audit. It is anticipated that there will be no significant findings.

23.

The Pension Fund audit has not started yet by BDO and the audit fee is being
maintained at £19,000, this would be charged to the Pension Fund.

24.

The Audit Plan for the Pension Fund and any reports arising from the audit will also
be reported to the General Purpose committee as the pension fund accounts remain
part of the financial statements of the Council as a whole. However, the Pension
Policy and Investment Committee retains ultimate responsibility for receiving,
considering and agreeing audit plans as well as receiving any reports arising from
the audit.
Safeguarding Implications

Page 122

25.

The report provides clear evidence of sound financial management, efficient use of
resources, promotion of income generation and adherence to Best Value and good
performance management.
Public Health Implications

26.

The Enfield Pension Fund indirectly contributes to the delivery of Public Health
priorities in the borough.
Equalities Impact of the Proposal

27.

The Council is committed to Fairness for All to apply throughout all work and
decisions made. The Council serves the whole borough fairly, tackling inequality
through the provision of excellent services for all, targeted to meet the needs of each
area. The Council will listen to and understand the needs of all its communities.
Environmental and Climate Change Considerations

28.

There are no environmental and climate change considerations arising from this
report.
Risks that may arise if the proposed decision and related work is not taken

29.

Accounts provide an effective mechanism to safeguard the Council’s assets and
assess the risks associated with its activities.
Risks that may arise if the proposed decision is taken and actions that will be
taken to manage these risks

30.

Not approving the report recommendations and not adhering to the overriding legal
requirements could impact on meeting the ongoing objectives of the Enfield Pension
Fund.
Financial Implications

31.

The Council as Administering Authority has the responsibility of ensuring that the
Pension Fund is administered effectively and efficiently and that arrangement for
financial management are properly scrutinised. The performance of the fund affects
the level of employer’s contribution to the fund.

32.

The Pension Fund Statement of Accounts sets out the financial position of the
Pension Fund as at 31st March 2021 and acts as the basis for understanding the
financial wellbeing of the Pension Fund. It enables Members to manage and monitor
the Scheme effectively, helping to ensure that they are able to fully understand the
financial implications of the decisions they make.
Legal Implications

33.

Regulation 57 of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 imposes
a duty on the Council as an administering authority to prepare a pension fund annual
report. The report must be published by 1st December following the financial year
end.

Page 123

34.

The Council is required to prepare a statement of accounts in accordance with the
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.

35.

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 specify a procedure for signing, approval
and publication of a statement of accounts. The chief finance officer is required to
sign and date the statement of accounts by 31 May each year, certifying that it
presents a true and fair view of the Council’s financial position at the end of the
relevant financial year and of the Council’s income and expenditure for the year.

36.

The Audit Committee must approve the statement of accounts by 30 September
each year and the statement must be signed by the chair of the meeting at which the
accounts were approved. The statement of the accounts must be published by 30
September along with any certificate, opinion or report issued or given by the Local
Auditor under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014.

37.

As indicated in the report, it is consistent with good practice for the committee to see
the statement of accounts at an early stage, given that it will be asked to approve the
accounts upon completion of the audit.
Workforce Implications

38.

The employer’s contribution is a significant element of the Council’s budget and
consequently any improvement in investment performance will allow the Council to
meet this obligation easily and could also make resources available for other
corporate priorities.
Property Implications

39.

None
Other Implications

40.

None
Options Considered

41.

There are no alternative options in so far as the publication of the Statement of
Accounts and Annual Reports is a legislative requirement
Conclusions

42.

The Fund assets increased significantly by £246m over the year. The net asset
statement represents the net worth (£1,395.6m) of the Fund. This significant
improvement was because of the astounding out performance of global equity
market.

Report Author:

Bola Tobun
Finance Manager – Pensions & Treasury
Bola.Tobun@enfield.gov.uk
Tel no. 020 8132 1588

Date of report

20th June 2021

Page 124

Appendices
Appendix A – Enfield Pension Fund Draft Financial Statements For 2020/21
Background Papers
None

Page 125

2020/21
ENFIELD PENSION FUND
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

Pension Policy & Investment Committee
London Borough of Enfield
2020/21

Page 126

PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS – 2020/21
LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD PENSION FUND ACCOUNT
2019/20
£000s

Notes

Dealings with members, employers and others directly
involved in the Fund
51,044 Contributions
3,971 Transfers in from other pension funds
55,015

2020/21
£000s

7
8

49,031
5,454
54,486

(42,778) Benefits payable
(5,173) Payments to and on account of leavers
(47,951)
7,063 Net additions/(withdrawals) from dealings with members

9
10

(44,374)
(4,639)
(49,013)
5,473

(10,088) Management expenses

11

(11,244)

(3,025) Net additional/(withdrawals) including fund management

(5,772)

Returns on investments
12,012 Investment income
Taxes on income
Profit & losses on disposal of investments and changes in the
(45,057)
market value of investments
(33,045) Net returns on investments

12
13a
14a

13,214
238,693
251,907

(36,070) Net change in assets available for benefits during the year
1,185,500 Opening net assets of the scheme

246,136
1,149,430

1,149,430 Closing net assets of the scheme

1,395,566

NET ASSETS STATEMENT FOR YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
2019/20
£000s
1,094,703
(251)
1,094,451
52,855
2,351
(149)
1,149,508
53
897
(1,027)
1,149,430

Notes
Investment assets
Investment liabilities

14

Cash deposits
Other investment balances -assets
Other investment balances - liabilities
Total net investments
Long term debtor
Current assets
Current liabilities
Net assets of the fund available to fund benefits at the end of
the reporting period

14
14
14
14
20a
20
21

2020/21
£000s
1,292,845
(141)
1,292,704
100,369
2,685
(735)
1,395,023
96
950
(489)
1,395,566

Note: The fund’s financial statements do not take account of liabilities to pay pensions and other benefits
after the period end. The actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits is disclosed at Note 19.
Signed:
Fay Hammond
Executive Director Resources
31st May 2021
Page 1 of 29

Page 127

PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS – 2020/21
Notes to the Financial Statement –index
Note 1

Description of the Fund

Note 2

Basis of preparation

Note 3

Summary of significant accounting policies

Note 4

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

Note 5

Assumptions made about the future & other major sources of estimation uncertainty

Note 6

Events after the reporting date

Note 7

Contributions

Note 8

Transfers in from other pension funds

Note 9

Benefits paid/payable

Note 10

Payments to & on account of leavers

Note 11

Management expenses

Note 11a

Investment management expenses

Note 12

Investment income

Note 13

Taxes on income

Note 13a

External audit fees

Note 14

Investments

Note 14a

Reconciliation of movements in investment & derivatives

Note 14b

Analysis of investments

Note 14c

Investments analysed by fund manager

Note 15

Fair value - basis of valuation

Note 15a

Fair value – hierarchy

Note 15b

Transfers between levels 1 & 2

Note 15c

Reconciliation of fair value measurements with level 3

Note 16

Financial instruments

Note 16a

Classification of financial instruments

Note 16b

Net gains and losses on financial instruments

Note 17

Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments

Note 18

Funding arrangements

Note 19

Actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits

Note 20

Current assets

Note 20a

Long term debtors

Note 21

Current liabilities

Note 22

Additional voluntary contributions

Note 23

Agency services

Note 24

Related party transactions

Note 24a

Key management personnel

Note 25

Contingent liabilities and contractual commitments

Page 2 of 29

Page 128

PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS – 2020/21
1. Description of the Fund
The Enfield Pension Fund (‘the fund’) is part of the LGPS and is administered by London Borough of
Enfield. The council is the reporting entity for this pension fund.
The following description of the fund is a summary only. For more detail, reference should be made to
the Enfield Pension Fund Annual Report 2019/20 and the underlying statutory powers underpinning the
scheme.
a) General
The scheme is governed by the Public Service Pensions Act 2013. The fund is administered in
accordance with the following secondary legislation:




the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (as amended).
the Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions, Savings and
(Amendment) Regulations 2014 (as amended).
the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds)
Regulations 2016.

It is a contributory defined benefit pension scheme administered by London Borough of Enfield to
provide pensions and other benefits for pensionable employees of London Borough of Enfield and a
range of other scheduled and admitted bodies within the borough. Teachers, police officers and
firefighters are not included as they come within other national pension schemes.
The fund is overseen by the Enfield Pension Policy & Investment Committee, which is a committee of
London Borough of Enfield.
b) Membership
Membership of the LGPS is voluntary and employees are free to choose whether to join the scheme,
remain in the scheme or make their own personal arrangements outside the scheme.
Organisations participating in the fund include the following:
Scheduled bodies, which are local authorities and similar bodies whose staff are automatically
entitled to be members of the fund.
Admitted bodies, which are other organisations that participate in the fund under an admission
agreement between the fund and the relevant organisation. Admitted bodies include voluntary,
charitable and similar bodies or private contractors undertaking a local authority function
following outsourcing to the private sector.
There are 54 employer organisations within the fund (including the Council itself), and 23,690 individual
members, as detailed below. A full analysis is included
Enfield Pension Fund
Number of employers with active members
Number of pensioners
Deferred pensioners
Frozen/undecided
Total number of members in pension scheme

31 March 2020
7,413
5,663
6,899
3,148
23,123

31 March 2021
7,770
5,862
7,560
2,498
23,690

c) Funding
Benefits are funded by contributions and investment earnings. Contributions are made by active
members of the fund in accordance with the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 and
range from 5.5% to 12.5% of pensionable pay for the financial year ending 31 March 2021. Employee
contributions are matched by employers’ contributions which are set based on triennial actuarial funding
valuations. The results of recent formal valuation as at 31 March 2019 has employer contribution rates
range from 0% to 34.6% of pensionable pay.

Page 3 of 29

Page 129

PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS – 2020/21
d) Benefits
Prior to 1 April 2014, pension benefits under the LGPS were based on final pensionable pay and length
of pensionable service, summarised below.

Pension
Lump sum

Service pre April 2008
Each year worked is worth 1/80 x
final pensionable salary.

Service post 31 March 2008
Each year worked is worth 1/60 x
final pensionable salary.

Automatic lump sum of 3 x pension.
In addition, part of the annual
pension can be exchanged for a
one-off tax-free cash payment. A
lump sum of £12 is paid for each £1
of pension given up.

No automatic lump sum.
Part of the annual pension can be
exchanged for a one-off tax-free
cash payment. A lump sum of £12 is
paid for each £1 of pension given up.

From 1 April 2014, the scheme became a career average scheme, whereby members accrue benefits
based on their pensionable pay in that year at an accrual rate of 1/49th. Accrued pension is updated
annually in line with the Consumer Price Index.
There are a range of other benefits provided under the scheme including early retirement, disability
pensions and death benefits.
2. Basis of preparation
The statement of accounts summarises the fund’s transactions for the 2020/21 financial year and its
position at year-end as at 31 March 2020. The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2020/21, which is based upon
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as amended for the UK public sector.
The accounts report on the net assets available to pay pension benefits. They do not take account of
obligations to pay pensions and benefits which fall due after the end of the financial year nor do they
take into account the actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits. The Code gives
administering authorities the option to disclose this information in the net assets statement, in the notes
to the accounts or by appending an actuarial report prepared for this purpose. The pension fund has
opted to disclose this information in Note 19.
The accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis.
3. Summary of significant accounting policies
Fund account – revenue recognition
a) Contribution income
Normal contributions, both from the members and from the employer, are accounted for on an accruals
basis at the percentage rate recommended by the fund actuary in the payroll period to which they relate.
Employer deficit funding contributions are accounted for on the due dates on which they are payable
under the schedule of contributions set by the scheme actuary or on receipt if earlier than the due date.
Employers’ augmentation contributions and pensions strain contributions are accounted for in the
period in which the liability arises. Any amount due in year but unpaid will be classed as a current
financial asset. Amounts not due until future years are classed as long-term financial assets.
b) Transfers to and from other schemes
Transfer values represent the amounts received and paid during the year for members who have either
joined or left the fund during the financial year and are calculated in accordance with the Local
Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (see Notes 8 and 10).
Individual transfers in/out are accounted for when received/paid, which is normally when the member
liability is accepted or discharged.
Page 4 of 29

Page 130

PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS – 2020/21
Transfers in from members wishing to use the proceeds of their additional voluntary contributions (see
below) to purchase scheme benefits are accounted for on a receipts basis and are included in transfers
in (see Note 8).
Bulk (group) transfers are accounted for on an accruals basis in accordance with the terms of the
transfer agreement.
c) Investment income
i) Interest income Interest income is recognised in the fund account as it accrues, using the effective
interest rate of the financial instrument as at the date of acquisition or origination. Income includes the
amortisation of any discount or premium, transaction costs (where material) or other differences
between the initial carrying amount of the instrument and its amount at maturity calculated on an
effective interest rate basis.
ii) Dividend income Dividend income is recognised on the date the shares are quoted ex-dividend.
Any amount not received by the end of the reporting period is disclosed in the net assets statement as
a current financial asset.
iii) Distributions from pooled funds Distributions from pooled funds are recognised at the date of
issue. Any amount not received by the end of the reporting period is disclosed in the net assets
statement as a current financial asset.
iv) Movement in the net market value of investments Changes in the net market value of investments
(including investment properties) are recognised as income and comprise all realised and unrealised
profits/losses during the year.
Fund account – expense items
d) Benefits payable
Pensions and lump-sum benefits payable include all amounts known to be due as at the end of the
financial year. Any amounts due but unpaid are disclosed in the net assets statement as current
liabilities.
e) Taxation
The fund is a registered public service scheme under Section 1(1) of Schedule 36 of the Finance Act
2004 and as such is exempt from UK income tax on interest received and from capital gains tax on the
proceeds of investments sold. Income from overseas investments suffers withholding tax in the country
of origin, unless exemption is permitted. Irrecoverable tax is accounted for as a fund expense as it
arises.
f) Management expenses
The Code does not require any breakdown of pension fund administrative expenses; however, it
requires the disclosure of investment management transaction costs. For greater transparency, the
fund discloses its pension fund management expenses in accordance with the CIPFA's Accounting for
Local Government Pension Scheme Management Expenses (2016), which shows the breakdown of
administrative expenses, including transaction costs.
i) Administrative expenses All administrative expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis. All
staff costs of the pension’s administration team are charged direct to the fund. Associated
management, accommodation and other overheads are apportioned to this activity and charged as
expenses to the fund.
ii) Oversight and governance costs All oversight and governance expenses are accounted for on
an accruals basis. All staff costs associated with governance and oversight are charged direct to the

Page 5 of 29

Page 131

PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS – 2020/21
fund. Associated management, accommodation and other overheads are apportioned to this activity
and charged as expenses to the fund.
iii) Investment management expenses All investment management expenses are accounted for on
an accruals basis.
Fees of the external investment managers and custodian are agreed in the respective mandates
governing their appointments. Broadly, these are based on the market value of the investments under
their management and therefore increase or reduce as the value of these investments change.
In addition the fund has negotiated with the following managers that an element of their fee be
performance related. Where an investment manager’s fee note has not been received by the year-end
date, an estimate based upon the market value of their mandate as at the end of the year is used for
inclusion in the fund account.

Net assets statement
g) Financial assets
Financial assets are included in the net assets statement on a fair value basis as at the reporting date.
A financial asset is recognised in the net assets statement on the date the fund becomes party to the
contractual acquisition of the asset. From this date any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of the asset are recognised in the fund account.
The values of investments as shown in the net assets statement have been determined at fair value in
accordance with the requirements of the Code and IFRS13 (see Note 15). For the purposes of
disclosing levels of fair value hierarchy, the fund has adopted the classification guidelines
recommended in Practical Guidance on Investment Disclosures (PRAG/Investment Association, 2016).
Foreign currency transactions
h) Dividends
Interest and purchases and sales of investments in foreign currencies have been accounted for at the
spot market rates at the date of transaction. End-of-year spot market exchange rates are used to value
cash balances held in foreign currency bank accounts, market values of overseas investments and
purchases and sales outstanding at the end of the reporting period.
i) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash comprises cash in hand and demand deposits and includes amounts held by the fund’s external
managers.
Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts
of cash and that are subject to minimal risk of changes in value.
j) Financial liabilities
The fund recognises financial liabilities at fair value as at the reporting date. A financial liability is
recognised in the net assets statement on the date the fund becomes party to the liability. From this
date any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the liability are recognised by the fund.
k) Actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits
The actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits is assessed on a triennial basis by the
scheme actuary in accordance with the requirements of IAS 19 and relevant actuarial standards.
As permitted under the Code, the fund has opted to disclose the actuarial present value of promised
retirement benefits by way of a note to the net assets statement (Note 19).
l) Additional voluntary contributions
The Enfield Pension Fund provides an additional voluntary contribution (AVC) scheme for Its employers
and are specifically for providing additional benefits for individual contributors. The fund has appointed
Prudential as its AVC provider. AVCs are paid to the AVC provider by employers and are specifically
Page 6 of 29

Page 132

PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS – 2020/21
for providing additional benefits for individual contributors. Each AVC contributor receives an annual
statement showing the amount held in their account and the movements in the year.
AVCs are not included in the accounts in accordance with Regulation 4(1)(b) of the Local Government
Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016 but are disclosed as a
note only (Note 22).
m) Contingent assets and contingent liabilities
A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place prior to the year-end giving rise to a possible
financial obligation whose existence will only be confirmed or otherwise by the occurrence of future
events. Contingent liabilities can also arise in circumstances where a provision would be made, except
that it is not possible at the balance sheet date to measure the value of the financial obligation reliably.
4. Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
In applying the accounting policies set out in Note 3 above, the Fund has had to make certain critical
judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events.
Pooled property
As a result of the COVID-19 outbreak, which caused extensive disruption to businesses and economic
activities on a global level in all sectors, the property valuers valuing the underlying assets within the
two pooled property funds, have reported their valuation on the basis of ‘material valuation uncertainty’.
The declaration does not mean that the valuation cannot be relied upon, but it does mean that less
certainty, and a higher degree of caution, should be attached to the valuation of the property than would
normally be the case. Additionally, the two pooled property funds had suspended trading as at 31 March
2020. The effect of this is to require these assets to be moved from a fair value hierarchy level 2 to level
3 as at 31 March 2020. In September 2020, the material uncertainty and suspended trading were
removed from these funds.
5. Assumptions made about the future and other major sources of estimation uncertainty
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported for assets and liabilities at the year-end and the amounts
reported for income and expenditure during the year. Estimates and assumptions are made taking into
account historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, the nature of
estimation means that the actual results could differ from the assumptions and estimates.
The items in the net assets statement at 31 March 2021 (for which there is a significant risk of material
adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are set out in the table below:
Item

Uncertainties

Actuarial present
value of promised
retirement benefits
(Note 19)

Estimation of the net liability to pay
pensions depends on a number of
complex judgements relating to the
discount rate used, the rate at which
salaries are projected to increase,
changes in retirement ages, mortality
rates and expected returns on
pension fund assets. A firm of
consulting actuaries is engaged to
provide the fund with expert advice
about the assumptions to be applied.

Page 7 of 29

Effect if actual results differ from
assumptions
The effects on the net pension liability of
changes in individual assumptions can
be measured. For instance:
a. 1% decrease in the discount rate
assumption would result in a decrease
in the pension liability of approximately
£223m.
b. 1% increase in assumed earnings
inflation would decrease the value of
liabilities by approximately £223m.
c. if life expectancy increases by two
years, it would decrease the liability by
approximately £92m.
It should be noted that any changes
in the above would not have an effect
on either the Fund Account or the Net
Asset Statement.

Page 133

PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS – 2020/21
Hedge fund of
funds (Note 15)

Private equity –
venture capital
investments
(Note 15)

Pooled property
investments
(Note 15)

The fund of funds is valued at the
sum of the fair values provided by the
administrators of the underlying
funds plus adjustments that the fund
of funds' directors or independent
administrators judge is necessary.
These investments are not publicly
listed and as such, there is a degree
of estimation involved in the
valuation.
The figure for “Investments at fair
value” is based on the latest
information received from asset
managers prior to the Fund’s
accounting records closing for the
quarter. The valuation methodologies
are considered to be consistent with
the International Private Equity and
Venture Capital Valuation Guidelines.
Valuation techniques are used to
determine the carrying amount of
pooled property funds and directly
held freehold and leasehold property.
Where possible these valuation
techniques are based on observable
data but where this is not possible
management uses the best available
data.

The total hedge fund of funds value in
the financial statements is £249m. There
is a risk that the investment may be
under or overstated in the accounts.
Given a tolerance of +/-7.5% around the
net asset values on which the valuation
is based, this would equate to a
tolerance of +/- £18.7m.

The venture capital private equity
investments in the financial statements
are £91.97m. There is a risk that this
may be over or understated. Further
detail is shown in Note 15 regarding the
sensitivity of this valuation.

Changes in the valuation assumptions
used, together with significant changes
in rental growth, vacancy levels or the
discount rate could affect the fair value
of property-based investments by up to
10% i.e. an increase or decrease of
£0.79m, on carrying values of £7.9m.

NOTE 6: EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
Management have reviewed and can confirm that there are no significant events occurring after the
reporting period.

Page 8 of 29

Page 134

PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS – 2020/21
NOTE 7: CONTRIBUTIONS
By category
2019/20
£000s
11,078
29,648
9,503
815
39,966
51,044

Employees’ contributions
Employers’ contributions: Normal
Deficit recovery contributions
Augmentation contributions
Total employers’ contributions

2020/21
£000s
12,055
33,353
9,503
1,141
36,976
49,031

By authority
2019/20
£000s
39,237
9,724
2,083
51,044

2020/21
£000s
38,497
9,820
714
49,031

Administering authority
Scheduled bodies
Admitted bodies

NOTE 8: TRANSFERS IN FROM OTHER PENSION FUNDS
2019/20
£000s
3,971
3,971

2020/21
£000s
5,454
5,454

Individual transfers

NOTE 9: BENEFITS PAID/PAYABLE
By category
2019/20
£000s
(35,828)
(6,684)
(266)
(41,966)

Pensions
Commutation and lump sum retirement benefits
Lump sum death benefits

2020/21
£000s
(37,222)
(6,488)
(664)
(44,374)

By authority
2019/20
£000s
(40,988)
(1,405)
(385)
(42,778)

2020/21
£000s
(41,668)
(2,199)
(507)
(44,374)

Administration authority
Scheduled bodies
Admitted bodies

Page 9 of 29

Page 135

PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS – 2020/21
NOTE 10: PAYMENTS TO AND ON ACCOUNT OF LEAVERS
2019/20
£000s
(129)
(5,173)
(5,302)

Refunds to members leaving service
Individual transfers

2020/21
£000s
(85)
(4,554)
(4,639)

NOTE 11: MANAGEMENT EXPENSES
2019/20
£000s
(1123)
(108)
(8,857)
(10,088)

Administrative costs
Oversight and governance costs
Investment management expenses

2020/21
£000s
(1,695)
(90)
(9,496)
(11,244)

NOTE 11A: INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT EXPENSES
2019/20
£000s
(6,512)
(304)
(1,848)
(63)
(130)
(8,857)

Management fees
Performance related fees
Transaction costs
Custody fees
Other

2020/21
£000s
(6,037)
(1,127)
(2,132)
(83)
(116)
(9,496)

NOTE 12: INVESTMENT INCOME
2019/20
£000s
2,053
3,439
1,786
4,121
614
12,013

Income from equities
Income from bonds
Pooled property investments
Pooled investments – unit trusts and other managed funds
Interest on cash deposits

2020/21
£000s
2,225
3,439
2,389
5,133
28
13,214

NOTE 13: TAXES ON INCOME
2019/20
£000s
(0)
(0)
(0)

2020/21
£000s
Withholding tax
Income from equities
Pooled investments – unit trusts and other managed funds

(0)
(0)
(0)

NOTE 13A: EXTERNAL AUDIT FEES
2019/20
£000s
19
19

Paid in respect of external audit (excluding VAT)

Page 10 of 29

2020/21
£000s
19
19

Page 136

PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS – 2020/21
Market value
31 March 2020
£000s

Market value
31 March 2021
£000s

168
0
1,094,703
52,855
2,351
0
1,149,909

Investments
Fixed interest securities
Equities
Pooled investments
Pooled property investments
Private equity
Derivative contracts:
- Futures
- Forward currency contracts
Total investment assets
Cash deposits
Investment income due
Amounts receivable for sales
Total investment assets

5
44
1,292,845
100,369
2,445
240
1,395,899

(69)
(183)
(149)
(401)

Investment liabilities
Derivative contracts:
- Futures
- Forward currency contracts
Investment expenditure due
Total investment liabilities

(141)
(0)
(735)
(876)

90,622
45,015
766,037
68,861
124,000

1,149,508

99,209
48,424
925,799
68,986
150,378

Net investment assets

1,395,023

Net investment assets

Market value
31 March 2021

Change in
market value

Sales

Other investment balances
Cash deposits
Investment income due
Pending investment sales
Pending investment purchases

Purchases

Derivatives contracts:
Futures
Options
Forward foreign exchange

Market value
1 April
2020

Period 2020/21
Bonds
Equities
Pooled investments
Pooled property
Private equity

Management
fees in Market
value

NOTE 14A: RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN INVESTMENTS & DERIVATIVES

£000s
90,621
45,015
766,037
68,861
124,000
1,094,534

£000s
14,680
69,180
12,411
0
11,052
107,323

£000s
(12,684)
(68,989)
(49,076)
(1,047)
(14,078)
(145,874)

£000s
(402)
(1,514)
(2,051)
(699)
(1,371)
(6,037)

99

513

(384)

-

(364)

(136)

(183)
(84)
1,094,450

350
863
108,186

(446)
(830)
(146,704)

0
(6,037)

323
(41)
242,809

44
(92)
1,292,703

52,855
2,351
(149)
-

(4,115)

100,369
2,445
(735)
240

1,149,508

238,694

1,395,022

*Change in MV of short term bills and
notes

Page 11 of 29

£000s
6,994
4,732
198,478
1,818
30,827
242,850

£000s
99,209
48,424
925,799
68,933
150,430
1,292,795

Page 137

Period 2019/20
Bonds
Equities
Pooled investments
Pooled property
Private equity
Derivatives contracts:
Futures
Options
Forward foreign exchange

Other investment
balances
Cash deposits
Investment income due
Pending investment sales
Other investment expenses
Net investment assets

£000s
88,278
43,141
824,211
69,598
98,549
1,123,777

£000s
30,830
989
10,111

£000s
(1,445)
885
(54,807)
(559)
8,835
(47,091)

Market value
31 March 2020

Change in
market value

Management
fees in Market
value

Sales

Purchases

Market value
1 April
2019

PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS – 2020/21

29,270
71,200

£000s
(27,041)
0
(8,764)
0
(10,973)
(46,778)

£000s
(0)
0
(4,714)
(178)
(1,681)
(6,573)

£000s
90,622
45,015
766,037
68,861
124,000
1,094,535

66

901

(1,290)

-

422

99

33
99
1,123,876

486
1,387
72,587

(455)
(1,745)
(48,523)

(6,573)

(247)
175
(46,916)

(183)
(84)
1,094,451

58,091
2,386
1,147
(183)

1,859*

52,855
2,351
(149)
-

1,185,317

(45,057)

1,149,508

*Change in MV of short term bills
and notes

Purchases and sales of derivatives are recognised in Note 14a above
as follows:
 Futures – on close out or expiry of the futures contract the variation margin balances held in
respect of unrealised gains or losses are recognised as cash receipts or payments, depending
on whether there is a gain or loss.
 Forward currency contracts – forward foreign exchange contracts settled during the period are
reported on a gross basis as gross receipts and payments.

Page 12 of 29

Page 138

PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS – 2020/21
NOTE 14B: ANALYSIS OF INVESTMENTS
Market value
31 March 2020
£000s
Bonds
UK
2,702 Public sector quoted
42,101 Corporate quoted
Overseas
806 Public sector quoted
45,013 Corporate quoted
90,622
Equities
45,015 UK –quoted
- Overseas –quoted
45,015
Pooled funds –additional analysis
90,762 Indexed linked securities
426,067 Equities
38,925 Developed markets equity long short fund
36,286 Events driven fund hedge fund
73,161 Inflation opportunities fund
29,321 Absolute bond fund
27,839 Multi-strategy equity hedge fund
43,676 Multi asset credit fund
766,037
Pooled property investments
68,861 UK property investments
68,861
Private equity
6,791 Opportunistic property
21,764 European infrastructure
73,403 Fund of Funds global private equity
22,042 UK secured long income fund
124,000
Derivatives- Assets
168 Futures
- Forward foreign exchange
168
1,094,703 Total Investment Assets
52,855 Cash deposits
2,351 Investment income due
- Amounts receivable from sales
1,149,909
(69)
(183)
(149)
(401)
1,149,508

Investment liabilities
Derivatives- futures
Derivatives- forward foreign exchanges
Investment expenses

Net investment assets

Page 13 of 29

Market value
31 March 2021
£000s
2,758
49,038
1,324
46,090
99,209
48,424
48,424
91,734
604,281
0
34,431
78,638
31,855
30,153
54,707
925,799
68,986
68,986
7,936
22,776
91,970
27,696
150,378
5
44
49
1,292,846
100,369
2,445
240
1,395,899
(141)
(0)
(735)
(876)
1,395,023

Page 139

PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS – 2020/21
NOTE 14C: INVESTMENTS ANALYSED BY FUND MANAGER
Market value
31 March 2020
£000s

Market value
31 March 2021
£000s

%

7.9%

Fixed income securities
Western Asset Management

98,381

7.1%

3.9%

Equities
International Public Partnerships

48,424

3.5%

91,734
220,389
140,390
116,232
35,926
91,344
54,707
0
5,980
78,638
31,855
30,153

6.6%
15.8%
10.1%
8.3%
2.6%
6.6%
3.9%
0.0%
0.4%
5.6%
2.3%
2.2%

28,451

2.0%

3.1%
2.9%

Pooled property
RREEF commercial property
Blackrock commercial property
Legal & General commercial prop.

53
34,825
34,108

2.5%
2.4%

6.4%
1.9%
0.6%
1.8%

Private equity
Adam St Partners fund of funds
Antin European infrastructure
Brockton opportunistic property
CBRE UK secured long income fund

91,970
22,776
7,936
27,696

6.6%
1.6%
0.6%
2.0%

35,868
16,952
35
2,118

3.1%
1.5%
0.2%

Cash & accruals
Goldman Sachs cash
Northern Trust cash
Blackrock MMF
Investment accruals

31,296
69,039
35
2,685

2.2%
4.9%
0.0%
0.2%

1,1149,508

100.0%

1,395,022

100.0%

90,621

45,015

90,762
9,782
148,736
102,567
74,376
23,420
67,187
43,676
38,925
11,051
73,161
29,321
27,839
25,235

342
35,263
33,256

73,403
21,764
6,791
22,042

%

7.9%
0.9%
12.9%
8.9%
6.5%
2.0%
5.8%
3.8%
3.4%
1.0%
6.4%
2.6%
2.4%
2.2%

Pooled investments
Blackrock indexed linked bonds
Blackrock UK passive fund
Blackrock Global passive
Blackrock Low carbon Global passive
MFS global equities
LCIV Baillie Gifford global equities
LCIV JP Morgan emerging equities
LCIV Longview
LCIV CQS Multi asset
Lansdowne hedge fund
York Capital hedge fund
M&G inflation opportunities
Insight hedge fund
Davidson Kempner hedge fund
CFM hedge fund

Page 14 of 29

Page 140

PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS – 2020/21
The following investments represent more than 5% of the net assets of the scheme. All of these
companies are registered in the UK.
Security

Market value
31 March 2020
£000s

Blackrock – Global Equities
Blackrock – Low Carbon Equities
MFS global equities
Western Asset – corporate bonds
Blackrock – indexed linked bonds
LCIV – Longview global equities
LCIV – Baillie Gifford global equities
M&G Inflation opportunities
Adam Street Partners – private equity

% of total
Fund

148,736

12.9%

102,567
90,621
90,762
67,187
74,376
73,161
73,403

8.9%
7.9%
7.9%
5.8%
6.5%
6.4%
6.4%

Market value
31 March 2021
£000s

% of total
Fund

220,389
140,390
98,381
91,734
91,344
116,232
78,638
91,970

15.8%
10.1%
7.1%
6.6%
6.5%
8.3%
5.6%
6.6%

NOTE 15: FAIR VALUE – BASIS OF VALUATION
The basis of the valuation of each class of investment asset is set out below. There has been no
change in the valuation techniques used during the year. All assets have been valued using fair value
techniques which represent the highest and best price available at the reporting date.
Description of
asset

Valuation
hierarchy

Basis of valuation

Observable &
unobservable
inputs

Key sensitivities
affecting the
valuations provided

Market quoted
investments

Level 1

Published bid market price
ruling on the final day of the
accounting period

Not required

Not required

Quoted bonds

Level 1

Not required

Not required

Futures and
options in UK
bonds
Forward
foreign
exchange
derivatives
Overseas bond
options
Pooled
investments –
overseas unit
trusts and
property funds
Pooled
investments –
hedge funds

Level 1

Fixed interest securities are
valued at a market value
based on current yields
Published exchange prices
at the year-end

Not required

Not required

Level 2

Market forward exchange
rates at the year-end

Exchange rate risk

Not required

Level 2

Option pricing model

Annualised volatility of
counterparty credit risk

Not required

Level 2

Published bid market price
at end of the accounting
period.

NAV per share

Not required

Level 2

Most recent valuation

Not Required

Property held
in a limited
partnership

Level 3

Most recent published
NAV updated for cashflow
transactions
to the end of the
accounting period

NAV published,
Cashflow transactions,
i.e. distributions
or capital calls
NAV published,
Cashflow transactions,
i.e. distributions or
capital calls

Page 15 of 29

Valuations could be
affected by material events
between the date of the
pool fund financial
statements and the
fund’s own reporting date,
including cash flows
transacted in between the
audited accounts received
and the pension fund’s
year end.

Page 141

PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS – 2020/21

Private equity

Level 3

Most recent valuations
updated for cashflow
transactions and foreign
exchange movements
to the end of the
accounting period. The
Market approach may be
used in some circumstances
for the valuation of
underlying assets by the
fund manager. Prepared in
line with International Private
Equity and Venture Capital
Valuation Guidelines (2018)

Cashflow transactions,
i.e. distributions or
capital calls, foreign
exchange movements.
Audited financial
statements for
underlying assets, which
may include market
approach valuations:
taking into account
actual observed
transactions for the
underlying assets or
similar assets to help
value the assets of
each partnership.

Valuations could be
affected by material events
between the date of the
financial statements
provided by the asset
managers and the pension
fund’s own reporting date,
including cash flows
transacted in between the
audited accounts received
and the pension fund’s
year end.

Sensitivity of assets valued at level 3
Having analysed historical data and current market trends, the fund has determined that the valuation
methods described above are likely to be accurate to within the following ranges and has set out below
the consequent potential impact on the closing value of investments held at 31 March 2021.
Description of asset

Pooled Property
UK secured long income fund
UK opportunistic property
European Infrastructure
Private equity fund of funds
Total

Assessed
valuation
range (+/-)
%
10.0%
7.5%
10.0%
5.0%
15.0%

Value at 31
March 2020

Value on
increase

Value on
decrease

£000s
68,986
27,696
7,936
22,776
91,970
219,364

£000s
75,885
29,773
8,730
23,915
105,766
244,068

£000s
62,087
25,619
7,142
21,637
78,175
194,660

NOTE 15A: FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
Asset and liability valuations have been classified into three levels, according to the quality and reliability
of information used to determine fair values. Transfers between levels are recognised in the year in
which they occur. Criteria utilised in the instrument classifications are detailed below
Level 1
Financial instruments at Level 1 are those where the fair values are derived from unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Products classified as level 1 comprise quoted
equities, quoted fixed securities, exchange traded quoted index linked securities and unit trusts.
Listed investments are shown at bid prices. The bid value of the investment is based on the bid market
quotation of the relevant stock exchange.
Level 2
Financial instruments at level 2 are those where quoted market prices are not available; for example,
where an investment is traded in a market that is not considered to be active, or where valuation
techniques are used to determine fair value and where these techniques use inputs that are based
significantly on observable market data.
Level 3
Financial instruments at Level 3 are those where at least one input that could have a significant effect
on the instrument’s valuation is not based on observable market data. Such instruments would include
unquoted equity investments (private equity), which are valued using various valuation techniques that
require significant judgement in determining appropriate assumptions.

Page 16 of 29

Page 142

PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS – 2020/21
The following table provides an analysis of the financial assets and liabilities of the pension fund
grouped into levels 1 to 3, based on the level at which the fair value is observable.
Quoted
Using
With
market price
observable
significant
inputs unobservable
inputs
Values at 31 March 2021
Level 1
Level 2
Level 3
Total
£000s
£000s
£000s
£000s
Financial assets at fair value
147,634
925,848
219,364
1,292,846
Financial liabilities at fair value
(141)
(735)
(876)
Net investment assets
147,493
925,113
219,364
1,291,970

Quoted
market price

Using
observable
inputs

Level 1
£000s
135,637
(69)
135,568

Level 2
£000s
766,205
(332)
765,873

Values at 31 March 2020
Financial assets at fair value
Financial liabilities at fair value
Net investment assets

With
significant
unobservable
inputs
Level 3
£000s
192,861
192,861

Total
£000s
1,094,703
(401)
1,094,302

NOTE 15B: TRANSFERS BETWEEN LEVELS 1 AND 2
There has been no movement during 2020/21.

Market value
31March 2021

Realised
gains/losses

Unrealised
gains/losses

Sales during
the year

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

0

69,598*
69,598

0
0

0
0

(737)
(737)

0

68,861
68,861

72,283
17,045
4,610

0
0
0

5,506
2,459
18,505

(8,619)
0
0

(946)
2,260
(1,074)

5,179
0
0

73,403
21,764
22,042

4,611
98,549
98,549

0
0
69,598

2,800
29,270
29,270

(2,354)
(10,973)
(10,973)

(344)
(104)
(841)

2,079
7,258
7,258

6,791
124,000
192,861

Pooled
Property
Venture capital
Infrastructure
Property Funds
UK Secured
Income Funds

Purchases
during the
year

Transfers
in/out of level

Market value
1April 2020

NOTE 15C: RECONCILIATION OF FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS WITHIN LEVEL 3

*There has been significant volatility in the financial markets as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, the effect of this required
these assets to be moved from a fair value hierarchy level 2 to level 3 as at 31 March 2020

Page 17 of 29

Page 143

PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS – 2020/21

NOTE 16: FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
NOTE 16A: CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The following table analyses the carrying amounts of financial instruments by category and net assets
statement heading. No financial instruments were reclassified during the accounting period

£000s

90,622
45,015
766,037
68,861
124,000
168
52,855
2,351
1,094,703

55,206

(252)
(149)

1,094,703

-

(401)

55,206

(401)

Financial assets
Bonds
Equities
Pooled investments
Pooled property
Private equity
Derivative contracts
Cash deposits
Other investment
balances
Trade debtors
Total financial assets
Financial liabilities
Derivative contracts
Other investment
balances
Trade creditors
Total financial
liabilities
Grand total

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost

£000s

Financial
assets at
amortised cost

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost

£000s

Fair value
through profit&
loss

Financial
assets at
amortised cost

31 March 2021

Fair value
through profit&
loss

31 March 2020

£000s

£000s

£000s

99,210
48,424
925,799
68,986
150,378
49
100,369
2,685
1,292,846

-

103,054

(141)
(735)

1,292,846

(876)

103,054

(876)

NOTE 16B: NET GAINS AND LOSSES ON FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
31 March 2020
£000s
(46,916)
1,859
(45,057)

31 March 2021
£000s
Financial assets
Designated at fair value through profit & loss
Financial assets at amortised costs
Total

243,050
4,115
238,935

The authority has not entered into any financial guarantees that are required to be accounted for as
financial instruments.
NOTE 17: NATURE AND EXTENT OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Pension Fund’s investment objective is to achieve a return on Fund assets, which is sufficient,
over the long term, to fully meet the cost of benefits and to ensure stability of employer’s contribution
Page 18 of 29

Page 144

PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS – 2020/21
rates. Achieving the investment objectives requires a high allocation to growth assets in order to
improve the funding level, although this leads to a potential higher volatility of future funding levels and
therefore contribution rates.
Management of risk
The Pension Fund is invested in a range of different types of asset – equities, bonds, property, private
equity and cash. This is done in line with the Local Government Pension Scheme Management and
Investment of Funds Regulations 2016, which require pension funds to invest any monies not
immediately required to pay benefits. These regulations require the formulation of an Investment
Strategy Statement which sets out the Fund’s approach to investment including the management of
risk.
Responsibility for the fund’s risk management strategy rests with the pension fund committee. Risk
management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the council’s pensions
operations. Policies are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in activity and in market conditions.
a) Market risk
Market risk is the risk of loss from fluctuations in equity and commodity prices, interest and foreign
exchange rates and credit spreads. The fund is exposed to market risk from its investment activities,
particularly through its equity holdings. The level of risk exposure depends on market conditions,
expectations of future price and yield movements and the asset mix.
The objective of the fund’s risk management strategy is to identify, manage and control market risk
exposure within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return on risk.
In general, excessive volatility in market risk is managed through the diversification of the portfolio in
terms of geographical and industry sectors and individual securities. To mitigate market risk, the council
and its investment advisors undertake appropriate monitoring of market conditions and benchmark
analysis.
The fund manages these risks in two ways:
1. the exposure of the fund to market risk is monitored through a factor risk analysis, to ensure that
risk remains within tolerable levels
2. specific risk exposure is limited by applying risk-weighted maximum exposures to individual
investments.
Equity futures contracts and exchange traded option contracts on individual securities may also be used
to manage market risk on equity investments. It is possible for over-the-counter equity derivative
contracts to be used in exceptional circumstances to manage specific aspects of market risk.
Other price risk
Other price risk represents the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of
changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or foreign exchange risk),
whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual instrument or its issuer or factors
affecting all such instruments in the market.
The fund is exposed to share and derivative price risk. This arises from investments held by the fund
for which the future price is uncertain. All securities investments present a risk of loss of capital. Except
for shares sold short, the maximum risk resulting from financial instruments is determined by the fair
value of the financial instruments. Possible losses from shares sold short are unlimited.
The fund’s investment managers mitigate this price risk through diversification and the selection of
securities and other financial instruments is monitored by the council to ensure it is within limits specified
in the fund investment strategy.
Other price risk – sensitivity analysis
Following analysis of historical data and expected investment return movement during the financial
year, in consultation with the fund’s investment advisors, the Fund has determined that the following
movements in market price risk are reasonably possible for the 2019/20 reporting period (based on
assumption made in March 2020 on data provided by the Fund’s investment consultant. The
Page 19 of 29

Page 145

PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS – 2020/21
sensitivities are consistent with the assumptions contained in the investment advisor’s most recent
review. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency exchange rates and
interest rates, remain the same. To demonstrate the impact of this volatility, the table below shows the
impact of potential price changes based on the observed historical volatility of asset class returns.
Asset type
Fixed income government bond
Inflation-linked government bonds
Investment grade corporate bonds
Equities
Private equity
Real estate
Hedge funds

Potential market
movements (+/-)
2019/20
0.2%
0.2%
1.5%
7.2%
9.2%
5.4%
3.2%

Potential market
movements (+/-)
2020/21
0.2%
0.2%
1.5%
7.2%
9.2%
5.4%
3.2%

Had the market price of the fund investments increased/decreased in line with the above, the change
in the net assets available to pay benefits in the market price would have been as follows (the prior year
comparator is shown below).
Asset type

Fixed income government bond
Inflation-linked government bonds
Investment grade corporate bonds
Equities
Private equity
Real estate
Hedge funds
Cash & accruals

Asset type

Fixed income government bond
Inflation-linked government bonds
Investment grade corporate bonds
Equities
Private equity
Real estate
Hedge funds
Cash & accruals

Value at 31
March 2021
£000
4,082
91,734
94,300
652,705
150,378
68,986
229,784
103,054
1,395,023

Value at 31
March 2020
£000
3,508
90,762
87,114
471,044
124,000
68,861
249,013
55,206
1,149,508

Potential
value on
increase
£000
4,090
91,917
95,715
699,700
164,213
72,711
237,137
103,054
1,468,537

Potential
value on
increase
£000
3,515
90,944
88,421
504,959
135,408
72,579
256,981
55,206
1,208,013

Potential
value on
decrease
£000
4,074
91,551
92,886
605,710
136,543
65,261
222,431
103,054
1,321,509

Potential
value on
decrease
£000
3,501
90,580
85,807
437,129
112,592
65,143
241,045
55,206
1,091,003

Interest rate risk
The fund invests in financial assets for the primary purpose of obtaining a return on investments. These
investments are subject to interest rate risks, which represent the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The fund’s
interest rate risk is routinely monitored by the council and its investment advisors in accordance with
the fund’s risk management strategy, including monitoring the exposure to interest rates and
assessment of actual interest rates against the relevant benchmarks.

Page 20 of 29

Page 146

PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS – 2020/21
The fund’s direct exposure to interest rate movements as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 is set
out below. These disclosures present interest rate risk based on the underlying financial assets at fair
value.
Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis
The council recognises that interest rates can vary and can affect both income to the fund and the
carrying value of fund assets, both of which affect the value of the net assets available to pay benefits.
A 100 basis point (BPS) movement in interest rates is consistent with the level of sensitivity applied as
part of the fund’s risk management strategy. The fund’s investment advisor has advised that long-term
average rates are expected to move less than 100 basis points from one year to the next and experience
suggests that such movements are likely.
The analysis that follows assumes that all other variables, in particular exchange rates, remain constant,
and shows the effect in the year on the net assets available to pay benefits of a +/- 100 BPS change in
interest rates.
Assets exposed to interest
rate risk

Cash deposits
Cash & cash equivalents
Cash balances
Bonds
Total
Assets exposed to interest
rate risk

Cash deposits
Cash & cash equivalents
Cash balances
Bonds
Total
Income exposed to interest
rate risks

Interest on cash deposits
Bonds
Total
Income exposed to interest
rate risks

Interest on cash deposits
Bonds
Total

Value as at 31
March 2021

Value on
increase

Value on
decrease

£000
100,369
53
190,944

Potential
movement on
1% change in
interest rates
£000
1,004
1,909

£000
192,853

£000
189,035

291,366

2,913

192,853

189,035

Value as at 31
March 2020

Value on
increase

Value on
decrease

£000
52,855
53
181,383

Potential
movement on
1% change in
interest rates
£000
529
1,814

£000
183,197

£000
179,569

234,291

2,343

183,197

179,569

Amount
receivable as
at 31 March
2021
£000

Potential
movement on
1% change in
interest rates
£000

Value on
increase

Value on
decrease

£000

£000

28
3,439

0
34

28
3,473

29
3,508

3,467

35

3,502

3,536

Amount
receivable as
at 31 March
2020
£000
614
3,440

Potential
movement on
1% change in
interest rates
£000
6
34

Value on
increase

Value on
decrease

£000
620
3,474

£000
626
3,406

4,053

41

4,094

4,134

Page 21 of 29

Page 147

PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS – 2020/21
This analysis demonstrates that a 1% increase in interest rates will not affect the interest received on
fixed interest assets but will reduce their fair value, and vice versa. Changes in interest rates do not
impact on the value of cash and cash equivalent balances but they will affect the interest income
received on those balances. Changes to both the fair value of assets and the income received from
investments impact on the net assets available to pay benefits.
Currency risk
Currency risk represents the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The fund is exposed to currency risk on
financial instruments that are denominated in any currency other than the functional currency of the
fund (UK sterling). The fund holds both monetary and non-monetary assets denominated in currencies
other than UK sterling.
The fund’s currency rate risk is routinely monitored by the council and its investment advisors in
accordance with the fund’s risk management strategy, including monitoring the range of exposure to
currency fluctuations.
Currency risk – sensitivity analysis
There is a risk that due to exchange rate movements the sterling equivalent value of the investments
falls. The Fund acknowledges that adverse foreign currency movements relative to Sterling can reduce
the value of the fund’s investment portfolio. The table below demonstrates the potential value of the
fund’s investments based on positive or adverse currency movements by 10%.

Assets exposed to currency
risk
Canadian Dollar
Danish Krone
Euro
Hong Kong Dollar
Japanese Yen
Swedish Krona
Norwegian Krone
Swiss Franc
US Dollar

Assets exposed to currency
risk
Australian Dollar
Canadian Dollar
Danish Krone
Euro
Japanese Yen
Mexican Peso
Norwegian Krone
Singapore Dollar
South African Rand
Swedish Krona
Swiss Franc
US Dollar

Assets value
as at 31
March 2020

Potential
movement

Value on
increase

Value on
decrease

£000
1,079
4,091
34,661
7,993
18,787
5
611
1,153
222,875
291,255

£000
108
409
3,466
799
1,879
1
61
115
22,288
29,126

£000
1,187
4,500
38,127
8,792
20,666
6
672
1,268
245,163
320,381

£000
971
3,682
31,195
7,194
16,908
4
550
1,038
200,587
262,129

Assets value
as at 31
March 2019

Potential
movement

Value on
increase

Value on
decrease

£000
1,562
1
737
39,617
291
677
6
1,143
480
541
1,089
161,988
208,132

£000
156
74
3,962
29
68
1
114
48
54
109
16,199
20,814

£000
1,718
1
811
43,579
320
745
7
1,257
528
595
1,198
178,187
228,946

£000
1,406
1
663
35,655
262
609
5
1,029
432
487
980
145,789
187,318

Page 22 of 29

Page 148

PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS – 2020/21
b) Credit risk
Credit risk represents the risk that the counterparty to a transaction or a financial instrument will fail to
discharge an obligation and cause the fund to incur a financial loss. The market values of investments
generally reflect an assessment of credit in their pricing and consequently the risk of loss is implicitly
provided for in the carrying value of the fund’s financial assets and liabilities.
In essence the fund’s entire investment portfolio is exposed to some form of credit risk, with the
exception of the derivatives’ positions, where the risk equates to the net market value of a positive
derivative position. However, the selection of high quality counterparties, brokers and financial
institutions minimises credit risk that may occur through the failure to settle a transaction in a timely
manner.
Contractual credit risk is represented by the net payment or receipt that remains outstanding, and the
cost of replacing the derivative position in the event of a counterparty default. The residual risk is
minimal due to the various insurance policies held by the exchanges to cover defaulting counterparties.
Credit risk on over-the-counter derivative contracts is minimised as counterparties are recognised
financial intermediaries with acceptable credit ratings determined by a recognised rating agency.
Deposits are not made with banks and financial institutions unless they are rated independently and
meet the council’s credit criteria. The council has also set limits as to the maximum percentage of the
deposits placed with any one class of financial institution. In addition, the council invests an agreed
percentage of its funds in the money markets to provide diversification. Money market funds chosen all
have AAA rating from a leading ratings agency.
The Council believes it has managed its exposure to credit risk and has had no experience of default
or uncollectable deposits over the past five financial years. The fund’s cash holding under its treasury
management arrangements at 31 March 2020 was £52.9m (31 March 2019 - £58.1m). This was held
with the following institutions:
Rating

Termed deposits
Close Brothers
Money market funds
Goldman Sachs money market fund
Blackrock money market fund
Bank current accounts
HSBC
Northern Trust Custodian
Cash held by fund managers

Balances as
at 31 March
2020
£000

Balances as
at 31 March
2021
£000

-

-

AAAm
AAAm

35,868
35

31,296
35

AAAA-

53
15,108
1,844
52,908

53
65,373
3,666
100,423

A-

c) Liquidity risk - represents the risk that the fund will not be able to meet its financial obligations as
they fall due. The council therefore takes steps to ensure that the pension fund has adequate cash
resources to meet its commitments. This will particularly be the case for cash from the cash flow
matching mandates from the main investment strategy to meet the pensioner payroll costs; and also
cash to meet investment commitments.
The Fund has immediate access to its pension fund cash holdings.
Management prepares periodic cash flow forecasts to understand and manage the timing of the fund’s
cash flows. The appropriate strategic level of cash balances to be held forms part of the fund investment
strategy.
All financial liabilities at 31 March 2020 are due within one year.

Page 23 of 29

Page 149

PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS – 2020/21
d) Refinancing risk - The key risk is that the council will be bound to replenish a significant proportion
of its pension fund financial instruments at a time of unfavourable interest rates. The council does not
have any financial instruments that have a refinancing risk as part of its investment strategy
NOTE 18: FUNDING ARRANGEMENTS
In line with the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013, the fund’s actuary undertakes a
funding valuation every three years for the purpose of setting employer contribution rates for the
forthcoming triennial period. The last such valuation took place as at 31 March 2019 and the results
was approved by the Pension Policy & Investment Committee at their February 2020 meeting, for
implementation from 01 April 2020.
The key elements of the funding policy are:
1)

to ensure the long-term solvency of the fund, i.e. that sufficient funds are available to meet all
pension liabilities as they fall due for payment

2)

to ensure that employer contribution rates are as stable as possible

3)

to minimise the long-term cost of the scheme by recognising the link between assets and
liabilities and adopting an investment strategy that balances risk and return

4)

to reflect the different characteristics of employing bodies in determining contribution rates where
it is reasonable to do so, and

5)

to use reasonable measures to reduce the risk to other employers and ultimately to the council
tax payer from an employer defaulting on its pension obligations.

The aim is to achieve 100% solvency over a period of 19 years and to provide stability in employer
contribution rates by spreading any increases in rates over a period of time. Normally this is three
years. Solvency is achieved when the funds held, plus future expected investment returns and future
contributions, are sufficient to meet expected future pension benefits payable.
At the 2019 actuarial valuation, the fund was assessed as 103% funded.
Financial assumptions
The valuation was carried out using the projected unit actuarial method for most employers and the
main actuarial assumptions used for assessing the funding target and the contribution rates are shown
in note 20 in the financial assumption section.
Demographic assumptions
The key demographic assumption was the allowance made for longevity. The post retirement mortality
assumption adopted for the actuarial valuation was in line with standard self-administered pension
scheme (SAPS) S2P Light mortality tables with appropriate scaling factors applied based on the
mortality experience of members within the Fund and included an allowance for improvements based
on the Continuous Mortality Investigation (CMI) 2014 Core Projections with a long term annual rate of
improvement in mortality rates of 1.5% p.a. The resulting average future life expectancies at age 65
were:
Life expectancy from age 65 as valuation date

Males

Females

Current pensioners aged 65 at the valuation date

22.3

24.2

Future pensioners aged 45 at the valuation date

22.9

24.9

NOTE 19: ACTUARIAL PRESENT VALUE OF PROMISED RETIREMENT BENEFITS
Introduction
The Scheme Regulations require that a full actuarial valuation is carried out every third year. The
purpose of this is to establish that the London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund (the Fund) is able to
meet its liabilities to past and present contributors and to review employer contribution rates. The last
full actuarial investigation into the financial position of the Fund was completed as at 31 March 2019 by
Aon, in accordance with Regulation 62 of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013.

Page 24 of 29

Page 150

PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS – 2020/21
Actuarial Position
a)

The valuation as at 31 March 2019 showed that the funding level of the Fund had increased
since the previous valuation with the market value of the Fund’s assets as at 31 March 2019
(of £1,185.5M) covering 103% of the liabilities allowing, in the case of pre- 1 April 2014
membership for current contributors to the Fund, for future increases in pensionable pay.

b)

The valuation also showed that the aggregate level of contributions required to be paid by
participating employers with effect from 1 April 2020 was:


18.5% of pensionable pay. This is the rate calculated as being sufficient, together with
contributions paid by members, to meet the liabilities arising in respect of service after the
valuation date (the primary rate),



an allowance of 1.5% of pay for McCloud and cost management – see paragraph 9 below,

Plus
c)

In practice, each individual employer's or group of employers' position is assessed separately
and contributions are set out in Aon's report dated 31 March 2020 (the "actuarial valuation
report"). In addition to the contributions certified, payments to cover additional liabilities arising
from early retirements (other than ill-health retirements) will be made to the Fund by the
employers.
Total contributions payable by all employers over the three years to 31 March 2023 are
estimated
to
be:
Year from 1 April

% of pensionable pay

Plus total contribution
amount (£M)

2020

19.8

0.008

2021

19.8

0.008

2022

19.8

0.009

d)

The funding plan adopted in assessing the contributions for each employer is in accordance
with the Funding Strategy Statement. Different approaches were adopted in relation to the
calculation of the primary contribution rate and individual employers' recovery periods as
agreed with the Administering Authority and reflected in the Funding Strategy Statement,
reflecting the employers' circumstances.

e)

The valuation was carried out using the projected unit actuarial method for most employers and
the main financial actuarial assumptions used for assessing the funding target and the
contribution rates were as follows.
Discount rate for periods in service
Scheduled and subsumption body funding target *
Low risk funding target
Ongoing Orphan funding target

4.20% p.a.
1.30% p.a.
3.30% p.a.

Discount rate for periods after leaving service
Scheduled and subsumption body funding target *
Low risk funding target
Ongoing Orphan funding target

4.20% p.a.
1.30% p.a.
1.60% p.a.

Rate of pay increases

3.60% p.a.

Rate of increase to pension accounts

2.10% p.a.

Rate of increases in pensions in payment
(in excess of Guaranteed Minimum Pension)

2.10% p.a.

Page 25 of 29

Page 151

PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS – 2020/21

* The scheduled and subsumption body discount rate was used for scheduled bodies and other
employers whose liabilities will be subsumed after exit by a scheduled body.
The assets were valued at market value.
Further details of the assumptions adopted for the valuation, including the demographic
assumptions, are set out in the actuarial valuation report.
f)

The key demographic assumption was the allowance made for longevity. The post retirement
mortality assumption adopted for the actuarial valuation was in line with standard selfadministered pension scheme (SAPS) S2P mortality tables with appropriate scaling factors
applied based on an analysis of the Fund's postcode data using Aon's Demographic HorizonsTM
longevity model, and included an allowance for improvements based on the 2018 Continuous
Mortality Investigation (CMI) Projections Model (CMI2018), with sk of 7.5 and parameter A of
0.0 assuming a long term annual rate of improvement in mortality rates of 1.5% p.a. The
resulting average future life expectancies at age 65 (for normal health retirements) were:
Men

Women

Current pensioners aged 65 at the valuation date

22.3

24.2

Current active members aged 45 at the valuation date

22.9

24.9

g)

The valuation results summarised in paragraphs 1 and 2 above are based on the financial
position and market levels at the valuation date, 31 March 2019. As such the results do not
make allowance for changes which have occurred subsequent to the valuation date. The
Actuary, in conjunction with the Administering Authority, monitors the funding position on a
regular basis.

h)

The formal actuarial valuation report and the Rates and Adjustments Certificate setting out the
employer contribution rates for the period from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2023 were signed on
31 March 2020. Other than as agreed or otherwise permitted or required by the Regulations,
employer contribution rates will be reviewed at the next actuarial valuation of the Fund as at 31
March 2022 in accordance with Regulation 62 of the Local Government Pension Scheme
Regulations 2013.

i)

There are a number of uncertainties regarding the Scheme benefits and hence liabilities:
 Increases
to
Guaranteed
Minimum
Pensions
(GMPs):
The 2019 valuation allows for the extension of the ‘interim solution’ for public service
schemes to pay full inflationary increases on GMPs for those reaching State Pension Age
(SPA) between 6 April 2016 and 5 April 2021. On 23 March 2021, the Government published
a response to its consultation on the longer term solution to achieve equalisation for GMPs
as required by the High Court judgement in the Lloyds Bank case. The response set out its
proposed longer term solution, which is to extend the interim solution further to those
reaching SPA after 5 April 2021.
The results of the 2019 valuation do not allow for the impact of this proposed longer term
solution. Based on approximate calculations, at a whole of fund level, the impact of providing
full pension increases on GMPs for those members reaching State Pension Age after 5 April
2021 is an increase in past service liabilities of between 0.1% to 0.2% across the Fund as a
whole.


Cost
Management
Process
and
McCloud
judgement:
Initial results from the Scheme Advisory Board 2016 cost management process indicated
that benefit improvements / member contribution reductions equivalent to 0.9% of pay
would be required. However, the cost management process was paused following the Court
of Appeal ruling that the transitional arrangements in both the Judges' Pension Scheme
(McCloud) and Firefighters' Pension Scheme (Sargeant) constituted illegal age
discrimination. Government confirmed that the judgement would be treated as applying to
all public service schemes including the LGPS (where the transitional arrangements were
in the form of a final salary underpin) and a consultation on changes to the LGPS was
issued in July 2020.
Page 26 of 29

Page 152

PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS – 2020/21
The employer contributions certified from 1 April 2020 as part of the 2019 valuation include
an allowance of 1.5% of pay in relation to the potential additional costs following the
McCloud judgement / cost management process. This was a simplified approach which
didn't take account of different employer membership profiles or funding targets and may
be more or less than the assessed cost once the details of the LGPS changes arising from
the McCloud judgement and (if applicable) arising from the 2016 cost management process
have been agreed.
Work on the 2020 cost management process has now been started, and it is possible that
further changes to benefits and/or contributions may ultimately be required under that
process, although the outcome is not expected to be known for some time.


j)

Goodwin
An Employment Tribunal ruling relating to the Teachers' Pension Scheme concluded that
provisions for survivor's benefits of a female member in an opposite sex marriage are less
favourable than for a female in a same sex marriage or civil partnership, and that treatment
amounts to direct discrimination on grounds of sexual orientation. The chief secretary to
the Treasury announced in a written ministerial statement on 20 July 2020 that he believed
that changes would be required to other public service pension schemes with similar
arrangements, although these changes are yet to be reflected in LGPS regulations. We
expect the average additional liability to be less than 0.1%, however the impact will vary by
employer depending on their membership profile.

This Statement has been prepared by the Actuary to the Fund, Aon, for inclusion in the accounts
of the Fund. It provides a summary of the results of the actuarial valuation which was carried
out as at 31 March 2019. The valuation provides a snapshot of the funding position at the
valuation date and is used to assess the future level of contributions required.
This Statement must not be considered without reference to the formal actuarial valuation report
which details fully the context and limitations of the actuarial valuation.
Aon does not accept any responsibility or liability to any party other than our client, London
Borough of Enfield, the Administering Authority of the Fund, in respect of this Statement.

k)

The report on the actuarial valuation as at 31 March 2019 is available on the Fund's website at
the following address:
https://new.enfield.gov.uk/pensions/wp-content/uploads/2017/10/London-Borough-of-EnfieldPension-Fund-Actuarial-valuation-as-at-31-March-2019-.pdf

Page 27 of 29

Page 153

PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS – 2020/21
NOTE 20: CURRENT ASSETS
31 March 2020
£000s
208
636
0
844
53
897

31 March 2021
£000s
Debtors
Contributions due - employees
Contributions due - employers
Sundry debtors

194
576
126
896

Cash balances
Current account

53
949

NOTE 20A: LONG TERM DEBTORS
31 March 2020
£000s

31 March 2021
£000s

Debtors
53 Pensioner Tax liability
53
NOTE 21: CURRENT LIABILITIES
31 March 2020
£000s
(460)
(567)
(1,027)

96
96

31 March 2021
£000s
(488)
(488)

Sundry creditors
Benefits payable

NOTE 22: ADDITIONAL VOLUNTARY CONTRIBUTIONS
Members of the Fund are able to make AVCs in addition to their normal contributions. The related
assets are invested separately from the main Fund and in accordance with the Local Government
Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) regulations 2016, are not accounted for
within the financial statements. If on retirement members opt to enhance their Scheme benefits using
their AVC funds, the amounts returned to the Fund by the AVC provider are disclosed within transfersin.
The current provider is Prudential. Funds held are summarised below:

Contributions
& Transfers

Sums
Paid Out

Investment
Return

Closing
Balance at
31 March
2020

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

£000s

Plan Value

3,512

767

(1,100)

103

3,282

Bonus

(332)

Opening
Balance at
1st April 19

3,180

(411)
767

(1,100)

103

NOTE 23: AGENCY SERVICES
The Enfield Pension Fund does not use any agency services to administer the pension service.

Page 28 of 29

2,871

Page 154

PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS – 2020/21

NOTE 24: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
London Borough of Enfield
The Enfield Pension Fund is administered by the London Borough of Enfield. Consequently, there is a
strong relationship between the Council and the Pension fund.
During the reporting period, the Council incurred costs of £1.695m (2019/20: £1.124m) in relation to the
administration of the fund and was subsequently reimbursed by the fund for these expenses. The
Council is also the single largest employer of members of the pension fund and contributed £38.5m to
the fund in (2019/20 £39.2m). At year end the Pension Fund owed the Council £126k (£460k in 2019/20).
Scheduled and admitted bodies owed the Fund £898k (£844k in 2019/20) from employer & employee
contributions. All payments were received by 19th April 2021.
Governance
The Enfield Council has decided that Councillors should not be allowed to join the LGPS scheme and
receive pension benefits from the Fund.
No allowances are paid to Members directly in respect of the Pension Policy & Investment Committee. The
Chair of the Pension Policy & Investment Committee, however, is paid a special responsibility allowance.
During the year, no member or Council Officer with direct responsibility for pension fund issues had
undertaken any declarable material transactions with the Pension Fund. Each member of the Pension
Committee is required to declare their interests at meetings.

NOTE 24A: KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
The key management personnel of the fund are the Pension manager, Finance Manager (Pensions &
Treasury), the Head of Exchequer Services. As required by paragraph 3.9.4.2 of the CIPFA code of
practice 2020/21 the figures below show the total remuneration and the change in value of postemployment benefits provided to these individuals over the accounting year.
31 March 2020
£000s
237
72
309

Short-term benefits
Post-employment benefits

31 March 2021
£000s
267
74
341

NOTE 25: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTRACTUAL COMMITMENTS
The total outstanding capital commitments (investments) at 31 March 2021 are £40m (31 March 2020
were £70m).
These commitments relate to outstanding call payments due on unquoted limited partnership funds held
in the private equity and infrastructure parts of the portfolio. The amounts ‘called’ by these funds are
irregular in both size and timing over a period of between four and six years from the date of each
original commitment.

Page 29 of 29

Page 155

Agenda Item 9

London Borough of Enfield
PENSION POLICY AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE
Meeting Date: 29 July 2021

Subject:

Liquid Credit Update June 2021

Cabinet Member:

Cllr Maguire

Executive Director:

Fay Hammond

Key Decision:

[

]

This report informs Members of identified Liquid Credit Strategies that the Fund can
invest some proportion of the current excess cash in. The principle and the process
are explained further in Appendix 1 to this report.
Purpose of Report
1.

The Pension Fund Regulations require that the Council establishes
arrangements for monitoring the investments of the Fund. It considers the
activities of the investment managers and ensures that proper advice is
obtained on investment issues.

2.

Officers and fund advisers meet regularly with investment managers to
discuss their strategy and performance and if considered necessary may
recommend that investment managers are invited to explain further to the
Pension Policy & Investment Committee.

3.

This is an update report to the Committee on the progress of exploring
different implementation options for an investment into Liquid Credit and to
outline the next steps to be taken.
Proposal(s)

4.

Pension Policy and Investments Committee are recommended to note the
contents of this report and the contents of the attached Appendix.
Reason for Proposal(s)

5.

The report informs the Pension Policy and investment Committee of the
performance of pension fund managers and the overall performance of the
Enfield Pension Fund.
Relevance to the Council’s Corporate Plan

6.

Good homes in well-connected neighbourhoods.

Page 156

7.

Build our Economy to create a thriving place.

8.

Sustain Strong and healthy Communities.
Background

9.

At the 10 June 2021 PPIC meeting, as part of the discussions in relation to
the Fund's investment strategy, the matter of investing the Fund's excess
Cash balance was highlighted.

10.

As at 31 May 2021 the Fund had c.£95m held in Cash and it was agreed that
£50m - £70m of this would be available for investment, with the remainder
being retained to meet outgoings and known future commitments to current
illiquid managers in the short term.

11.

Aon highlighted an opportunity to the PPIC, in terms of investing this available
balance into Liquid Credit as, given the current low interest environment, we
believe that the Fund could achieve better returns, without compromising
liquidity or capital stability, by considering investing in low risk, Liquid Credit
as an alternative to Cash.

12.

The particular areas of Liquid Credit that were highlighted at the June meeting
were Short-Dated Credit and Asset-Backed Securities ("ABS"), with the
expectation being that these asset classes would generate a return of around
1%-2% p.a. in excess of Cash.

13.

An allocation to Liquid Credit could be seen as a medium-term holding whilst
the Fund's revised investment strategy is implemented, but equally it could
become an integral part of the Fund's Bond allocation; something which can
be evaluated over time.
Workforce Implications

14.

The employer’s contribution is a significant element of the Council’s budget
and consequently any improvement in investment performance will allow the
Council to meet this obligation easily and could also make resources available
for other corporate priorities.
Property Implications

15.

None
Other Implications

16.

None
Options Considered

17.

To continue investing the cash balances in Money Market Funds (MMFs).

Report Author:

Bola Tobun
Finance Manager – Pensions & Treasury
Page 2 of 3

Page 157

Bola.Tobun@enfield.gov.uk
Tel no. 020 8132 1588
Date of report

18th July 2021

Appendices
Appendix 1 - Liquid Credit Update (Confidential – Exempt Report)
Background Papers
None

Page 3 of 3

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 159
By virtue of
Regulation 22(1)(A) of the Local Authorities (Executive
Arrangements) (Access to Information) (England)
Regulations 2000.

Document is Restricted

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 163

Agenda Item 10

London Borough of Enfield
PENSION POLICY AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE
Meeting Date: 29 July 2021

Subject:

Market and Portfolio Update June 2021

Cabinet Member:

Cllr Maguire

Executive Director:

Fay Hammond

Key Decision:

[

]

This report informs Members the current market and portfolio update as set in
Appendix 1 to this report.
Purpose of Report
1.

The Pension Fund Regulations require that the Council establishes
arrangements for monitoring the investments of the Fund. It considers the
activities of the investment managers and ensures that proper advice is
obtained on investment issues.

2.

Officers and fund advisers meet regularly with investment managers to
discuss their strategy and performance and if considered necessary may
recommend that investment managers are invited to explain further to the
Pension Policy & Investment Committee.
Proposal(s)

3.

Pension Policy and Investments Committee are recommended to note the
contents of this report.
Reason for Proposal(s)

4.

The report informs the Pension Policy and investment Committee of the
performance of pension fund managers and the overall performance of the
Enfield Pension Fund.

5.

Relevance to the Council’s Corporate Plan

6.

Good homes in well-connected neighbourhoods.

7.

Build our Economy to create a thriving place.

Page 164

8.

Sustain Strong and healthy Communities.
Workforce Implications

9.

The employer’s contribution is a significant element of the Council’s budget
and consequently any improvement in investment performance will allow the
Council to meet this obligation easily and could also make resources available
for other corporate priorities.
Property Implications

10.

None
Other Implications

11.

None
Options Considered

12.

There are no alternative options.

Report Author:

Bola Tobun
Finance Manager – Pensions & Treasury
Bola.Tobun@enfield.gov.uk
Tel no. 020 8132 1588

Date of report

18th July 2021

Appendices
Appendix 1 – AON Market and Portfolio Update (Confidential – Exempt Report)
Background Papers
None

Page 165
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 179

Agenda Item 11

London Borough of Enfield
PENSION POLICY AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE
Meeting Date: 29 July 2021

Subject:

Multi-Asset Credit Update June 2021

Cabinet Member:

Cllr Maguire

Executive Director:

Fay Hammond

Key Decision:

[

]

This report informs Members of Multi-Asset Credit options available on London CIV
platform and this is appended as Appendix 1 to this report.
Purpose of Report
1.

The Pension Fund Regulations require that the Council establishes
arrangements for monitoring the investments of the Fund. It considers the
activities of the investment managers and ensures that proper advice is
obtained on investment issues.

2.

Officers and fund advisers meet regularly with investment managers to
discuss their strategy and performance and if considered necessary may
recommend that investment managers are invited to explain further to the
Pension Policy & Investment Committee.
Proposal(s)

3.

Pension Policy and Investments Committee are recommended to note and
consider the contents of this report and its Appendix and to decide on
preferable option:
i) Option 1: The new proposal is that the current MAC Fund mandate be amended
such that the allocation to the underlying managers be 50% to CQS and 50% to
PIMCO

ii) Option 2: To create a new fund (a working name for this is the "Alternative
Credit Fund") which will retain just CQS (or a similar manager in due
course).
4.

To delegate the communicating of the preferred option to the London CIV.
Reason for Proposal(s)

Page 180

5.

The report informs the Pension Policy and investment Committee of the
performance of pension fund managers and the overall performance of the
Enfield Pension Fund.

6.

Relevance to the Council’s Corporate Plan

7.

Good homes in well-connected neighbourhoods.

8.

Build our Economy to create a thriving place.

9.

Sustain Strong and healthy Communities.
Background

10.

The Pension Fund first invested in the London CIV Multi-Asset Credit Fund
("the MAC Fund") in 2018. At the time of the first investment there was one
underlying manager within the MAC Fund, that being CQS. This remains the
current position today.

11.

However, the London CIV have had some concerns with CQS for a period of
time. The London CIV initially placed CQS on a 'Watch' status in June 2019
and, since February 2020, have had CQS on an 'Enhanced Monitoring' status.
Their concerns relate to performance, senior management turnover, the fund's
investment strategy (in particular the sectors of the credit universe with the
fund invests in) and, latterly, their approach to Environmental, Social and
Governance issues.

12.

As a result of these concerns, the London CIV have undertaken a
procurement exercise to appoint a second underlying fund for the MAC Fund,
to sit alongside CQS. The manager they have selected for this fund is PIMCO.

13.

The attached Appendix highlights the options presented by the London CIV
and to enable discussion for a potential way forward on this issue.
Workforce Implications

14.

The employer’s contribution is a significant element of the Council’s budget
and consequently any improvement in investment performance will allow the
Council to meet this obligation easily and could also make resources available
for other corporate priorities.
Property Implications

15.

None
Other Implications

16.

None
Options Considered

17.

There are no alternative options.
Page 2 of 3

Page 181

Report Author:

Bola Tobun
Finance Manager – Pensions & Treasury
Bola.Tobun@enfield.gov.uk
Tel no. 020 8132 1588

Date of report

18th July 2021

Appendices
Appendix 1 – Multi-Asset Credit Update (Confidential – Exempt Report)
Background Papers
None

Page 3 of 3

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 183
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 189

Agenda Item 12

London Borough of Enfield
PENSION POLICY AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE
Meeting Date: 29 July 2021

Subject:

Fossil Fuel Exposure Report as at 31st March 2021

Cabinet Member:

Cllr Maguire

Executive Director:

Fay Hammond

Key Decision:

[

]

Purpose of Report
1.

This report informs Members, the Pension Fund exposure to fossil fuel as at
31 March 2021 comparing this outcome to the 31 December 2020 fossil fuel
exposure analysis carried out by the Fund Investment Consultant.

2.

The Pension Fund Regulations require that the Council establishes
arrangements for monitoring the investments of the Fund. It considers the
activities of the investment managers and ensures that proper advice is
obtained on investment issues.
Proposal(s)

3.

Pension Policy and Investments Committee are recommended to note the
contents of this report and its appendices.
Reason for Proposal(s)

4.

The report informs the Pension Policy and investment Committee of the
performance of pension fund managers and the overall performance of the
Enfield Pension Fund.

5.

Relevance to the Council’s Corporate Plan

6.

Good homes in well-connected neighbourhoods.

7.

Build our Economy to create a thriving place.

8.

Sustain Strong and healthy Communities.
Background

9.

Aon was commissioned to analyse the exposure to fossil fuels (in % and £
terms) at mandate and aggregate level. It is understandable that there might

Page 190

be some mandates, who would have zero exposure as a function of their
investment process and philosophy, whilst other mandates may have greaterthan-benchmark exposure.
10.

To do this work, Aon liaise with the Fund’s managers to provide them with the
relevant data (intention being to have a comparable and consistent basis).
The information was then reviewed for comparability and any gaps, providing
this to the Committee with a reasonable summary in aggregate.

11.

Aon will further discuss the process, findings of this work with the Committee
at this meeting.
Workforce Implications

12.

The employer’s contribution is a significant element of the Council’s budget
and consequently any improvement in investment performance will allow the
Council to meet this obligation easily and could also make resources available
for other corporate priorities.
Property Implications

13.

None
Other Implications

14.

None
Options Considered

15.

There are no alternative options.
Conclusion

16.

The Fund's exposure to fossil fuels – as measured by investment in physical
or synthetic debt or equity of a firm which produces, extracts, or explores for
oil, gas, or coal as a material part of its business model – is c0.9% of Fund
value, or c.£13.1m as at 31 March 2021;

17.

This is lower than the exposure as at 31 December 2020 of 1.1%, or £15.1m
in sterling terms. The reduction is largely driven by the Fund's transition to a
passive low-carbon equity approach with BlackRock in early 2021, which
successfully reduced the Fund’s fossil fuel exposure by c.£4.2m.

18.

As expected, a number of the Fund's managers have zero exposure.

Report Author:

Bola Tobun
Finance Manager – Pensions & Treasury
Bola.Tobun@enfield.gov.uk
Tel no. 020 8132 1588

Date of report

18th July 2021

Page 191

Appendices
Appendix 1 - Exposure to fossil fuels as at 31 March 2021 (Exempt Report)
Appendix 2 - Exposure to fossil fuels as at 31 December 2020 (Exempt Report)
Background Papers
None

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 193
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 201
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 209
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Agenda Item 13

This page is intentionally left blank

